
NOTICE OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
January 19, 2021 

at 12:00 p.m. 

THE MEETING WILL BE HELD ELECTRONICALLY 

The City Council of the City of Pontiac will hold a Formal Meeting on January 19, 2021 at 12:00 
p.m. This meeting will be held electronically as allowed by the amended Open Meetings Act. The 
agenda for the Formal Meeting is attached. The Pontiac City Council gives notice of the following: 

1. Procedures. The public may view the meeting electronically through the following 
method. 

http://pontiac.mi.us/council/pontiactv/index.php 

2. Public Comment. For individuals who desire to make a public comment, please 
submit ·your name and comment in writing to publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us. 
Additionally, you may submit your public comment in writing directly to the Office 
of the City Clerk during regular business hours. All public comments must be 
received no later than 11:30 a.m. on January 19, 2021. Public comments are limited 
to three (3) minutes. The City Clerk will read your comments during the public 
comment section of the meeting. 

3. Persons with Disabilities. Persons with disabilities may participate in the meeting 
through the methods set forth in paragraph 2. Individuals with disabilities requiring 
auxiliary aids or services in order to attend electronically should notify the Interim 
City Clerk, Garland Doyle at (248) 758-3200 or clerk@pontiac.mi.us at least 24 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

Dated 1-15-2021, 3:00 p.m. 
Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk 
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave. Pontiac, MI 48342 Phone: (248) 758-3200 



PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL  
 

Kermit Williams, District 7    Patrice Waterman, District 1 
President      Megan Shramski, District 2 
Randy Carter, District 4    Mary Pietila, District 3 
President Pro Tem     Gloria Miller, District 5 
       Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6  
 
It is this Council’s mission “To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 

for its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play.” 
Website:  http://pontiaccityclerk.com/city-council-meetings    Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 
           Interim City Clerk 

FORMAL MEETING 
January 19, 2021 

12:00 P.M. 
     210th Session of the 10th Council 

 
Call to order 
 
Invocation 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
 
Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers   
 
Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 
 
Approval of the Minutes 

1. November 21, 2020 Special Meeting (These minutes were not approved on December 8, 2020.) 
 

2. January 5, 2021 Formal Meeting  
 

3. January 12, 2021 Study Session  
 
Subcommittee Report 

4. Public Safety- December 2020 
 
Special Presentations (Presentations are limited to 10 minutes.) 

5. Mayor’s Refusal to Authorize Finance to pay City Clerk, Elections and Medical Marihuana Invoices 
Presentation Presenter:  Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 
 

6. Status of Medical Marihuana applications review procedures; Attorney opinions regarding existing for Special 
Exemption Permit which renders unnecessary another ordinance amendment, status of Medical Marihuana line 
item expenditures (This is a continuation of the presentation from January 5, 2021.) 
Presentation Presenter:  Matt Gibb, Esq, Special Counsel for Economic Development 

 
Communication from the City Clerk 

7. City Clerk’s Response to Letter from Rubicon Capital’s Attorney and the Continuation of Mayor Waterman, 
Attorney Chubb and Attorney Matt Gibb Conflicting Opinions and Distributing Inaccurate Information about 
the Medical Marihuana Review Process  

Closed Session 
8. The City Attorney requests a closed session pursuant to MCL 15.268(h), to discuss an attorney-client 

privileged memorandum regarding a letter received from the Counsel for Rubicon Capital, which is exempt 



 
 

from disclosure pursuant to MCL 15.243(1)(g). (MCL 15.267 Sec 7. requires a 2/3 roll call vote of members 
elected or appointed and serving is required to call a closed session, except for the closed sessions permitted 
under section 8(a), (b), (c), (g), (i), and (j).) 

 
Recognition Elected Officials 

 
Agenda Address 
 
Agenda Items 
 
Resolutions 
Building and Safety 

9. Resolution to approve extension of CARES Act Landlord Reimbursement for Tenant Non-Payment or Stay of 
Eviction 
 

Department of Public Works (DPW) 
10. Resolution to authorize the Mayor to sign the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) funding 

agreement for construction of the Orchard Lake Road Signal Modernization Project.  
 

Finance/Treasury  
11. Resolution to approve Mayor recommendation of a Waiver in accrual of penalties for unpaid Winter 2020 

property taxes, to provide economic relief to the City of Pontiac residents. 
 
Information Technology 

12. Resolution to approve the update of the City of Pontiac’s current ShoreTel phone system to a cloud based 
“Ring Central” system.  

 
Communications from the Mayor   

13. Small Business Town Hall 
 

14. Extension if the Executive Order 2020-01-Outdoor dining  
 
Public Comment 
 
Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 
 
Adjournment  
 
 
 



#1 
MINUTES 

11-21-20 



November 21, 2020 Special 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

201 th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Special Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order electronically, on Saturday, 
November 21, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Roll Call 
Members Present: Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams. 
Members Absent: Pro Tern Carter and Miller 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

Excuse Councilmembers 
20-529 Motion to.excuse Pro Tern Carter and Councilperson Miller for personal reasons. Moved 
by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Discussion on additional information on Dearborn Capital and with bond counsel on alternative 
mechanisms for financing ·on debt placement and potentially take action on these items. 

20-530 Resolution to approve purchase and sale agreementincorporating the letter we received 
Nov 20th from Mr. Brian Wloch and authorize. the Mayor to sign the agreement accepting the terms and 
conditions there in. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski,Taylor-Burks & Waterman 
No: Williams 
Resolution Passed 

Note: T2 Capital Management, LLC letter is attached as Exhibit A .. Dearborn Captial letter is attached as 
Exhibit B. Agreement between City of Pontiac and Dearborn Capital Partners, LLC is attached as Exhibit 
C. 

Public Comment - None 

Adjournment 
Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 10:26 a.m. 

GARLAND S DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 



Exhibit A 

November 20, 2020 

CAPITAL 
IvIANAGEMENT 

The Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
C/0 Matthew Gibb 

via Email lgiblaw@hotmail.com 

33 N Saginaw 
Pontiac, Ml 48232 

Re: 31 Judson and 51111 Woodward. Pontiac. Ml 48232 
Acquisition Financing for Ottawa Towers I/ II 

Dear Matt. 

On behalf of T2 Capital Management, LLC ("T2"), I am thankful to offer this Letter of Intent ("LOI") to 
provide financing to facilitate the purchase of the above referenced property ("Loan"). The Loan Is secured 
by the property and improvements located at 31 Judson and 51111 Woodward, Pontiac, Ml ("Property). It is 
understood that the property consists of two 9-story office buildings containing approximately 425,000 sf. 

This LOI is presented as an expression of interest and is not to be construed as a formal commitment. Upon 
your acceptance of this LOI, T2 will complete its due diligence and seek to provide a formal commitment 
and/or loan documents shortly thereafter. The following outlines the general terms of T2's proposed 
financing: 

Borrower: 

Loan amount: 

Funding: 

A to-be-formed SPE in form and substance acceptable to Lender ("Borrower") 

Capped at the lesser of (i) $6,300,000, (ii) 35% Loan-to-Cost, (iii) 50% Loan-to
Value or (iv) Debt Yield not-less-than 12.0% 

Borrower shall contribute $6,800,000 in equity. 

Among other customary conditions precedent to closing T2's loan, the following 
shall have been satisfied, each in form and substance acceptable to Lender: 

1. Opinion of legal counsel that the City of Pontiac can borrow and guaranty debt 
to facilitate the proposed acquisition 

2. Receipt and review of financial statements for the City of Pontiac 

3. Receipt and review of any and all documentation related to the Seller financing 

4. Receipt and review of any and all documentation related to the proposed land 
contract sale to Dearborn Capital Partners 

5. Receipt and review of the lease between The City of Pontiac and Dearborn 
Capital Partners for the Phoenix Center Parking Garage 

Page 1 of 4 



Term: 

Repayment: 

Interest Rate: 

Up-front points: 

Deferred points: 

Minimum Interest: 

Collateral: 

Recourse: 

Title Insurance: 

Flood Insurance: 

CAP ITAL 
MAN AG EM ENT" 

6. The property must be in compliance with all municipal codes and without ·any 
outstanding nor known pending violations 

7. Review and approval of all applicable Lease Agreements 

8. Review and approval of bank statements, and supporting historical financial 

statements/ rent roll applicable to the subject property 

9. Review and approval of the CapEx and Tl/LC budget applicable to the subject 

property 

10. Receipt and approval all customary due diligence items Including, but not 
limited to (i) Title Commitment for a Lenders Loan Policy, (ii) ALTA survey(s), 
(iii) environmental report(s), (iv) current zoning, (v) Easement Agreement(s), 
(vi) appraisal, (vii) property condition report, (viii) organizational documents, 
and (Ix) financial statements and tax returns for all guarantors 

Twelve months from the date of close 

Interest-only will be payable on the outstanding loan balance each month that the 
loan remains outstanding 

Prime Rate plus 6. 75%, floating with a floor of 10.0% 

$63,000 (1%) will be paid to T2 at closing 

Regardless of when the loan is repaid, $126,000 (2%) in deferred points are to be 
paid to Lender at the earlier of loan maturity or payoff of the loan 

A minimum of $315,000 in interest must have been paid to T2 prior to payoff of the 

loan. To the extent that the loan is slated to be paid off prior to T2 having received 
less than $315,000 in interest, the difference is to be paid to T2 at payoff 

pt mortgage on the subject property and assignment of all rents, leases, UCCs, 
management agreements, licenses, etc. 

Full joint and several recourse to the City of Pontiac, Bob Waun and Brien Wloch 

T2 is to receive acceptable title Insurance at closing. The policy is to include mechanic's 
lien coverage, a survey, location and access endorsements, and any other 
endorsements required by T2 

The survey is to contain certification that the subject property Is not located within a 
designated flood hazard area. If the subject property is located within .a flood hazard 
area and T2 elects to go forward with the loan, acceptable flood insurance must be 
Issued at closing. 

Page 2 of 4 



Taxes: 

Insurance: 

Appraisal: 

'T' CAPITAL 
I MANAGEMENT' 

Property taxes applicable to the subject property must be paid current throughout the 
time that T2's loan remains outstanding. Such taxes are expected to be paid out of 
the property tax escrow 

The subject property and any applicable construction work must be adequately 
insured as approved by T2 throughout the time that T2's loan remains outstanding. 
Property insurance is expected to be paid out of the insurance escrow. 

Lender will order a FIRREA compliant appraisal. The loan will be subject to L 1V 
covenant not to exceed 50%. 

Leverage: Beyond Lenders proposed loan, no leverage is permitted to encumber any portion of 
Lenders collateral. 

Reporting: Borrower is to provide a Rent Roll of the subject property as well as its financials (i.e. 
P&L, Balance Sheet, etc.) to T2 on a quarterly basis by no later than 30 days from the 
calendar quarter-end (i.e. March 31 reports are to be provided to T2 by no later than 
April 30). 

Financial Covenants: Borrower is to maintain: 

Special Condition: 

Loan syndication: 

Earnest Deposit: 

Expenses: 

Broker: 

Closing date: 

• A Debt Yield of at least 9.0% 
• A DSCR of at least l.30x (NOI/T2's prevailing debt service on annualized basis) 

Dearborn Capital Partner and The City of Pontiac wiil be co-borrowers 

Lender reserves the right to syndicate and/or sell part of the proposed Loan. While 
the Loan is not subject to such syndication or Loan sale, Borrower agrees to cooperate 
with Lender as it relates to any efforts toward that end 

Upon acceptance of this LOI, Borrower is to pay T2 a $50,000 earnest deposit. 
("EMD"). The EMD is to be wired to T2 (wiring instructions on the following page) 
and will be credited against the up-front points at closing. If closing does not 
materialize, $10,000 will be retained by T2, with the balance refunded to Borrower, 
less any costs incurred by T2 in its conducting due diligence (i.e. legal, 3 rd party reports, 
travel, etc.) 

All expenses incurred by T2 to affect this transaction shall be borne by Borrower. 
These costs may be covered via loan proceeds and include but not limited to legal 
fees, title fees, 3rd party reports, travel, etc. 

T2 and Borrower acknowledge that no broker was involved in effectuating this 
proposed transaction. 

Assuming completion of due diligence, T2 will seek to be able to close the loan by no 
later than January 4, 2021. 

Page 3 of 4 



Post-closing: 

CAP lTAL 
MA NAG EM ENT'' 

Upon consummating the proposed acquisition as outlined in this LOI, Borrower grants 
T2 the right to reference the transaction in its marketing materials (i.e. brochures, 
website, etc.). The reference may include photos of the subject property and/or written 
materials such as summaries of the transaction, testimonials, etc. 

Please remit the $50,000 EMD and sign and return this LOI to me on or before Tuesday, No\7ember 24, 2020. 

Sincerely, 

Dennis Jacobs 
Chief Credit Officer 

Cc: Jeff Brown I T2 CEO/ Co-CIO 
John Felker I T2 Co-CIO 

_______________ ,,_ ...... 

Acknowledged and Agreed on behalf of Borrower and Guarantor(s): 

Printed name: 

Signature: 

Date: 

Wiring instructions 

CIBC Bank USA 
120 S. LaSalle Street 
Chicago, IL 60603 

Routing #: 071006486 
Account#: 2690837 

Account name: 
T2 Strategic Real Estate Income Fund, LLC 

Page ,4 of 4 

', 



Exhibit B 

Dearborn Capital 
Commercial Real Estate 

November 20, 2020 

Members of Council, 

We are hopeful for your acceptance and approval of the Purchase and Sale Agreement at your November 21, 2020 
meetfog. It is important that our partnership move forward on Saturday as the time limits imposed by the Global 
Settlement Agreement are fast approaching. While we have worked to achieve several important pre-conditions, in 
order to meer the deadlines imposed in your approved settlement we do need a signed agree1nent to quickly move 
forward. 

Several concepts and questions have come to us over the course of your present consideration and we want to assure 
council of certain aspects of our proposal. We are committed to working with the City in planning a: dynamic vision 
fot the Phoenix Center, one that will benefit the el'ltite community. As part of the language in the Agreement that 
speaks to our Public Private Partnership, please know we are committed to the following: 

o Exploring the feasibility of incorporating the library or a community themed resource center into the 
complex · 

ti Enhanciilg the reach of educational and training resources to the community 
"' Collaborating in the development of other City owned assets like the Perdue School 
ei Assuring that the long-ten11 parking commitments are tied to timely and quality development of the 

Center 
'11 Adopting language that allows the City to compel progress if aspects of the redevelopment stall. 

Upon execudon of the agreement between us, we a:re ready too immediately work With the City, its staff and council, 
to finalize all the additional documents for this exciting partnership. As final assurance, we want the City to know 
that our company has a commitment to social justice and community empowerment. Dearborn Capital as an 
Exclusive Correspondent of T2 Capital Management has access. to T2's dynamic Social Impact Fund, which focuses 
on providing workforce housing on a national basis .. The fund, which was launched at the beginning of 2020 is 
currently completing two redevelopment workforce housing projects ih Florida. We intend to deploy that same 
creativity and commitment in Pontiac. The T2 team is available to meet, in person, as the situation allows, or via . 
Zoom at your convenience. 

Further, as this moves fonvard our team will coordinate resources so that residents and businesses in Pontiac have an 
open opportunity to be involved in this project. 

We look forward to working with you to move quickly to the next important step of this partnership. 

Sincerely 

~X?--4/L 
Brien Wloch 

980 North Michi.1;an S.l\ile 1620 Chiragn, fL 60(ll 1 ii Phone:. at 2.882,taOO ii 
E-Mail: hricn.wlod1@dearcapcre.rom ,vcb: dcam1p('rc.rnm 



Exhibit C 

AGREEMENT OF SALE AND PURCHASE 
OTTAWA TOWERS AND OTHER PROPERTY, PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 

THIS AGREEMENT OF SALE AND PURCHASE (the "Agreement") is made and entered into by and 
between the parties listed below as "Seller" and "Purchaser", effective as of the date Seller executes this Agreement 
(the "Effective Date"). 

1. BASIC TERMS. The following shall constitute the Basic Terms of this Agreement; 

Seller 
CITY OF PONTIAC 

47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
Attn: Deirdre Waterman 
Phone: (248) 758-3000 

Copy To: John C, Clark, Esq, 
101 W Big Beaver Rd. 
Troy, MI 48084 
Phone: (248) 457-7000 
Email: jclark@gmhlaw.com 

Purchaser 
DEARBORN CAPITAL PARTNERS, LLC, 

980 N Michigan Ave Suite 1620 
Chicago, IL 60611 
Phone: 312.882.4300 
Email: brien. w loch@dearcapcre.com 
Attn: Brien Wloch 

Copy To: William Freeman 
33 Bloomfield Hills Pkwy, Ste 100 
Bloomfield Hills, Ml 48304 
Phone: 248-724-3706 
Email: wfreeman@lfglawfirm.com 

Property/Project: That certain office buildings known as Ottawa Towers, consisting of; 

51111 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan 48342 
One (1) eight-story office building of approximately 225,303 square feet in the aggregate, 
approximately 147,303 of which is leased by the State of Michigan under four separate 
leases (the "State Lease"), and situated on Parcel ID 14-32-226-020, as more particularly 
described on Exhibit A-1 attached hereto, including the so-called "Grassy Lot", also 
described on Exhibit A-1, This property is commonly known and herein referred to as 
"Ottawa Tower I". 

31 East Judson Street, Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan 48342 
One (1) eight-story office building of approximately 207,084 square feet in the aggregate 
situated on Parcel ID 14-32-227-002, as more particularly described on Exhibit A-2 attached 
hereto. This prope1ty is commonly known and herein referred to as "Ottawa Tower II", 

1 



In addition to the following properties as described on Exhibit A-3, representing 
PINs 14-32-226-021, 14-29-484-003, 14-29-484-010, 14-32-231-009, 14-32-227-003 and 
the triangle parcel across Jackson Street from 140 S, Saginaw, 

Collectively, the property ("Property") 

Purchase Price: $7,400,000.00, which shall be paid by and from Purchaser: 

Accelerated Closing. Due to the requirement that the Global Settlement Agreement between 
the City of Pontiac and Charles Stephens must close, on or before January 4, 2021, with only 
two (2) fifteen (15) day extensions available to the City in the event of a necessary delay, 
Purchaser has agreed to the following: 

a, Purchaser's earnest money deposit of$100,000, defined below, shall be applied to 
the purchase price at closing, 

b, Purchaser shall pay an additional $300,000 in cash at Closing; 
c, The Seller shall continue to own the Property as security, 
d. The parties will enter a Land Contract providing for the payment from Purchaser to 

Seller of $7,000,000 within 12 months of the date of closing, with interest at the 
rate of3% accruing on the amount not financed pursuant to paragraph (c) below, 
and subject to any costs or charges in this Agreement 

e, The Land Contract may be paid off at any time without penalty. 
f. Purchaser shall have an equity interest in the property pursuant to the Land Contract 

and as such may use and occupy the Property during the te1m of the Land Contract, 
holding Seller harmless from any liability or action arising out of the possession and 
use of the property, All work, improvement or investment, if any, shall be 
completed at Purchasers sole risk, 

g. TO ASSURE THE CASH NECESSARY TO CLOSE THE GLOBAL 
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT the City will retain a fee simple interest in the 
Property as security for Purchasers obligations under the Land Contract and the 
parties shall commit and agree to the following; 

i. Seller and Purchaser shall act as co-borrowers and obtain a loan from 
Purchasers directly related equity fund, known as T2 Capital Management, 
secured by a mortgage on the Property in the amount of $6,300,000. 

ii. The parties will document the loan as follows: 
a) The City of Pontiac will join the mo1tgage, pledging the 

Property as collateral, and acting as a guarantor under its terms; 
b) Brien Wloch and Robe1t Waun (each a "Guarantor, and 

collectively, the "Guarantors") shall execute individual personal 
guarantees in favor of lender and upon such tenns as agreed by 
lender, and providing to lender evidence of net worth or other 
personal capital sufficient to guarantee the loan amount .. 

m. The proceeds of the loan shall be allocated such that $6,200,000 is 
dedicated to closing capital and $100,000 for all lender fees or other costs 
of securing the loan from lender 

iv. Except in an instance of default under the terms of the loan, Purchaser 
assumes responsibility for all payments or liabilities arising from the loan, 
and Purchaser shall pay the debt service on said loan. 

Earnest Money: $100,000.00, to be delivered to the Title Company (defined below) on or 
before five (5) business days after the Effective Date (defined below). Such deposit is 
referred to as the "Earnest Money". The Earnest Money is to be placed in an interest-bearing 

2 



account, the interest being the prope1ty of the palty entitled to the Earnest Money as herein 
provided, and which shall be applied to the Purchase Price at Closing. 

ATA National Title Group (Seaver Title Agency) 
c/o John Cook 
42651 Woodward Avenue 
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48304 

2. CLOSING. Closing shall occur on or before January 4, 2021 at a place and time mutually agreed upon by 
the parties, provided, however, that Purchaser may extend the Closing until February 4, 2021 by exercising 
two separate fifteen (15) day extensions, as outlined in the Global Settlement Agreement, by payment of 
additional Earnest Money in the amount of $25,000 for each extension, which shall also be applied to the 
Purchase Price at Closing. The procedure to be followed by the parties in connection with the Closing shall 
be as follows: 

a. At the Closing the Seller shall cause to be delivered to the Title Company (sometimes herein 
referred to as the "Escrow Agent") or to Purchaser, as applicable, the items specified herein and 
the following documents and instruments duly executed and acknowledged, in recordable form 
and in fo1m acceptable to Purchaser: 

i. A warranty deed (the "Deed") dated as of the Closing Date, conveying Ottawa Tower I, 
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "B", to be held in escrow pending payment of the 
Land Contract; 

ii. A warranty deed (the "Deed") dated as of the Closing Date, conveying Ottawa Tower II, 
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "B", to be held in escrow pending payment of the 
Land Contract; 

iii. An Assignment of Leases (including the Ground Leases) and Contracts and Bill of Sale, 
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "C" (the "Lease Assignment"); 

iv. Possession of the Property, subject only to the Permitted Exceptions (defined below); 
v. Seller shall submit to each Tenant under the Leases a Tenant Estoppel (herein so called) 

in the form required by Purchaser's lender and shall thereafter use commercially 
reasonable efforts to obtain an executed Tenant Estoppel from each such Tenant. Seller 
agrees to circulate with the Tenant Estoppels any SNDA form required by Purchaser's 
lender; 

vi. A certificate in such fotm as may be required by the Internal Revenue Service pursuant to 
Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the regulations 
issued pursuant thereto, certifying as to the nonforeign status of a transferor, in the form 
required by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"); and 

vii. Warranty deeds to the prope11ies described in Exhibit A-3, in the form attached as 
Exhibit D; 

viii. A form of Land Contract acceptable to the parties, in addition to a Deed Escrow 
Agreement; 

ix. Such other documents as may be required by the Title Company or either party. 

b. At the Closing, in order to assure the Sellers closing of the Global Settlement Agreement, 
Purchaser shall deliver to the Seller funds, payable to the Seller, in an amount not less than 
$6,600,000 representing that portion of the Settlement amount required by Seller to satisfy the 
Global Settlement Agreement as of January 4, 2021, or as extended,, plus or minus the prorations 
described below and applying a credit equal to the Earnest Money, and the loan amounts set forth 
above .. Purchaser shall also execute and deliver a Lease Assignment acknowledging that 
Purchaser has a§sumed all obligations of Seller and all rights thereto have transferred to Purchaser, 
holding Seller harmless from all obligations or liability attributed to such Lease Agreement(s) 
arising from and after the date of closing. 

c. Upon the completion of the deliveries specified above, the Escrow Agent shall be authorized to 
cause the appropriate closing documents to be immediately recorded in the appropriate records of 

3 



the county in which the Property is located, and shall deliver the balance of the proceeds from the 
sale to Seller, after deducting all expenses thereof or such other items as may be specified herein. 
As soon as reasonably possible after Closing, the Title Company shall cause an Owner's Title 
Policy to be issued, with the basic premium to be paid by Seller, and the premiums for extended 
coverage or endorsements required by Purchaser or its lender shall be paid by Purchaser. Seller 
and Purchaser shall also execute and deliver all documents reasonably required by the Title 
Company to consummate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement. 

3. EVIDENCE OF TITLE/ DILIGENCE. Upon execution of this Agreement, Purchaser and/or Seller, as 
the case may be, shall perform the following within the time stated, each of which shall be a condition 
precedent to Closing: 

a. As evidence oftitle, within ten (1 O) days after the Effective Date, Seller, at Seller's sole cost and 
expense, shall obtain a Commitment for Title Insurance or a Commitment to Insure, in either case 
with the standard exceptions deleted (the "Commitment") dated not earlier than the date of this 
Agreement, issued by the Title Company, showing Seller's title to the Property to be good and 
marketable, together with true, c01,ect and legible copies of all items and documents referred to 
therein. At closing, Seller shall deliver the title in its existing condition and Purchaser shall, by 
acceptance of such title, waive any objections to such title except as to wananties contained in the 
documents of conveyance, 

b. Purchaser acknowledges receipt of an additional and previously issued commitment for an 
A.L.T.A. fee owners policy of Title Insurance. This additional commitment is presented as a 
cou1tesy to Purchaser and Seller makes no representation as to its accuracy, and no policy shall be 
purchased based upon the provided commitment. 

c, Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that all environmental assessments and other third party 
rep01ts, materials, data and other information prepared by others for Seller or for any other person, 
and delivered by Seller to Purchaser or otherwise made available to Purchaser for inspection in 
connection with this transaction, are provided to Purchaser as a comtesy and convenience only and 
Seller expressly disclaims all representations and warranties of every kind concerning such third 
party repo1ts. Any reliance on or use of such materials, data or info1mation by Purchaser or any 
other person shall be at the sole risk of Purchaser or such other person, and further, Purchaser 
acknowledges and agrees that such reliance may be expressly prohibited by the preparer thereof. 

d. Within five (5) days after the Effective Date, Seller will deliver, or make available, to Purchaser 
all non-proprietary documents pertaining to the Property in Seller's possession, including without 
limitation the following: 

i. Copies of all leases pertaining to the Property; 
ii. Certified Rent Rolls for all of the Prope1ty that is leased; 
iii. Operating statements for all Property for 2017, 2018, 2019 and trailing 12 months; 
iv. Breakdown ofDropbox spreadsheet showing expenses of$623,700; 
v, All Service Contracts; 
vi. All prior title commitments or policies for the Property; 
vii. All surveys of the Property; 
viii. All Engineering and Environmental reports for the Property; 
ix. All Stacking plans for the Property; 
x. 12 months of all utility bills for the Prope1ty; 
xi. All prope1ty tax bills for the Property since and including 2019; 
xii. All Security Deposit records for the Property; 
xiii. A site plan which includes all Property for potential future development; 
xiv. The Phoenix Center Engineering Study 

4 



e. Purchaser shall have the right to perform any and all inspections or studies of the Property which 
Purchaser may desire, up to the date of Closing, including but not limited to a physical and 
mechanical inspection of the Property, a feasibility study of the Property, interviews with tenants 
of the Property and an inspection of all books and records and financial information pertaining 
thereto (the "Inspection Period"). A representative of Seller shall be entitled to be present during 
all such inspections .. Purchaser shall be responsible for any and all losses, damages, charges and 
other costs associated with such inspections and studies, and Purchaser covenants and agrees to 
repair any damage to the Property caused by such inspections and studies. Purchaser agrees not to 
allow any liens to arise against the Property as a result of such inspections and studies and agrees 
to indemnify and hold Seller harmless from and against any and all claims, charges, actions, costs, 
suits, damages, injuries, or other liabilities which arise, either directly or indirectly, from 
Purchaser's or its agent's or employee's entry onto the Property prior to Closing, unless said 
liabilities are the result of the negligence or misdeeds of Seller. This indemnity shall survive 
Closing or a termination of this Agreement by Purchaser. 

4. "AS~IS" SALE"; SELLER REPRESENTATION 

a. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES 
AND AGREES THAT SELLER HAS NOT MADE, DOES NOT MAKE AND 
SPECIFICALLY NEGATES AND DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATIONS, 
WARRANTIES (OTHER THAN THE SPECIAL WARRANTY OF TITLE AS SET OUT 
IN THE DEED) PROMISES, COVENANTS, AGREEMENTS OR GUARANTIES OF ANY 
KIND OR CHARACTER WHATSOEVER, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ORAL 
OR WRITTEN, PAST, PRESENT, OR FUTURE, OF, AS TO, CONCERNING OR WITH 
RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, (1) THE 
WATER, SOIL AND GEOLOGY; (2) THE INCOME TO BE DERIVED FROM THE 
PROPERTY; (3) THE SUITABILITY OF THE PROPERTY FOR ANY AND ALL 
ACTIVITIES AND USES WHICH PURCHASER MAY CONDUCT THEREON; (4) THE 
COMPLIANCE OF OR BY THE PROPERTY OF ITS OPERATION WITH ANY LAWS, 
RULES, ORDINANCES OR REGULATIONS OF ANY APPLICABLE 
GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY OR BODY; (5) THE HABITABILITY, 
MERCHANTABILITY, MARKET ABILITY, PROFITABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF THE PROPERTY; OR (6) ANY OTHER MATTER WITH 
RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY. PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES SELLER HAS NOT 
MADE DOES NOT MAKE AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY 
REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH ANY ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION, POLLUTION OR LAND USES LAWS, REGULATIONS, ORDERS OR 
REQUIREMENTS, INCLUDING THE EXISTENCE IN OR ON THE PROPERTY OF 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. PURCHASER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND 
AGREES THAT HA YING BEEN GIVEN THE OPPORTUNITY TO INSPECT THE 
PROPERTY DURING THE REVIEW PERIOD, PURCHASER IS RELYING SOLELY 
ON ITS OWN INVESTIGATION OF THE PROPERTY AND NOT ON ANY 
INFORMATION PROVIDED OR TO BE PROVIDED BY SELLER AND AT CLOSING 
AGREES TO ACCEPT THE PROPERTY AND WAIVES ALL OBJECTIONS AGAINST 
SELLER ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THE PROPERTY OR TO ANY 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ON THE PROPERTY. PURCHASER FURTHER 
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED 
BYLAW, THE SALE OF THE PROPERTY AS PROVIDED FOR HEREIN IS MADE ON 
AN "AS IS" CONDITION AND BASIS WITH ALL FAULTS. IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND 
AGREED THAT THE PURCHASE PRICE HAS BEEN NEGOTIATED BASED ON THE 
FACT THAT THE PROPERTY IS SOLD BY SELLER AND PURCHASED BY 
PURCHASER SUBJECT TO THE FOREGOING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS 
PARAGRAPH SHALL SURVIVE THE CLOSING IN PERPETUITY. 

5 



b. Seller makes the following representations as of the Effective Date and as of the Closing Date: 

i. To the best of Seller's knowledge, Seller has received no notice advising Seller of its 
violation of a law, governmental ordinance, order or regulation relating to the Property. 
Seller agrees to provide Purchaser with copies of any such notices it receives following 
the date hereof. 

ii. After the date hereof, Seller agrees to operate the Project in the ordinary course of 
business, and perform all of its obligations under the leases, Ground Leases and service 
contracts, including maintenance until Closing. Seller shall not enter into any new leases 
or agreements affecting the Property without the prior written consent of Purchaser, not 
to be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. Seller shall promptly provide to 
Purchaser copies of any leases or agreements executed prior to the expiration of the 
Review Period. Seller shall provide Purchaser with monthly rent rolls and tenant reports 
generated after the Effective Date, as well as copies of all notices received from or sent to 
tenants and Ground Lease Landlords. 

iii. Seller has the full right and authority and has obtained any and all consents required to 
enter into this Agreement and to consummate or cause to be consummated the 
transactions contemplated hereby. This Agreement has been, and all of the documents to 
be delivered by Seller at the Closing will be, authorized and properly executed and 
constitutes, or will constitute, as appropriate, the valid and binding obligation of each 
Seller, enforceable in accordance with their terms. 

iv. Purchaser acknowledges receipt of the Global Settlement Agreement between the City of 
Pontiac and the present owners of Ottawa Towers. Other than the Global Settlement 
Agreement, there is no other agreement to which a Seller is a party or to Sellers' 
knowledge binding on Seller which is in conflict with this Agreement. Seller agrees to 
obtain all due diligence items required by Purchaser above as part of the Global 
Settlement Agreement or such other means as are necessary. There is no action or 
proceeding pending or, to Sellers' knowledge, threatened against Seller or the Property, 
including condemnation proceedings, which challenges or impairs either Seller's ability 
to execute or perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

v. The Rent Roll, leases, operating statements and the service contracts provided to 
Purchaser are true, complete and accurate and do not omit any material matter. 

vi. All of Seller's representations contained above shall survive the execution and delivery of 
the Deed and shall survive the Closing hereof for a period of six (6) months. 

5. PRORATIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

a. It is intended that the closing of this Agreement shall occur currently with the closing of the 
Global Settlement, as such, there may be no proration as contemplated in this paragraph 5.a. as 
these amounts would be properly accounted and prorated in the closing of the Global settlement. 
If, however, such closing is not concurrent, or there remain additional amounts as outlined I this 
paragraphs 5.a., the parties agree as follows: Collected rents (including CAM payments), 
operating expenses, ad valorem taxes on the Property and personal prope1iy taxes for the tax year 
in which the Closing occurs, and utility charges shall be prorated at the Closing, effective as of the 
Closing Date with Purchaser receiving the rents and paying the expenses for the date of Closing. 
Delinquent rents collected by Purchaser or Seller after Closing shall be first delivered to Purchaser 
and applied to any amounts due Purchaser by any such tenant, and next delivered to Seller. If 
current ad valorem tax assessments are unavailable at Closing, said ad valorem taxes shall be 
adjusted based on tax assessments for the immediately preceding tax year, with said tax proration 
to be adjusted in cash between the parties, based on actual taxes for the cmTent year, at the time 
such actual taxes are determined; provided, however, all special tax assessments made by any 
taxing authority with respect to the Property shall be the sole responsibility of Seller and shall be 
paid by Seller at Closing. Purchaser shall receive a credit for tenant security deposits that are not 
yet forfeited or due to be refunded to tenants of the Property. Seller and Purchaser shall consult 

6 



and cooperate with each other concerning the billing and collection of operating expenses for 
calendar year of Closing from the tenants. When collected, such operating expenses shall be 
prorated as of the Closing Date and the prorated portion paid to the other party by the party 
receiving such payments, Insurance costs shall not be prorated. 

b. To the best of Sellers knowledge, disclaiming all representation thereto, there are no Tenant and/or 
related landlord improvement expenses, lease commissions, tenant allowances and other out-of
pocket costs related to tenant improvements. , 

c. Seller is an exempt organization under Michigan law for purposes of transfer tax and other closmg 
cost, as such all deed and transfer taxes and any deed recording fees are exempt. All escrow costs 
shall be shared equally. All other closing costs shall be allocated in accordance with local 
practices in Oakland County, Michigan. 

d. Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold Seller harmless from any and all liabilities, claims, 
demands, suits, and judgments, of any kind or nature, including comt costs and reasonable 
attorney fees ( except those items which under the terms of this Agreement specifically become the 
obligation of Seller), brought by third parties and based on events occurring after the Closing and 
which are in any way related to the Property. Seller agrees to indemnify and hold Purchaser 
harmless from any and all liabilities, claims, demands, suits, and judgments, of any kind or nature, 
including court costs and reasonable attorney fees, brought by third parties and based on events 
occun'ing before the Closing and which are in any way related to the Property 

6. PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP. At Closing, Seller and Purchaser shall enter into a Public-Private 
Partnership (PPP) Agreement for the Phoenix Center. The parties intend that the PPP will provide 
Purchaser exclusive use of the parking structure to support the commercial demands of the Property, but 
also allow for shared parking for the Property and for the Phoenix Plaza/Amphitheater when restored and 
opened or use by Seller. Purchaser's grant of perpetual access to and use all of the parking areas in the 
Phoenix Center is in exchange for Purchaser's agreement to repair, maintain and operate said parking areas. 
The terms of the Public Private Partnership that grant access and control of the parking areas shall be 
contained in a Master Ground Lease from Seller of said parking areas for an initial te1m of twelve (12) 
months, or as shortened by the early payoff and satisfaction of the Land Contract by Purchaser, Upon 
satisfaction of the Land Contract, the Master Ground Lease shall be concurrently extended for a 50-year 
term, with five (5) ten year options to extend said lease, all at a rental rate of $1.00 per year. Seller shall 
have exclusive control of the roof and plaza of the Phoenix Center and shall at its own expense maintain, 
repair and exercise control over the Phoenix Center roof, plaza and its access elements, Seller shall assign 
all property and development rights in any manner related to the Property and Phoenix Center including, 
without limitation, the two developable building pads on the roof of the Phoenix Center, Seller shall 
support research and application for cettain available local, state and federal incentives to support the 
redevelopment of the Phoenix Center and the Property, including all adjacent parcels and building sites. 
Examples of potential incentives for the property may include, without limitation, an application for a 12 
year OPRA Agreement, a Brownfield TIF Redevelopment Agreement, and/or such grant funds as may be 
available to create a park-like setting with the amphitheater. It is the parties intent to mutually agree upon 
the design and planning standards for the Phoenix Center, with elements that may be in a form set forth in 
"The CNU Plan of 2017", or the "Moving Pontiac Forward Plan". Any final development plan for the 
property shall include input from the City, its Council and officials. 

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY CONTAINED IN THIS PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT, THE COMMITMENT(S) TO BE PROVIDED TO PURCHASER UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT OR THE ITEMS OF RECORD DISCLOSED IN THE COMMITMENT{S}, PURCHASER 
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT SELLER, FOLLOWING ITS ACQUISITION OF TITLE TO THE 
OTTAWA TOWER I, THE GRASSY LOT AND OTTAWA TOWER JI (THE "PROPERTY") AND PRIOR 
TO THE CONVEYANCE OF THE PROPERTY TO PURCHASER HEREUNDER, THAT THE SELLER 
SHALL EXTINGUISH, TERMINATE, CANCEL AND/OR DISCHARGE ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTS, 
EASEMENTS AND LICENSES WHICH PERMIT OR AUTHORIZE THE USE OF THE PHOENIX CENTER 
PARKING GARAGE FOR PARKING PURPOSES OR ANY OTHER PURPOSE. PURCHASER 
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT IT IS PURCHASING THE PROPERTY WITHOUT ANY 

7 



EASEMENT OR LICENSE TO UTILIZE THE PHOENIX CENTER FOR ANY PURPOSE WHATSOEVER 
OTHER THAN AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

a. The Seller and Purchaser shall commence final drafting of the Master Ground Lease and Public 
Private Partnership Agreement within five (5) days of the date hereof, and in that process include 
representative input from members of the City Administration and Council. 

b. The Letter from Dearborn Capital, dated and signed on November 20, 2020, is incorporated herein 
by reference. 

7. COMMISSIONS The parties acknowledge and shall be responsible for the payment of a real estate 
commission arising out of this transaction in the amount of$296,000.00 payable to Dirt Realty, LLC, as set 
forth above. The commission represents 4% of the purchase price which is assigned as follows: Seller shall 
pay 2.9% and Purchaser shall pay 1.1% of the 4% total commission upon satisfaction of the Land Contact. 
Purchaser and Seller do hereby represent and warrant that, other than the commission claim of Dirt Realty, 
LLC, it its officers, employees and agents, they have not contracted for any such real estate commissions, 
nor have they, without knowledge of the other party, contacted real estate agents or brokers, nor have they, 
without the other party's knowledge, acted in a manner so as to give rise to a claim for such real estate 
commissions or similar fees. Purchaser and Seller do hereby agree to indemnify the other party against and 
hold the other party hannless from any and all such real estate commissions, claims for such commissions 
or similar fees, including attorneys' fees incurred in any lawsuit regarding such commissions or fees 
claimed by persons by or through Seller or Purchaser, as the case may be, The provisions of this paragraph 
shall survive Closing. 

8. RISK OF LOSS Risk ofloss until the Closing shall be borne by Seller. In the event that damage, loss or 
destruction of the Property or any part thereof, by fire or other casualty, including an environmental 
casualty, or through condemnation or sale in lieu thereof, occurs prior to the actual closing of the 
transactions contemplated hereby, the extent of such damage or taking involving more than $1,000,000, the 
Purchaser shall, at its option, elect one of the following: 

a. To tenninate this Agreement and receive an immediate refund of all Earnest Money previously 
deposited, 

b. To close the transactions contemplated hereby and take an assignment of and receive in cash all 
insurance or condemnation proceeds payable as a result of such casualty loss or condemnation, 
and receive a credit in the amount of any deductible applicable to such insurance coverage, or, if 
such proceeds are not made available by the holder or holders of any indebtedness secured by liens 
against the Property, to receive a credit against the Purchase Price (applied first against the cash 
portion thereof due at Closing) in the amount of such casualty loss or condemnation proceeds 
together with any deductible amount applicable thereto. 

9. TERMINATION AND DEFAULT 

a. Purchaser acknowledges that the failure of Purchaser to complete the closing hereunder shall 
cause significant and irreparable damage to the Seller, As such, if Seller is not then in default in its 
obligations or agreements and Purchaser fails to close the transaction contemplated hereby, Seller 
shall be entitled to receive the Earnest Money or Seller may seek specific performance of this 
agreement. 

b. In the event that any of the Seller's representations or warranties contained herein are untrue or if 
Seller shall have failed to have performed any of the covenants and/or agreements contained 
herein which are to be performed by Seller, or if any of the conditions precedent to Purchaser's 
obligation to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby shall have failed to occur, 
Purchaser may, at its option, tenninate this Agreement by gjving written notice of termination to 
Seller and receive a full and immediate refund of any and all Earnest Money previously deposited 
as its remedy or Purchaser may seek specific performance of this agreement. 

8 

--------------,---- .------· ··--



10. NOTICES Any notice, request, demand, instruction or other communication to be given to either party 
hereunder, except those required to be delivered at Closing, shall be in writing, and shall be deemed to be 
given upon receipt, if hand delivered or delivered by express delivery service, or two (2) days after deposit 
of such notice in registered or certified mail, return receipt requested (provided that any notice of 
tennination shall be effective immediately upon deposit in registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested), addressed to the parties at the address provided in Article 1. 

11. MISCELLANEOUS 

a. Entire Agreement. THIS AGREEMENT AND THE EXHIBITS ATTACHED HERETO 
CONTAIN THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES, AND NO 
PROMISE, REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR COVENANT NOT INCLUDED IN THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY SUCH REFERENCED AGREEMENTS HAS BEEN OR IS RELIED 
UPON BY EITHER PARTY. 

b, No Oral Modification. NO MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT OF THIS AGREEMENT 
SHALL BE OF ANY FORCE OR EFFECT UNLESS MADE IN WRITING AND EXECUTED 
BY BOTH PURCHASER AND SELLER. 

c. Choice of Law and Venue. In the event that any litigation arises hereunder, it is specifically 
stipulated that this Agreement shall be interpreted and construed according to the laws of the State 
of Michigan, and shall be performable in Oakland County, Michigan. 

d. Attorneys' Fees, The prevailing party in any litigation between the parties arising under this 
Agreement shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees. 

e. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterpa1ts which together 
shall constitute the agreement of the parties. The article headings herein contained are for purposes 
of identification only and shall not be considered in construing this Agreement. 

f. Assignment. This Agreement, and the rights and obligations hereunder, may not be assigned by 
Purchaser without the written consent of the Seller, which consent shall not unreasonably be 
withheld, and further provided that Purchaser may assign to any entity a majority of which is 
owned by Purchaser . 

g. Date of Agreement. All references in this Agreement to "the date hereof," "Effective Date", or 
similar references shall be deemed to refer to the date the Escrow Agent provides the parties with 
a written receipt of a fully executed counterpa1t of this Agreement. 

h. Parties Bound. This Agreement and the terms and provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of 
and be binding upon the pa1ties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns whenever the context so requires or admits. 

i. Enforceability. If any provisions of this Agreement'are held to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable under present or future Jaws, such provisions shall be fully severable, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid.or unenforceable provision 
had never comprised a part of this Agreement, and the remaining provisions of this Agreement 
shall remain in full force imd effect and not be affected by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable 
provision or by its severance from this Agreement, provided that both parties hereto may still 
effectively realize the complete benefit of the transaction contemplated hereby. 

j. Confidentiality. This Agreement and all of the te1ms and provisions hereof are confidential. 
Purchaser and Seller agree to keep confidential (and shall use their best efforts to cause their 
agents, employees and brokers to keep confidential) all disc.ussions of this Agreement, the 
proposed acquisition, all documents and materials delivered pursuant to this Agreement, except for 
necessary disclosure to pmtners, employees, accountants, attorneys, brokers, potential investors, 
lenders and consultants of the parties hereto. No public announcements concerning this 
Agreement or the trans.action contemplated herei.n shall be made by either party without the 
mutual consent of the parties. SPECIFICALLY, SELLER SHALL KEEP THE PURCHASE 
PRICE AND THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT STRICTLY CONFIDENTIAL. 

9 



[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

SELLER: 
CITY OF PONTIAC 

By: : Deirdre Waterman 

Date: 

PURCHASER: 
DEARBORN CAPITAL PARTNERS, LLC, on behalf on 
an entity to be formed. 

By: Brien Wloch 

Date: November 29, 2020 

ACCEPTANCE BY TITLE COMP ANY 

The undersigned title company; AT A National Title Group (Seaver Title Agency) referred to in the foregoing 
Contract as the "Title Company", hereby acknowledges receipt of a fully executed copy (or executed counterparts) 
of the foregoing Contract and accepts the obligations of the Title Company as set forth in such Contract. 

By: 

Its: 
Date: 

10 



EXHIBIT A-1 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT PREMISES 

"Ottawa Tower I" or "Woodward Parcel", being Tax Parcel 14-32-226-020: 

All or parts of the following Lots and parcels in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan: 
Lot numbers 5, 6, 7, 8, 10 and 11, ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 65, as recorded in Liber lA on Page 
65 of Plats, Oakland County Records and Lot numbers 31 through 39, inclusive, ASSESSOR'S 
PLAT NO. 114, as recorded in Liber 53 on Page 9 of Plats, Oakland County Records, and part of 
Lot 7 of SUBDIVISION OF OUTLOTS 18, 22 AND 23 in the Southeast 1/4 of Section 29, Town 
3 North, Range 10 East, City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber I on 
Page 3 of Plats, Oakland County Records, (shown as Detroit Grand Haven & Milwaukee Railroad, 
excepted from Assessors Plat No. 114), also vacated Dawson Alley, all the aforementioned being 
more particularly described as follows: Beginning at a point located Northerly 79.00 feet along the 
Easterly Right of Way line of Saginaw Street and South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds West 
249.58 feet along the Northerly Right of Way line of proposed Judson Street from the Northwest 
comer of Lot 16 of Assessor's Plat No. 130, as record.ed in Liber 54A of Plats on Page 71, Oakland 
County Records; thence South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds West 108.89 feet, along the 
Northerly Right of Way line of proposed Judson Street; thence North 31 degrees 27 minutes 19 
seconds West 451.91 feet along the Easterly Right of Way line of West Wide Track to a point on 
the South Right of Way line ofrevised Orchard Lake A venue; thence along the said Orchard Lake 
Right of Way line North 88 degrees 47 minutes 56 seconds East 25.00 feet and North 75 degrees 
47 minutes 56 seconds East 173.34 feet to the beginning of a curve, along the arc of said curve to 
the right 51.05 feet (Delta= 13 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds, Radius = 225.00 feet, Chord 
bearing and distance North 82 degrees 17 minutes 56 seconds East 50.94 feet) and North 88 
degrees 47 minutes 56 seconds East, 48.06 feet; thence South 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds 
East, 66.56 feet; thence South 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds West, 54.58 feet; thence South 
14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds East, 341.81 feet to the point of beginning, known as Parcel 'F'. 
This description being parts of Urban Renewal Project Area R-44 and Urban Renewal Project Area 
R-20. ALSO described as: Assessors Plat No. 65, Sections 29 and 32, Town 3 North, Range 10 
East, City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, Part of Lots 5 through 8 inclusive, Part of Lots 
10 and 11, ALSO Part of vacated Dawson Alley, ALSO part of Lots 31 through 39, inclusive, of 
ASSESSORS PLAT NO. 114, ALSO Part of Lot 7 of Subdivision of Outlots 18, 22 and 23 in 
Southeast 1/4 of Section 29, ALSO Part of Northeast 1/4 of Section 32 adjacent to Lot 5 of 
Assessor's Plat No. 65, all described as: Beginning at point distant North 14 degrees 22 minutes 
45 seconds West 79.00 feet and South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds West 249.58 feet from 
Northwest corner of Lot 16 of Assessors Plat No. 130; thence South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 
seconds West 108.89 feet; thence North 31 degrees 27 minutes 19 seconds West 451.91 feet; 
thence North 88 degrees 47 minutes 56 seconds East 25.00 feet; thence North 75 degrees 47 
minutes 56 seconds East 173.34 feet; thence along curve to right, Radius 225.00 feet, Chord bears 
North 82 degrees 17 minutes 5 6 seconds East 5 0. 94 feet, Distance of 51. 0 5 feet, thence North 8 8 
degrees 47 minutes 56 seconds East 48.06 feet; thence South 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds 
East 66.56 feet; thence South 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds West 54.58 feet; thence South 14 
degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds East 341.81 feet to beginning, 

11 



Grassy Lot" aka "Vacant Lot", being Tax Parcel 14-32-226-021: 

Part of Lots 4, 8, 9, 10 and 11, including part of vacated Dawson Alley, of ASSESSOR'S PLAT 
NO. 65, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 1 of Assessor's Plats, page 65, Oakland 
County Records, all described as: Commencing at the Northwest corner of Lot 16, of ASSESSORS 
PLAT NO. 130 A REPLAT OF ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 64, CRAWFORD'S ADDITION AND 
SUBDIVISION OF OUTLOT 6, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 54A of Plats, 
page 71, Oakland County Records; thence Northerly along the Easterly right-of-way line of 
Saginaw Street 79.00 feet to a point on the Northerly right-of-way line of proposed Judson Street; 
thence South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds West, 96.55 feet to the Point of Beginning at the 
intersection of the Northerly right-of-way line of proposed Judson Street (79 feet wide) and the 
Westerly right-of-way line of Saginaw Street; thence continuing South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 
seconds West, 153.03 feet to a point; thence North 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds West, 144.81 
feet to a point; thence North 75 .degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East, 153.93 feet to a point on the 
Westerly right-of-way line of Saginaw Street; thence South 14 degrees 10 minutes 39 seconds 
East, 144.72 feet along said right-of-way line to the Point of Beginning. 

12 



EXHIBIT A-2 

"Ottawa Tower II" aka "Judson Parcel", being Tax Parcel 14-32-227-002: 

All or parts of Lots 1 through 8, both inclusive, 14, 15 and part of vacated Auburn A venue, 
ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 130 A REPLAT OF ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 64, CRAWFORD'S 
ADDITION, AND SUBDIVISION OF OUTLOT NO. 6 IN THE N.E. ¼ SEC. 32, according to 
the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 54A of Plats, page 71, Oakland County Records, described 
as: Beginning at a point located Northerly 79.00 feet along the Easterly right of way line of 
Saginaw Street from the Northwest corner of Lot 16 of said Assessor's Plat No. 130, said Point of 
Beginning also being on the North right of way line of new Judson Street; thence North 14 degrees 
30 minutes 01 seconds West, 144.67 feet; thence North 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East, 
128.00 feet; thence North 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds West, 2.42 feet; thence North 75 
degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East, 64.00 feet; thence South 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds 
East, 2.42 feet; thence North 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East, 124.91 feet; thence South 14 
degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds East, 181. 79 feet to a point on the Northerly right of way line of 
Judson Street; thence along said Judson Street right of way line, North 85 degrees 36 minutes 10 
seconds West, 6.48 feet to the beginning of a curve; thence along a curve to the left 214.75 feet, 
said curve having a radius of 648.70 feet, delta of 18 degrees 58 minutes 04 seconds, chord bearing 
and distance of South 84 degrees 54 minutes 44 seconds West, 213.77 feet; thence South 75 
degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds West, 100.00 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Together with the right to the use of the following land in accordance with a License Agreement 
as granted by Pontiac City Commission meeting December 4, 1979, Resolution No. 738 to 
Downtown Pontiac Development Company, recorded in Liber 7788, Page 142, as more clearly 
described, limited and defined as; A parcel of land being part of the Saginaw Street right of way 
adjacent to Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Assessor's Plat No. 130, as recorded in Liber 54A, Page 71, 
Oakland County Records, more particularly described as follows: Beginning at a point located 
Northerly 79.00 feet along the Easterly right of way line of Saginaw Street from the Northwest 
comer of Lot No. 16 of Assessor's Plat No. 130, in the Northeast¼ of Section 32, City of Pontiac, 
Oakland County, Michigan, said point of beginning also being a point on the North right of way 
line of new Judson Street; thence North 14 degrees 30 minutes 01 seconds West 144.67 feet; thence· 
South 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds West 15.09 feet to a point; thence South 14 degrees 32 
minutes 05 seconds East 144.68 feet to a point; thence North 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds 
East 15.00 feet to the point of beginning. 

13 



EXHIBIT A-3 

Legal Description for Additional Partial Lots 

Legal Descriptions for the following Parcels shall be incorporated at closing, as reviewed and 
approved in the final closing documents. 

14-32-226-021 14-29-484-003 14-29-484-010 14-32-231-009 14-32-227-003 and 
' ' ' ' the triangle parcel across Jackson Street from 140 S. Saginaw 

14 



EXHIBITB 

To Be Completed by the Parties 

15 



EXHIBIT C 

To_ Be Completed by the Parties 

16 



EXHIBITD 

To Be Completed by the Parties 

17 



#2 

MINUTES 
1-5-21 



January 5, 2021 Formal 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

2ost1• Session of the Tenth Council 

A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order electronically, on 
Tuesday January 5, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Invocation - Councilperson Doris Taylor-Burks 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 
Members Present: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, and Williams. 
Members Absent: None 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

Approval of the Agenda 
20-593 Motion to approve the agenda. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by 
Councilperson Miller 

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, & Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Approval of the Minutes 
20-594 Motion to approve the meeting minutes for December 29, 2020. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila & Shramski 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Special Presentations 

Status of Medical Marihuana applications review procedures; Attorney opinions regarding existing for 
Special Exemption Permit which renders unnecessary another ordinance amendment, status of Medical 
Marihuana line item expenditures 
Presentation Presenters: Mayor Waterman and Matt Gibb, Esq, Special Counsel for Economic 
Development 

City Clerk's Response to the Continuation of Mayor Waterman, Attorney Chubb and Attorney Matt Gibb 
Conflicting Opinions and Distributing Inaccurate Information about the Medical Marihuana Review 
Process 
Presentation Presenter: Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

1 



January 5, 2021 Formal 

Recognition of Elected Officials - None 

Agenda Address - None 

Resolution 
City Council 
20-595 Resolution for Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT). Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac received a request from the Michigan Department of Transportation to 
perform a road diet on Perry Street (I-75 Business Loop), effectively taking the roadway from a five-lane 
section to a three-lane section; and, 
WHEREAS, this change was created for the purpose of creating a safer environment for both motorists, 
bicyclists and pedestrians and only consisted of pavement markings; and, 
WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council passed a resolution authorizing the Michigan Department of 
Transportation (MDOT) Transportation to perform the road diet on Perry Street (l-75 Business Loop) for 
a six-month trial period (November 2018 to April 2019); and, 
WHEREAS, Council adamantly expressed that it is in the best interest of the City to end the road diet on 
Perry Street (-75 Business Loop) and consequently passed a resolution on June 11, 2019 authorizing the 
Michigan Department of Transportation to, discontinue the road diet on Perry Street (I-75 Business Loop), 
remove the pavement markings and return the roadway back to a five-lane section; and, 
WHEREAS, to date, Perry Street has remained unchanged; and, 
WHEREAS, at the request of Council, DPW prepared an estimate of the cost for the City to perform the 
work of reverting Perry Street back to its original configuration; and, 
WHEREAS, in a City of Pontiac Official Memorandum from Abdul Siddiqui, PE City Engineer, dated 
December 23, 2020 addressed to the Honorable City Council President Williams and City Council 
Members, Mr. Siddiqui stated that in order for the City to perform the work through its own contractor, the 
City will be required to apply for and obtain a permit from MDOT. Further, based on the email from 
MDOT' s Oakland TSC Manager, it was explained that it may not be clear to the TSC Manager that the City 
would be paying for the project though its own funds; and, 
WHEREAS, the estimate was prepared and attached to the Memorandum. The total estimated cost is 
$115,000.00 which includes estimated construction cost of $94,000.00 and preliminary engineering and 
construction engineering costs, 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FUR1HER RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council authorizes the 
Mayor, DPW and or the City Engineer to further discuss reverting Perry Street back to its original 
configuration with the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) and to clearly and expressly state 
to MDOT that the City of Pontiac in preparing an estimate of the cost of performing the work through its 
own contractor, is prepared to and will commit to paying for the project using its own funds and will 
agree to work through the MDOT permitting process. 

Planning 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, & Shramski 
No: Pietila 
Resolution Passed 

20-596 Resolution to Approve Scheduling a Public Hearing for the 2021-2025 Parks & 
Recreation Master Plan on January 19, 2021. Moved by Cotincilperson Waterman and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

2 



January 5, 2021 Formal 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council will hold a PUBLIC HEARING at its Regular Meeting on January 
19, 2021 at Noon. This meeting will be held electronically as allowed by the amended Open Meetings 
Act. 
WHEREAS, individuals who desire to make a public comment at the PUBLIC HEARING, please submit 
your name and comment(s) in writing to publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us. All public comments must be 
received no later than 11 :30AM on January 19, 2021. The Interim City Clerk will read your comments 
during the PUBLIC HEARING section of the meeting and is limited to three (3) minutes. 
WHEREAS, the 2021-2025 Parks & Recreation Master Plan can be viewed on the City of Pontiac 
Website: 
https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/review?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:276a9a2a-8374-4a81-9a2f-
O 10022aadd82#pageNum= 1 2 
WHEREAS, NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the text of the proposed 2021-2025 Parks and 
Recreation Master Plan may be examined at the Pontiac Public Library, 60 East Pike Street, Pontiac, 
Michigan 48342 and Pontiac City Hall, Building Safety Department, 47450 Woodward Avenue Pontiac, 
Michigan 48342 during the hours of 9:00AM and 2:00PM 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that a Public Hearing for the City of Pontiac 2021-2025 Parks 
& Recreation Master Plan be held on January 19, 2021 at Noon. This meeting will be held electronically 
as allowed by the amended Open Meetings Act. 

Ayes: Pietila 
No: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Shramski, & Taylor-Burks 
Resolution Failed 

Mayoral Monthly Reports were received. 

Public Comment 
One ( 1) individual submitted a public comment read by the City Clerk 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 
Mayor Waterman, Legislative Council Sharpe, Interim Clerk Doyle, Councilwoman Waterman, 
Councilwoman Shramski, Councilwoman Pietila, Cotmcilwoman Miller, Council Pro Tern Carter & 
Council President Williams made closing comments. · 

Adjournment 
President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 7:08 p.m. 

GARLAND S DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLER!( 

3 



#3 
MINUTES 

1-12-21 



January 12, 2021 Study 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

209th Session of the Tenth Council 

Call to order 
A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order electronically on Tuesday 
January 12, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Pro-Tern Randy Carter. 

Roll Call 

Members Present 
Carter 
Miller 
Pietila 
Shramski 
Taylor-Burks 

Attendance 
Remotely 
Remotely 
Remotely 
Remotely 
Remotely 

Members Absent: Waterman and Williams. 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

Excuse Councilmembers 

Location 
Between Pontiac/Grand Rapids, MI 
Pontiac, MI 
Oakland County, MI 
Pontiac, MI 
Pontiac, MI 

20-597 Excuse Councilmembers Patrice Waterman and Kermit Williams for personal 
reasons. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks and Carter 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

Approval of the Agenda 
20-598 Motion to add Close Session regarding Rubicon to the agenda. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Shramski, 

Councilperson Pietila and Councilperson Taylor-Burks remotely left the meeting. 

No action taken. The quorum was lost during the vote to add amendment to the agenda. 

Public Comment 
One (1) individual submitted a public comment read by the City Clerk 

Adjournment 
President Pro-Tern Randy Carter adjourned the meeting at 6: 17 p.m. 

GARLAND S DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERI( 

1 



#4 

SUB 

COMMITTEE 
REPORT 



Report regarding Public Safety Report from January 8, 2020 

Due to another uptick in Covid 19 this meeting is a report only, we have not met in person following the 

Governors directive to stay safe and stay safe, a meeting which will put us in the same room is not 

considered essential. 

In addition to the report Star has shared they have hired 1 Paramedic and 3 Basic EMT's. Their 

continuing education for their staff continues. 

Due to Covid 19 Car seat checks are suspended at this time. 

Many of the Star Employees have opted to get the Covid 19 vaccine. Mr. Long received his with no side 

effects. 

The reports are attached for your review, of course Council if you have any questions, feel free to 

contact the Department Head associated with the Public Safety Committee. 

Respectfully, 

Councilwoman Mary Pietila 



WATERFORD REGIONAL 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

2495 Crescent Lake Road• Waterford, MI 48329 
Phone: 248.673.0405 • Fax: 248.674.4095 

www.waterfordmi.gov 

• Matthew Covey Fire Chief• Carl Wallace Deputy Fire Chief• John Phebus Fire Marshal 

MONTHLY FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT 
For the City of Pontiac 

December 2020 

Total Pontiac Fire Station calls - month: 321 Average Response Time 5.33 per call 

Total calls for Pontiac Stations - YTD: 4551 

City Calls: Fires: 10 EMS: 211 False Alarms: 29 Other: 71 

Pontiac YTD, Fires: 254 5.58% EMS: 2683 58.95% False Alarms: 361 7.93% Other: 1253 28% 

Month Count Response Times month average YTD Count 

FS-6 Fires-0 6.08 61 

EMS-39 5.06 585 

FS-7: Fires - 6 5.37 106 

EMS-95 5.15 1057 

FS-8: Fires -1 5.25 41 

EMS-47 5.06 546 

FS-9: Fires-3 5.50 35 

EMS-29 4.36 475 

Fire Injuries to personnel: O Fire Injuries to civilian: O 

Notable Event: 
• City of Pontiac Delivered a check for the sum of $327,475.65 these dollars were due to a request made 

by Waterford Township through the Payroll reimbursement Cares Act. 

• 2019 Pontiac Calls 4798, 2020 4551 (247 run decrease due to covid-19) 

• Grand opening of the longest pedestrian walkway in the world on South Blvd. (United Wholesale 
Mortgage) 



Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 PR 20 20-May 20-Jun 

48340 4.9 5 4.8 4.7 4.6 4.8 

48341 5 5 5;1 5 4.9 4.9 

48342 4.9 4.8 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.75 

Monthly 4.93 4.93 4.9 4.86 4.8 4.78 

20-Jul Aug-20 SEPT Oct Nov Dec 

48340 5 5.1 4.9 5 5.1 5.2 

48341 4.8 4.7 4.85 4.9 4.9 4.7 

48342 4.8 4.8 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.8 

Monthly 4.89 4.86 4.85 4.93 4.96 4.9 



DISPATCH Dec-19 Jan-20 20-Feb Mar-20 20-Apr 20-May 20-Jun Jul-20 Aug-20 20-Sep 20-Oct Nov-20 20-Dec 

Abdominal Pain 53 24 25 23 20 25 31 26 24 21 25 18 22 

airmedical transport 

Allergies 8 3 8 6 9 8 6 6 8 8 4 10 6 
ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 4 7 7 6 5 7 7 12 11 8 9 11 8 

Animal bites 1 1 2 1 4 2 3 5 3 2 3 2 

Assault 27 34 24 27 30 24 39 32 40 32 25 35 25 

Invalid assist 5 8 7 4 1 7 1 1 1 9 5 4 6 

Pedestrian struck by Auto 

Back Pain 14 10 14 6 6 14 12 16 15 6 9 10 10 

Breathing Problems 71 142 125 151 147 129 122 140 94 94 96 129 132 

Boating Accident 1 1 1 

Burns 2 1 1 3 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 

Cardiac Arrest 18 18 14 15 14 14 21 14 9 16 16 14 16 

Chest pain 52 85 76 83 48 76 64 60 64 73 62 54 60 

Choking 2 3 5 1 4 5 4 4 9 3 

CO poisoning 1 2 1 2 3 4 2 1 2 

Seizures 124 55 39 54 31 39 52 48 46 54 45 39 53 

Diabetic Issues 28 22 27 25 31 27 23 18 18 17 29 25 19 

Drowning 1 1 1 

Electrocution 

Eye issues 3 3 1 2 1 1 1 

Fainting 56 

Fall Victim 61 60 66 42 66 67 50 82 58 65 56 60 

Fever 3 

Fire 1 1 2 

Headache 4 4 8 5 3 8 2 2 1 5 4 3 

Heart Problems 11 13 11 10 14 11 18 11 9 9 11 15 12 

Heat/Cold Exposures 3 2 1 2 1 2 1 

Hemorrhage from Laceration 18 26 17 20 24 17 28 22 17 23 17 21 15 

Industrial Accident 

Medical alarms 12 17 11 13 9 11 10 6 11 8 12 14 10 

MCI 

Ingested Poison 



Non Emergent requests 11 2 7 3 
Overdose 39 27 32 37 24 32 47 46 47 32 34 34 32 
Pregnancy/Childbirth 5 14 7 14 7 7 18 6 2 9 3 7 12 
Psychiatric Problems 43 36 24 34 39 24 55 54 51 30 24 43 
Respiratory Arrest 

"Sick" Person 224 185 152 224 175 152 216 224 182 183 202 167 201 
Standby 2 
stab/Gunshot Wound 3 5 5 5 4 5 7 4 2 9 2 6 
Stroke/CV A 14 22 20 21 17 20 10 27 12 19 17 11 16 
Traffic Accidents 33 61 34 41 26 34 44 68 55 45 33 31 41 
Palliative care 31 33 36 22 18 36 29 34 36 34 34 34 25 
Traumatic Injury 15 13 6 3 13 6 17 12 15 16 14 12 6 
Unconscious/unknown cause 44 54 38 42 52 38 56 57 43 65 47 40 35 
UNKNOWN 13 9 23 23 9 2 11 8 10 14 14 18 
"Person DOWN" 23 14 17 14 23 26 23 7 10 5 
Sexual Assault 

Well Person Ck 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 1 1 

total 989 1022 884 988 851 870 1046 1044 945 867 893 846 901 



1/15/202114:12 

Road Patrol/DB 

Road Patrol Arrests: 
Traffic Citations: 
Detective Bureau Warrants: 
Cases Assigned to Detectives: 
Appearance Citations: 
DNA Swabs 

Domesic Violence Arrests 
lstafe Law\/\Jarrants: ... ····· 

Directed Patrol Unit 

Felony Arrests: 
Misdemeanor Arrests in Custody: 
Appearance Citations: 
Traffic Citations: 
Controlled Buys: 
Drugs Seized-Value: 
Money Seized: 
Handguns Seized: 
Long Guns Seized: 
Search Warrants Executed: 

Violent Crimes Statistics 

Armed Robberies 
Homicides: 
Discharged Firearm (Injuries): 
Discharge Firearm (No Injuries): 
Weapons Involved/Brandished: 

January February March 

369 366 333 
786 646 508 
83 77 99 

380 304 381 
6 6 6 
0 0 0 

Oakland County Sheriffs Office 
Pontiac Substation 

2020 

April May June July 

265 348 321 300 
152 243 256 281 
139 127 111 94 
327 370 410 381 

5 6 11 7 
0 0 0 0 

August 

362 
252 
146 
464 
10 
1 

J 28 i 21 f 40 ! 43 1 46 t 47 I 47 T 57 J 

22 19 42 75 72 44 47 40 
0 1 12 12 9 14 3 5 
1 1 1 0 2 4 2 3 
2 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

$ 1,250 $ 1,500 $4,525 $ 7,047 $ 8,425 $6,170 $ 5,970 $ 6,500 
$ 1,355 $ - $ - $10,205 $ 27,825 $4,494 $57,707 $1,325 

3 1 9 13 14 14 16 16 
0 0 0 1 0 4 2 2 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

12 11 5 10 7 7 6 10 
1 0 1 1 0 1 1 3 
3 1 1 3 1 3 3 5 
4 1 1 2 4 2 2 3 
4 1 0 5 5 2 0 4 

Sept October November December Totals 

323 342 248 322 3,899 
367 449 284 238 4,462 
143 131 87 128 1365 
387 380 368 380 4,532 

2 10 5 6 80 
1 1 0 1 4 

""h 

t .... I l 57 43 46 
"'' 

41 J 477 1 

35 28 16 46 486 
5 3 4 7 75 
0 1 1 1 17 
0 1 1 0 13 
0 0 0 0 0 

$ 3,160 $ 2,175 $ 3,545 $ 6,570 $ 56,837 
$10,093 $ 2,345 $ 1,588 $ 3,443 $ 120,380 

14 11 3 6 120 
2 0 0 1 12 
0 0 0 0 0 

8 1 5 9 91 
2 3 0 0 13 
2 2 4 4 32 
3 2 2 2 28 
4 6 5 8 44 



#5 

SPECIAL 

PRESENTATION 



Mayor's Refusal to Authorize 
Finance to pay City Clerk, Elections 

and Medical Marihuana Invoices 



The Clerk has discovered that the attached invoices 
have not been paid by Finance because the Mayor told 

Accounts Payable Manager on December 4, 2020 to not 
pay any Clerk's invoices 



Account ~umber Balance In Yokes Total 

101-191-818.013 $163,311.90 $8,680.00 
101-215-957.002 $2,500.00 Sl ,-H0.00 

101-255-816.007 $74,520.00 $13,500.00 



t 01-21s--1r;70 oo 2- 20-0171.3 

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF MUNICIPAL CLERKS 
2021 MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION 
Membership expires December 31, 2020 
Renewal application due by January 31, 2021 to avoid late fees 

Name Garland Doyle Title Interim City Clerk 

Municipality Pontiac County Oakland 

M .11 Add 47450 Woodward a1 ng ress __________________________ _ 

Work Phone 248-758-3200 Home/Cell ___________ _ 

Email gdoyle@pontiac.mi.us Fax 248-758-3160 

Status D New Member ~enewal 

Certification • MAMC-MiPMC • IIMC-MMC • IIMC-CMC 

MEMBERSHIP :rYPE DUE~ 
(By-Lciws Art;lcle 111; SR-41) 

r~ Active Member (Active Clerk, Deputy Clerk, or counterpart with different title) 60.QO 

D Assoc'iate Member (Previous member, or person or puslness connected with government) 85.00 

D Honorary Member (Prl~r Clerk or dignitary; requires a majority vote of the Board) 0.00 

• Membership Pin 6.00 

• Late fee applies for renewals only If postmarked after due date of January 31, 2021 15.00 

TOTAL AMOUNT ENCLOSED $€30.00 

I do hereby subscribe to the prin'Clples and ethics as described In MAM C's SR-47 Code of Ethics and Conduct, 
which I affirm will govern my personal and professional conduct as a Municipal Clerk In the State of Michigan. 
I attest to having read, and understand, t he Code of Ethics and Conduct, and as a member of MAMC agree 
to uphold all ethics rules as written. 

Apply oh-line a~: www.mlchiganclerks.org Office U~e Ohly 

Payable by credit card or check made payable to MAMC Date Received: ____ Check#: _ _ _ 

Memberships are non-transferable 
Amount: ___ _ 

Michigan Association of Municipal Clerks I 120 N. Washington Sq, Suite 110A I Lansing, MI 48933-1609 
Phone 517.372,MAMC I Fax 517.371.1170 



~"" ::,:·-,: 
AY.-a tng Al1(:lt0'-;IA FtOt:\: '"';. 

.PO.:; 2:-.01X3 State: "-'<= 0~ 
StaiUJS~ Opt:11 Joun>alzed 

~ o.c.-J!o ; . s: a { ;,.;ooro.,J ::.•,cc,-,•~ ...,ecn-.-.nToPO O o.nr : Jtts:oty ['i! 
('9 ~ _.,_, ~ pamA( 

REQ. CREATED 
DEPARTMENT HEAD: 
Approved 12/03/2020 • FINANCE: 

Approved 12/04/2020 • PURCHASING: 
Approved 12/04/2020 j 

REQ. APPROVED: 
DENIED/CANCELLED PO Created 12/04/2020 



INSTITUTE REGISTRATION 
MAMC INSTITUTE ~> Morch 14-19, 2021 or March 21 -26, 2021 
Comfort Inn & Suites Conference Center ·:> Mt. Pleasant, Michigan 

,.,@}~ ~ -
.1t.~:f.l~ ~\, 

MAMC INSTITUTE MARCH 14~19, 2021 

YEAR 1 YEAR2 

OR MAMC INSTITUTE MARCH 21 .. 26, 2021 

YEAR3 
INSTITUTE REGISTRATION DEADLINE IS FEBRUARY 26, 2021 (WEEK ONE) OR MARCH 5, 2021 (WEEK TWO) 

PLEASE SELECT WHICH SESSION AND Vl:ARAPPL.IES TO YOUR REGISTRATION. 
(\i(l;j' 

First Name Garland Last Name Doyle 
(Prlnt your name as you 11,hh It (o appear on your corfiflcate. Include CMC/MMC/CMMC lnrom1allon If you want ll included,) 

Preferred Name Garland Title City Clerk 
(For your namo lag) 

Organization City of Pontiac 

city Pontiac 

Emallgdoyle@pontiac. mi. us 

(If you are nol a CICfll or a Deputy Clerk, the endorsement of your organlzallon's Clerk ls required.) 

Address47450 Woodward 

State MI · Postal Code 48 34 2 
Phone(248 ) 758-3200 

(ConnrmaUon lnlormaUon will be sent via email so please print or lypo clovrty.) 

Please list Iha previous years that you have attended MAMC lnstitutes:_N_o_n_. _e_. -----------------

Please Indicate any special needs such as a disability, hearing, visual, die!; etc: ___ _ 

. INSTITUTE REGISTRATION FEE ._ $650.00 Member or $700.00 Non-Member* 
• MAMC accepts credit card payments and onllne registration. 

www.mlchlganclerks.org/Events.aspx 
• Lodging is separate. A block of rooms are reserved at the· 

Comfort Inn Hotel' & Suites at a special rate of $85.00 per night', 
plus applicable taxes and assessments. These rates will not 
apply to reservations made on the Internet. Call the Comfort 
Inn and Identify yourself as a "MAMC participant when making 
reservations, Provide your agency's tax-exempt number to 
avoid state taxes. 

• Fee includes lunch on Monday, Tuesday, and Thursday and 
dinner on Sunday and Thursday. 

• Reglstration deadline Is February 26, 2021 (Week One) or 
March 5, 2021 (Week Two), 

• Faxing or emailing registration forms before the deadline does 
not avoid the late fee. . 

• A late fee of $50.00 will be charged for payments postmarked 
after the deadline. 

•MAMC momborshlp forms are available on the website. 
www.mlchlganclerks.org/aboutfmembershlp.aspx 

MAIL THIS FORM TO: 
MAMC 

120 North Washington Square 
Suite 110A 

Lansing, Ml 48933 
Please Include a check payable to 
MAMC with mail-In registrations. 

Return by the deadline 
to avoid the $100.00 late fee 

(per SR 17). 
Sorry, no exceptions. 

TAX ID 38·3554.848 

QUESTIONS? 
Contact Mary Bender, 

Institute Coordinator 
231-797-5536 

mbender102@aol.com 

SCHOLARSHIP INFORMATION 
Scholarships are available for those who 

qualify. For more lnfo.rmatlon, 
visit www.mlchlganclerks.org/programs/ 

scholarship.him 

REMINDER 

MAMC CANCELLATION POLICY 
The cancellation fee Is now $100.00 (per 
SR 17), and request must be submitted 
14 days prior to the event. Cancellation 
requests must be made In writing and 
emailed to lnfo@mlchlganclerks.org or 

faxed to GCSI at 517-371-1170. 

Cancellation requests received after 14 
days before the conference date or no 

shows will be charged the full .registration 
fee and ar(;l not entitled to any refund. 



R,q;: .:.:s:•-;! 
Aa-alngA;,pro\-al~ ,..,:, 

PO =: 2> ~11;..; Sra"" Potu= :>.:e, 
Sta:l!S; O~~ • Journalized 

l-~tr:rzo- ;, . .e. ::rs. ·f i . .:.p;,ro"lla! · ::, i:t«t.·.crs 

~ ~ .:. ~ P(l(TIA£ 
,c-tToPO 0 Denv :J--,r] 

REQ. CREATE0 • 

~===/ 
DEPARTMENT HEAD: 
Approved 12/03/2020 

--------~ ·-- ~ -

FINANCE: 
Approved 12/04/2020 

PURCHASING: 
Approved 12/04/2020 

REQ. APPROVED: 
DENI ED/CANCELLED 

,_ PO Created 12/04/2020 



INSTITUTE REGIST.RATION 
MAMC INSTITUTE ··> March 14 - 19, 202 1 or March 21 - 26, 2021 
Comfort Inn & Suites Conference Center /} Mt. Pleasant, Michigan , .. . 

·, ~ 

MAMC INSTITUTE MARCH 14-19, 2021 

YEAR 1 · t/ 

OR MAMC INSTITUTE MARCH 21-26, 2021 

YEAR2 YEAR3 
INSTITUTE REGISTRATION DEADLINE IS FEBRUARY 26, 2021 (WEEK ONE} OR MARCH 5, 2021 (WEEK TWO) 

PLEASE SELECT WHICH SESSION AND YEAR APPLIES TO YOUR REGISTRATION. 

First Name Jonathan Last Name Starks 
(Print yo\Jr namo as you wish It to appear on your certiflcato. lncludo CMC/MMC/CMMC nf0fll181lon If you wont It Included.) 

Preferred Name Jonathan TIiie Assistant to the City Clerk 
(FOi your namo tag) 

Organization City of Pontiac 

city Pontiac 
Emalljstarks@pontiac.mi.us 

(If you ore not a Clerk or o Depu\y Clerk, Iha endorsement of your organlzstlon's Clelk~s roqu~ed.) 

Address4 7 450 Woodward 

Stale MI Postal Code 4 8 34 2 
Phone·{248 ) 758-3200 

(Confirmallon lnronniiUon will be sont via cmal so please print or type clearly.) 

Please 11st the previous years that you have attended MAMC lnslitules:_N_ o_n_ e ________________ _ 

Please Indicate any special needs such as a dlsablllty, hearing, visual, diet, etc:. ________ _________ _ 

INSTITUTE REGISTRATION FEE - $650.00 Member or $700.00 Non-Member* 
• MAMC accepts credit card payments and onllne registration. 

www.mlchiganclerks.org/Events.aspx 
• Fee lncludes·lunch on Monday, Tuesday, and Thursday and 

dinner on Sunday and Thursday. 
• Registration deadline Is February 26, 2021 (Week One) or 

March 5, 2021 (Week Two). 
• Faxing or emailing registration forms before the deadline does 

not avoid the late fee. 

• Lodging is separate. A block of rooms are reserved at the 
Comfort Inn Hotel & SLiites at a special rate of $85.00 per night, 
plus applicable taxes and assessments. These rates will not 
apply to reservations made on the internet. Cali' the Comfort 
Inn and identify yourself as a "MAMC participant when making 
reservations. Provide your agency's tax-exempt number to 
avoid state taxes. 

• A late fee· of $50.00 will be charged for payments postmarked 
after the deadline. . 

~MAMC membership forms are avallable on the website. 
www.mlchlganclerks.org/about/membershlp.aspx 

MAIL THIS FORM TO: 
MAMC 

120 North Washington Square 
Suite 110A 

Lansing, Ml 48933 
Please Include a check payable to 
MAMC with mall-In registrations. 

Return by the deadline 
to avoid the $100.00 late fee 

(per SR 17). 
Sorry, no exceptions. 

TAX ID 38·3554848 

QUESTIONS? 
Contact Mary Bender, 
Institute Coordinator 

231-797-5536 
mbender1·o2@aol.com 

SCHOLARSHIP lr,.IFORMATION 
Scholarships are available for those who 

qualify. For niore Information, 
visit www.michiganclerks.org/programs/ 

scholarshlp.htm 

REMINDER 

MAMC CANCELLATION POLICY 
The cancellation fee is now $100.00 (per 
SR 17), and request must be submitted 
14 days prior to the event. Cancellation 
requests must be made in writing and 
emailed to lnfo@mlchlganclerks.org or 

faxed to GCSI at 517-371-1170. 

Cancellation requests received after 14 
days before the conference date or no 

shows wlll be charged the full registration 
fee and are not entitled to any refund. 



Reo =: ::-:·-:..; 

Aw~b-9 AQora-Jalfri:n: r~l 
PO::: Z:·Cl:T;S Stace:: FJci":?:::-!' ~r.:ec 

Stallls: ~ ._, -
J. C:c~::-'~ ~,.,~-~_,•,... · ;_ . .:.-,e, .,,. I J c:.on...,.ToPO Q o.ny :.J.......,(41 
~ ~ -l Gco.o,: PQIT",AC 

~ , 

REQ.CREATE0 

DENIED/CANCELLED 

DEPARTMENT HEAD: I FINANCE: • PURCHASING: 
Approved 12/03/2020 I,_.. Approved 12/04/2020 Approved 12/04/2020 

REQ. APPROVED: 
PO Created 12/04/2020 



\o \. ·-\ r1 \-8 \ ~'i D \3 

~iHeariMEDIA 

BJII To: 

Order Detalls 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac Ml 48342 

Advortlscr City of Pontiac 

Order# 1710252769 

Contract II, 

AE Mashawn Nickson 

IHM Product Radio 

Note 1: 

Noto 2: 

Invoice Summary 

Product Type 

Spot 

Misc 

Total 

BI11.ible Units 

0 

2 

2 

Station WMXD-FM 

Markot Detroit 

Start Date 09/28/20 

End Date 10/25/20 

Gros!al A111ount 

$0.00 

$350.00 

$350.00 

Invoice No: 4216502953 

CllentlD: 

Invoice Dato: 

Payment Due: 

Amount Paid: 

Amount Due: 

1651828 

10/26/20 

11/24/20 

$0.00 

$350.00 

l'g'l... """':'l'"l''mll'''•i'•J•1i'.p!>'.-'li'G'"'!~<1~1·,,•J''c1 rr;i'i)':r}~tl!,i:.:~1:t:tf3.,: .. 4~~ :t~~tr.,1t,7;::W~1;hJ ~-•i•-,WJ.,!,,!l:•,,!l,,,,,,.,,N•~-,~~l,~<)1.-:!:,~•:-M,~ 
Bllllng Porlod Ocl 2020 

Schedule Broadcast 

Terms Net 30 

Sales Ta)( NofOue 

$0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $350.00 

$0.00 $350.,00 

-------------- .~--- ----- ------ --- -------- ----- - --
Invoice No: 4216502953 

Cllenl ID: 1651828 

Order No: 1710262769 

Paymenl Due: 11/24120 

Amount Due: $350.00 

Bill To : City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avo 
Pontiac Ml 48342 

Page 1 of 3 

~iH~artMEDIA 

Check Enclosed O Check It : 

Remit To : IHearlMedla 
3964 Collection Center Drive 
Chicago, IL 60693-0039 



~iHeariMEDIA 

Invoice Details 

Market: Delroll 

Product Type Qty 

Teien! 

Olgltal 

Stallon: WMXD-FM 

Description 

Frankie Darcel! 

Socia! 

Invoice Number: 

Dato 

10/23/2020 

10/26/2020 

4216502953 

Rate Total 

1f.9,i~)9i:,°S,~llqF::;)jf;::~h11<~I~i~¼f~~fft~]°~·~~-~i:bf $~~m:r0!~ ).%:1.:;:, ~~/~~~ff~,~::rn:l~;~!&IB,;_::~~r~1~~ij;.i:7\·0rll:2?5f.i~~TI(~¥~:~%:UGi'.(·f(:i;¾!;;i@:~ 
', . 

Totals for Invoice: . No. of Spots/Misc: 012 Gross Ami: $350,00 

Page 3 of3 



Req=.: :":...::--::s. 
,A~ ~ Frcm: t:! A. 

PO:; 2~17" Sta:.: rucl:ase Or:,, 
s~ ~ ,___ 

l-0--!!et :rse ;. e ~.i J l- :..p;:KOYal - ::.- :«-c.e-·on 

"l ~ ..... G,o.v. FOmAC 
,:_aeam-.rtToPO 0 °""1 : .Jtts=y[4J 

-~, DEPARTMENT HEAD: ]L....li..... FINANCE: 
REQ. CREATED ,~. Approved 12/02/2020 ~ Approved 12/03/2020 

PURCHASING: 
Approved 12/03/2020 

II 

REQ. APPROVED: 
DENIED/CANCELLED PO Created 12/03/2020 



,\0\ - J 9 \-~\ ~. O\ 3 

~ iHeariMEDIA 

Bll!To: City or Pontiac 
47460Wqodward Ave 
Pontiac Ml 48342 

Order Details 

Advortlsor 

Ordor t~ 

Contract# 

AE 

City or Pontiac 

1710252769 

Ma11hawn Nickson 

IHM Product Radio 

Noto 1: 

Note 2: 

Invoice Summary 

Product Type 

Spol 

Misc 

Total 

BIiiabie Units 

37 

38 

Station WMXO-FM 

Market petrolt 

Start Datu 10/26/20 

End Dale 11/03/20 

Gross Atnount 

$3,650.00 

$100.00 

$3,650.00 

20-011e, 

Invoice No: 4216566470 

Client ID: 

lnvolcu Dute: 

Payment Due: 

Amount Paid: 

Amount Due: 

Soles Tax 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

1651828 

11/10/20 

12110/20 

$0.00 

$3,660.00 

Schedule 

Terms 

Broadcast 

Net30 

Not Duo 

$3,550.00 

$100.00 

$3,650.00 

Questions? Contact us al 1rvolces@IHeartMedla.com 

Invoice No: 4216566470 

Client ID: 1651828 

Order No: 1710252769 

Payment Due: 12/10/20 

Amount Due: $3,650.00 

B
1
111 To : City of Pontiac 

47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac Ml 46342 

Page 1 of 4 

~iHeartMEDIA 
Check Encloaed O Chock # : 

Remit To: IHoartMedla 
3964 Collection Center Drive 
Chicago, IL 60693-0039 



~iHeartMEDIA Invoice Number: 4216566470 

Invoice Details 

Markel: Detroit Station: WMXD-FM 

Ordor Lino Product Typo Ordered Oay(s) Daypnrt Rate 

1 Spot Commercial MTWTtiF 06:00:00-09:59: 59 

6IB.l;Q JSCI/SPOJ JULE .o.A1E IlME ~ ~ BATE. 
Spot Commercial City or Pontiac/ City of Pontiac 10/27/2020 07:65am 30 
Spot Commercial Clly of Ponllao / City of Pontiac 10/28/2020 07:24 am 30 

2 Spot Commercial MTWThF 10:00:00-14:59:59 

AI.BEQ JSCJ/SPOT rme .QA1E II.ME l.Eli MG 8611;; 

Spot Cornmerclttl City of Pontiac I City of Ponllac 10/27/2020 02:2 pm 30 
Spot Commercial City of Pontiac I City of Pontiac 10/28/2020 01:28pm 30 

Spot Commercial City of Pontiac I City of Pontiac 10/29/2020 01:28 pm 30 

3 Spot Commorclal MTWThF 15:00:00-18:59:59 

AI.BEQ 1$CJ/SPOI IIILE gm IJME J..E.M MG BATE 
Spot Commercial City of Pontiac/ City of Pontiac 10(26(2020 04:3 pm 30 

Spot Commercial City of Ponltac / City of Ponllac 10/27/2020 06:53 pm 30 
Spot Commercial City of Pontiac/ City of Ponllac 10/28/2020 06:30 pm 30 
Spot Commercial City of Ponllac I City of Pontiac 10/29/2020 03:30 pm 30 
Spot Commercial City or Ponlloc / City or Pontiac 10/30/2020 03:30pm 30 

4 Spot Commercial SSn 09:00:00-18:50:50 

8.lBE.Q ISQJ/SPOT TITLE QAIE IJME J.EN . MG &IE 
Spot Commercial City of Pontiac/ City of Pontiac 10(31/2020 10:28 am 30 
Spot Commerclal City of Ponlfoc f City or Ponlla~ 10/31/2020 11:59 am 30 
Spot Commercial City of Pontiac f City of Ponllac 10/31/2Q20 12:35 pm 30 

Spot Commercial City of Pontiac I City of Pontiac 10/31/2020 03:35pm 30 
Spot Commercial City of Pontiac I City or Pontiac 10/31/2020 04:35 pm 30 
Spot Commerclal City of Pontiac/ City of Pontiac 10/31/2020. 06:0 pm 30 
Spot Commercial City of Ponllac / City of Ponllac 11/01/2020 09:29am 30 
Spot Commercial City ol Pontiac/ City of Pontiac 11/01/2020 12:28 pm 30 
Spot Commorclal City or Pontiac I City or Pontiac 111ov2020 03:57 pm 30 

Spot Commercial City of Pontiac/ City of Pontiac 11/01(2020 04:30 pm 30 
Spol Commercial Cily of Pontiac/ City of Pontiac 11101(2020 · 06:31 pm 30 

5 Spot Commercla,I s 19:00:00-23:59:58 

A1B.Ell JSCJ/SPOT TITLE DAif IIME )..EN MG. BA1E 
Spot. Colt)merclal City of Pontiac/ City of Ponllao 10/31/2020 08:4pm 30 
Spot Commercial City of Pontiac/ City or Pontiac 10/31/2020 11:SO·pm 30 

6 Spot Commercial MTWThFSSn 00:00:00-05:59:59 

A1B.Ell l~ilflPQT IIJLE DA1E I1Mf. .Lfli MG 88.Tf. 
Spot . Commnrclal City or Pontiac/ City of Pontiac 10/26/2020 12:45em 30 
Spol Com morel al City of Ponllac / City of Pontiac 10/26/2020 03:16am 30 
Spot Commercial City ol PonUac / City of Pontiac 10(27/2020 12:48 am 30 

Spot Commorclal City of PonUac / City of Pontiac 10/27/2020 03:18 am 30 
Spot Commercial City or PonUac f City of Pontiac 10(28/2020 02:42 am 30 

Spot Commercial City or Ponllac / City of Pontiac 10/29/2020 12:17 am 30 
Spot Commercial City of Pontiac/ Cfly of Pontiac 10/30/2020 01:16 am 30 
Spot Commercial City of Ponllac / Clly of Pontiac 10/30/2020 04:16am 30 
Spot Commercial City of Pontiac I City of Pontiac 10/31/2020 03:39am 30 

Page 3 of 4 



~IHeartMEDIA 

Invoice Details 

Order Line Product Type Ordered 

Spol Commercial 
Spot Commercial 
Spol Commorclel 

7 Spot Commercial 

AIBE.Q 

Spot Commercial 

8 Spot Commorclal 

AmQ. 
Spot Commercial 

Product Type Qty 

Digital 

Totals for Invoice: 

Day(s) 

City of Pontiac/ City of Pontiac 
City of Pontiac/ City or Pontiac 
City of Pontlec / City or Pontiac 

M 

ISQI/SPPIIIII E 
City of Pontiac/ City of Pontiac 

T 

1$Qll§PPI IIJLE 
City of pontlac / City of Pontiac 

Description 

Socia! 

No. of Spots/Misc: 37/1 

Page 4 of 4 

Invoice Number: 4216566470 

Daypart Raio 
10/31/2020 04:41 am 30 
11/01/2020 02:46 am 30 
11/01/2020 03:41 am 30 

06:00:00-18:59:59 

.Qfil llME 1.E.tll w Bfil -

11/02/2020 09:0 om 30 

1 0: 00:00-15:59: 59 

~ IIME .L.fM ~ .Be.1.E. 
11/0312020 11:1 am 30 

Dato Raio Total 

11/01/2020 

Gross Amt: $3,650.00 



R.cQ =: =~"~:: ;,o =: 1C--C'-1!! 

~ Awo,al ~ NJ:.. 

1--0rt...e" :,..;:'° ~. ;..Cs '( 1,. :..pc:iroval - :i,.~ ... t:'."1 

~ ~ --.. Gn:11.(,: PCrmAC 

-~ 

REQ. CREATED 

DENI ED/CANCELLED 

5'ar. ~=•~ ... 
5'a"'5! 0:,,:, 

DEPARTMENT HEAD: 
Approved 12/02/2020 j 

-......-

,C--.rtToPO 0 0eny : .J>ts=y(~ 

• FINANCE: 
Approved 12/03/2020 

PURCHASING: 
Approved 12/03/2020 

REQ. APPROVED: 
PO Created 12/03/2020 



TO: 

Jo Lynn WIiiiams 

City of Pontiac 
City Clerk Office 

FROM: 

Sonya Moore 

20- ot800 

INVOICE 

INVOICE #SM2598R1 
DATE: 30 OCTOBER 2020 

For services rendered : ~lection Inspection Training, Mock Election and Election Day Support 

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE 

- Development of Election Inspection Training Material . $0 

Initial planning meeting $100.00 

September Training Classes (9) $ 80.00 

October Training Classes (24) $ 80.00 

Mock Election Support. (4 hours) $400.00 

Election Day ~upport (7 hours) $ 500.00 

Two Zoom Q&A Cl"asses $ so:oo 

SUBTOTAL 

SALES TAX 

SHIPPING & HANDLING 

TOTAL DUE 

Make all checks payable to Sonya Moore I 19320 Santa Rosa I Detroit, Michigan I 48221 
Payment d,ue upon receipt 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

TOTAL 

$0 

$100.00 

$ 720.00 

~ 1,920.00 

$ 40.0.00 

$ 5.00.00· 
' . 

160.00 

0 

0 

0 

$3,800.00 



Ft"'!=, : :-:·::-: PO~ 20-<!~C~ Staz: N~Or:et 
A11~A:x<o':alfrom: 1-.• StaQJS: O:,.e1, -
1.0r~· ::--_..e ~~~ ( l,. .'pproyaJ · =..~ .~ 

:9 .,. .... &-c..o;,:,O,.'TIAC .J c.on-•ertTo PO Q oe,,v : JttslO<Y {.q 

REQ. CREATED 
DEPARTMENT HEAD: 
Approved 12108/2020 

FINANCE: 
Approved 12110/2020 • PURCHASING: 

Approved 12/10/2020 

DENIED/CANCELLED 
REQ. APPROVED: 

PO Created 12110/2020 



To: City of Pontiac 
City Clerk Office 

R~lru'.t"Je~t ) Tmi~:n~ 

47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
248-758-3200 

DATE 

09/08/2020 
09/16/2020 
09/21/2020 
09/24/2020 
09/26/2020 
10/01/2020 
10/03/2020 
10/14/2020 
10/20/2020 

· 10/21/2020 

10/22/2020 

DESCRIPTION 

Election Inspector Training 
Electfon Inspector Training 
Election Inspector Training 
Electio~ Inspector Training 
Election Inspector Training 
Election Inspector Training 
Election Inspector Training 
Election Inspector Training 
Election Inspector Training 
Election Inspector Train in~ 
El~ction Inspector Training 

Mal<e all checks payable to: Joyce Taylor 

From: Joyce Taylor 
P. 0. Box 3122 

Farmington Hills, Ml 48333 

UNIT PRICE AMOUNT 

$80 .. 00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 

80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 

TOTAL: 

AMOUNT PUE (USD): 

$80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 
80.00 

$880.00 

$880.00 

THANI( YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS 

2 



(01 ~ 255-81 b, (!)07 

Sherman J Taylor PC 
United States 

Garland Doyle 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 47450 

City of Pontiac 

Time Entries 

Dal.a EE Activity 

09/15/2020 ST Application Review 

10/01/2020 ST Appllcallon Review 

Sherman J Taylor PC 

Balance 
Invoice# 
Invoice Date 
Payment Terms 
Due Date 

$13,500.00 
1002427 
December 4, 2020 
Due on Receipt 
December 04, 2020 

Securely pay onllne with your credit card El . - . 
https ://sherman+taylor-pc. mycase.com/xvf89tbw 

Description Rate Hours Line Toti:11 

Botanlcal Gardens G107(4.5) / Family Roch: G106 
(4.5)/ 
Family Rootz 0 105 (4.6) / PGSH Holdings 0104 
(4.5) / $60.00 45.0. $2,700.00 
Natures Gold G103 (4.5) / Misty' Mee G102 ( 4.5)/ 
Pharmaco G101 (4.5)/ Natures GoldP103(4.5)/ 
Family Rootz P102(4,5) / PharmacoP101 (4,5) 

CC Application Re.view: Ceasar's Garden (4.5) / 
Larren Investments LLC (4.Si / Misty Mee LLC 
"BloomClly Club Pontiac" (4.5) / OP Holdings II 
LLC (4.5) / PGSH Holdings LLC'(4.5) I Prlme 7 
LLC (4.5) / Pure Life Solutions II LLC (4.6) I Rlze 

$60.00 76.5 $4,590.00 
Cannabis (4,5) / Southeast Provisioning Canter 
LLC (4.5) /Ttle Cured Leaf TC Inc (4,5) / The Dixie 
Depot (4.5) / Top Hill Compassion Center (4 .. 5) I U· 
Varsity Medz (4.5) / West Fort Holdings U.C (4.6) / 
Yellow Tall Ventures Inc (4.5) 



' I •' 1 

Downtown District Appllcallon Review: 3 Green 
LLC (4.5) / Bal\le Spring LLC (4.5) / Clean Roots 
LLC (4.5) / Common Citizen (4.5) / Detroit Medical 
Concepts LLC dba Kaleafa Pontiac (4.5) / Green 
Bronco 111 LLC (4.5) / Green Buddha II LLC {4.5) / 
Green Buddha/Marelus Brice (4.5) / Greenstone 
East LLC (4.5) / JDS Brothers LLC {4.5) / NN 
Property LLC (4.5) / JNN Property LLC (4.5) J 

11/01/2020 ST Appllcallon Review Michigan Supply and Provisions (4.5) / Nature's 
Medicine (4.5) / Nature's Medicine (4.5) / New Gen 
Meds (4.5) / Pontiac Provlslonl.ng LLC (4.5) / Pure 
Roots LLC (4.5) / OPS Michigan Holdings LLC 
(4.5) / RTMC Enterprises Inc dba Northern Trellis 
(4.5) / RTMC Enterprises Inc dba Northern Trellis 
(4.5) / VB Chesaning (4.5) / Zenith Ventures LLC 
(4.5) / 

$60.00 103.5 $6,210.00 

Totals: 225.0 $13,500.00 

Time Entry Sub-Total: 

Sub-Total: 

Total : 

Amount Paid: 

B.elance Due: 

$13,500.00 

$13,500.00 

$13,500.00 

$0.00 

$13,500.00 



#6 

'SPECIAL 

PRESENTATION 



January 8, 2021 

Honorable Mayor Waterman 
Members of City Council 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Via Electronic Delivery by the City Attorney 

Re: Legal Status and Implications 
Medical Marijuana 

Madam Mayor and Council, 

On Tuesday January 5, 2021 I was unable to complete my presentation on the land use 
and legal implications of the current status of medical marijuana applications pending 
with the City. These concluding remarks are important as they summarize the steps that 
can be accomplished to safeguard the City and how the ongoing ex parte communications 
and lay opinions are jeopardizing the City. 

Knowing that the conditional rezoning applications approved by the Council vest an equity 
right in property within the City, and knowing that any alteration to an ordinance in the 
City cannot have a retroactive effect on those rights, my presentation intended to 
conclude with a strong recommended solution: 

1. The Clerk can issue a notice to an affected applicant that their application is 
compliant, but for the ordinance requirement of a special exemption permit in 
Section 3.1106. 

2. The applicant can avail Itself of the process in Section 3.1106, and under the 
policies and ordinances of the City, seeking an SEP. 

3. If awarded a SEP, the Clerk can make a final award. 

We had previously thought that the Clerk would issue a notice stating compliance, but 
that the land use for the property was in question. This approach is not necessary as the 
ordinance allows for the remedy sought by Council and the Administration and the law 
provides remedy to the question of land use. 

My presentation was to also end with a request that the release of newsletters and other 
communication that contains opinion that is incorrect or not in accord with the defensible 
positions of the City cease. These communications can, and would, be used in any legal 



Mayor and Council 
January 8, 2021 
Page 2 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Ml 48342 

proceeding against the City, and are often cited by the court as causing damage when a 
party relies on the statements. One of the only areas where a court rejects general 
immunity is where people with apparent authority provide direction and opinion that is 
incorrect but subsequently relied upon. 

Since the timing of my presentation at Council, the City has received a lengthy, and very 
accurate, legal opinion from counsel for one of the equity interests that received City 
Council approval of a conditional rezoning. This letter is exactly what was hoped to be 
avoided by the above steps. 

The City, including the administration and the Council, must read this letter for what it is, 
a clear outline of the legal action that may be burdened upon the city, the reason it may 
be successful under the law, and most importantly a clear outline of the known damages. 
Unfortunately, time is now of the essence and I am hopeful that the content and 
conclusions in my presentation are taken for what they are, a clear statement of law and 
implication facing the City. The deferral of this for any other course of action than to 
complete the review and award of medical marijuana licenses is now a direct exposure 
to the City. 

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter, 

Sincerely, 

Matthew Gibb 
Special Counsel for Economic Development 
mgibb@pontiac. mi. us 
(248) 464-0307 

cc. Rob Huth 
Jill Bahm 
Garland Doyle 



SPECIAL 
PRESENTATION 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA ORDINANCE 
LEGAL STATUS AND IMPLICATIONS 
LAND USE AND PERMITTING 

-~~-~----
J~-:~'"1:..-:- . .... . 

.. :'l: ... iii. ✓~" -• •r -- · 
- --::.--- - -·" _;_J,_ . _ _ ,.. ".:,- •.:.:.. - - - .. i::--

':': : 

T -· 
-=--

~·- _J _ 

=-- ---'Jt----...-.. ,;.-.;;.=--

PONTIAC 



Outline of Legal Questions Re: Ordinance / Zoning 

• What are the requirements to obtain permitting? 

• What is the conflict causing the delay? 

• What agreement was reached at Council Sub-Committee that will 
resolve the conflict? 

• Why doesn't the referred ordinance suggestion apply to present 
applications? 

• Is the Interim Clerk's suggested revision already in the Ordinance? 
YES 

• Are the other issues now causing potential conflict for the City? 



What are the requirements to obtain permitting? 

Is the use 
allowed on the 
property? 

Has a rezoning 
been approved? 

Is the use 
Grandfathered? 

Was it timely 
submitted? 

Is it complete? 

Has it been 
reviewed and 
approved? 

Is the location 
outside an 
overlay? 

Has the 
Planning 
Commission 
granted a SEP? 

Has a building 
permit been 
issued? 

MEDICAL 
MARIJUANA 
PERMIT 



What is the conflict causing the delay? 

Is the use ~ Was it timely ~ Is the location 
allowed on the 

~ Has a building 

property? 
submitted? 

outside an permit been 
overlay? issued? 

Has a rezoning 
Has the 

been Is it complete? 
Planning 

MEDICAL 

approved? 
Commission 

MARIJUANA 

granted a SEP? PERMIT 

Is the use I 
Has it been 

Grandfathered? 
reviewed and 
approved? 



What is the conflict causing the delay? 

• The Conflict is based in 
the application of State 
Law through the Zoning 
Enabling Act over a 
faulty interpretation of 
the Local Ordinance. 

• The Clerk holds the 
op1n1on that certain 
appl;ications cannot be 
finalized until the 
ordinance is amended, 
which is contrary to law 
and standard. 

Bureaucracy, conflicting opinions slow 
,medical marijuana business in Pontiac 

Early last year, a developer brought a vision to Pontiac for a medical marijuana complex, 

months after residents voted to allow processors and dispensaries to operate in the city. 

As a community benefit, a grocery store potentially operated by Hollywood 

Markets, would front the proposed $40 million development at Glenwood Plaza in the 

city's center, still ripe for new inve.stment. 

The project has stalled, however, as the developer waits for the city to approve licenses 

for medical marijuana tenants within the complex amid a disagreement regarding a local 

ordinance. The project is among dozens of medical marijuana related ventures that have 

also been awaiting approval from the city for nearly a year - and it's unclear when the 

bureaucratic logjam could break. 



What agreement was reached at Council Sub-Committee that 
will resolve the conflict? 

From: Robert Huth <rhuth@kirxhuthlaw.com> 
Sent Thursday, December 3, 2020 3:24 PM 
To: Mayor Deirdre Waterman <OWaterman@pontiac.mi.us>; Matthew Gibb <gibblaw@hotmail.com> 
Cc: Anthony Chubb <achubb@gmhlaw.com>: jc'ark@gmhlaw.com: Garland Doyle <GDovle&i>pontiac.mi.us> 

Subject: RE: City Clerk Fall Newsletter 

Mayor Waterman: 

Thank you for the note. The issue that your referring to is at the very least subject to interpretation that has sound arguments on both sides. My thought is that it be put to rest with a an amendment in 
ordinance ( Sec. 2.544 E 2). I realize there are credible arguments against that approach. Still, Pontiac Citizens and the applicant are best served with a speedy resolution. Therefore, my opinion is the once 
the aerk's Department has completed the review of the non-provisioning applications he should notify all of the applicants of the status. If an application review is complete but the property is outside of the 
Cesar Chavez or Walton Blvd Medical Marijuana Overlay Districts and the Oeti( determines that a license should not be issued the Clerk should notify the applicant that the review is complete but the property 

is located outside of the Medical Overlay District. 

Thank you, 

Rob 

Rob Huth 

.•A - ~ H I I I H 11 MIi 71:' 1 



Communication Supporting the Agreement 

RE: [FWD: Gl enwood Plaza] 

• 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman <DWaterman@pontiac.mi.us> 
To Vernon Gustafsson; Anthony Chubb; Matthe,.•; Gibbs 

Cc manni@rubiconcapital.co: joseph.michael735@yahoo.com; Angelo Taylor 

~ <~ • 

Tue i i :08 Al, 

Hello all , Vern shared this email chain with us and I want to share with you my 
response to a text from Manny and Angelo T, this morning, just so we all can be 
on same page: 
Their text to me this am stated: ">>>>Garland feels like he can issue the licenses 
if we have our Special Exemption Permir .. .. " 
My response: ''Yeah! So Garland finally admits he's reviewed & can approve 
app!! (Wish he would share that with rest of us in the government, but at least we 
learned it from you.) SEP was always part of our customary process for license in 
these cases. Just talked to Vern & he's having T. Chubb reach out to you for next 
steps." Let's keep the process moving forward. 

~
-:•r2.. 

.-'. ~~,,_ 
~ . .. . ~ .... 

1· "t- .I § -- -- -... 
"-<--~·,•·· 

Dr. Deirdre Waterman 

Mayor I Executive Office 
47450 Woodward Avenue LPontlac.., Ml 48342 

Direct Dial: 248.758.3181 Error! Hyperlink reference not valid. 
dwaterman@pontiac.mi.us w,w, .ponliac.mi.us 



Why doesn't the referred ordinance suggestion apply to 
present applications? 

Retroactive legislation presents problems of unfairness that are more serious than 
those posed by prospective legislation, because it can deprive citizens of legitimate 
expectations and upset settled transactions. 

General Motors Corp v Romein 

Legally existing uses of land prior to a new or amended zoning ordinance that are not in 
compliance are considered to be nonconforming uses. A nonconforming use is a vested 
right in the use of particular property that is protected because it lawfully existed prior to 
the new or amended zoning ordinance. Common parlance has coined this as being 
"grandfathered-in." Under most circumstances, the existing use will continue to exist and 
not need to meet the new requirements of the zoning ordinance 

Macomb Twp v Svinte 



Review must be based on the Ordinance at the time of 
Application 

Retroactive application of legislation (in this case the proposed ordinance amendment) 
presents problems of unfairness because it can deprive citizens of legitimate 
expectations and upset settled transactions. The courts have certain principles in mind 
when reviewing municipal ac~ion seeking to impose a retroactive obligation: First, 
whether there is specific language providing for retroactive application. Second, whether 
it is operating retroactively merely because it relates to an antecedent event. Third, 
whether the retroactive law impairs vested rights acquired under existing laws or create 
new obligations or duties with respect to transactions or considerations already past. 

LaFontaine Saline, Inc v Chrysler Group, LLC 



Current Effect of the Two Conditional Rezoning(s) 

@;
•:I'j' 'f ~6? 

~ING MAP AMENDMENT WITH CONDITIONS 
\NFRIED 
~EWYORJCI PIN64-14-C8-35&-001 
ONE fAMILYOWElllNGTO UGHTMANUFACTIJRING 
li CONDITIONS 

The Oty of Pontiac is in receipt of application ZMA 20-03 for the proposed conoitional rezonir.;: of parrel 
64-14-08-356-00L The approximately .90-acre site has ac:ttSS to W New Ycrl< Avenue and Richard 
Avenue, both of these local rood dead-end into the para,1. Ryan Fried., the Applic:ant proposes a Zoning 
Map Amendment from R-1 One Family Dwelfing to M-1 Light Manufacturing with CR Conditional 
Rezoning. whidl would allow mediCill manlurana non-provisioning facilities to locate. According to the 
applic.ltion, the Applic.int proposes to develop the vacant parcel into a grrrwer and processor facility. 

If the rezoning with conditions are appl'O\•ed, the Applicant is required to obt;; in an approved Med'ical 
Marihuana permit for each Medical Marihuana fao7ity from the Oty and state of Michig.n. Complete a 
site plan per Section 6-204 to otltain a prelimina,y and final site plan review from the PlaMing 
Commission. Since this parcel is located outside the watton 6lvd Medical Marinuana Overly District. the 
Appftc:ant will also need to obtain a Special Exception Permrt approval from the PlaMing Commission. 

• Pursuant to Michigan Law the two 
approved conditional rezoning 
applications work to allow the use of 
Medical Marijuana on each site as a 
permitted use. A denial of permitting 
cannot be based on location/use on the 
site. 

• This triggers the apparent intent of 
Section 3.1106 of the Ordinance that 
clearly sets forth a process whereby 
applicants outside of the overlay areas 
can apply to the Planning Commission for 
a Special Exemption Permit. 



Is the Interim Clerk's suggested revision already in the 
Ordinance? YES 

Section 3.1106 - Medical Marihuan.a Uses Requiring Planning Commission Special Exception Permit 

Medical Marihuana uses outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts are subject to Planning Commission approval 

following the Standards for Approval or Section 6.303 for Special Exception Permits, and Article 2, Chapter 5, Development 

Standards for Specific Uses 

Section 3.1107 - Standards for Special Exemption Approval 

For consideration of Medical Marihuana uses by the Planning Commission, the Commission shall review each application 
for the purpose of determining that each Medical Marihuana facility on its location will: 

1. Not impact surrounding residential neighborhoods. 

2. Provide easy access for patiems with accessible parking. 

3. Be adequately served by utilities with sufficient capacity. 

4. Corridors and streets have the capacity to accommodate potential increases in traffic volumes. 

5. Demonstrate a safe and security environment, and uphold the public welfare of the community. 

6. Do not add unintended or impromptu costs to City and municipal services. 

7. Comply with Section 6.303 Standards for Approval in the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance. 



What is the conflict causing the delay? 

Is the use ~ Was it timely 
~ Is the location 

allowed on the 
~ Has a building 

property? 
submitted? 

outside an permit been 
overlay? issued? 

Has a rezoning 
Has the 

been Is it complete? Planning 
MEDICAL 

approved? 
Commission 

MARIJUANA 

granted a SEP? PERMIT 

-~7 

Is the use 
r 

Has it been 

Grandfathered? 
reviewed and 
approved? 



What's the way through this? 

1. Issue a decision indicating that the 
application is complete and ready for 
approval subject to the SEP. 

2. The PC reviews the SEP Application. 

3. C lerk determines final award. 

* If the Clerk continues to have a concern 
about land use, at this point, his authority is 
satisfied, and the applicant can pursue its 
remedies under law and ordinance. 

From: Robert Huth <rh~-th@kni:huthlaw.com> 

Sent: Thursday, December 3, 2020 3:24 PM 

RE: [FWD: Glenwood Plaza] 

Mayo, Deirdre Waterman <DWaterman@pontiac.mi.us> 
To V('fflQl"l ~'sso"'t An-,1,0~ Ch..:Jb ~~"thr.~ Gibbs 
Cc ~ 1,1:.,,C~,,c::,pitalco; ~lS~ccn ~ T:,:.,loc' 

"-;. ~ -; 

t.a- : · 

Hello all. Vern shared this email chain with us and I want to share with you my 
response to a text from Manny and Angelo T, this morning. just so we all can be 
on same page: 
Their text to me this am stated: -»»Gartand reels like he can issue the licenses 
if we have our Special Exemplion Permit· ... : 
My response: -veah! So Garland finally admits he·s reviewed & can approve 
app!l (Wish he would share that with rest of us in the government but at least we 
learned it from you.) SEP was always part of our customary process for license in 
these cases. Just talked lo Vern & he's having T. Chubb reach out to you for ne)(t 
steps.- Lei's keep the process moving forward. 

.. c,. 
/}.~ t:_+ I •• 

'; ,, .,·· 

Dr. Deirdre Waterman 

fayof· I he-cut.Ive Otrtee 
47'50 ~ d A't#l&lt )J'onmc:.._M 4134,2 

llhcl DiaC 243.758.3181 Errof! Hypfflinl< re~ - vollcL 
dw;atemui,n«ponlUic..trlLU~ 

....,.~r....m u 

To: Mayor Deirdre Waterman <OWaterman@DOntiac.mws>; Matthew Gibb <g1bblaw@hotmail.com> 
Cc: Anthony Chubb <ach~mhlaw.rom>: tcl.r\:@gmhl.w.com; Garland Doyle <GQQyle@ponhac.J!lt.!,!P 

Subject: RE: City Clerk Fan Newsletter 

Mayor Watennan; 

Than.k you for the note. The i$$ue that your referring to is at the very least subjed to interpret;tion that has sound .rguments on both sid.es. My thought is that it be put to rest with a an amendment in 
ordinance ( Sec. 2.544 E 2). 1 rearae there are credible a.rguments against that approach. Still, Pontiac Citizens and the appr.cant are best served with a speedy ,~orution. Therefore, my opinion is the once 

the Clerk's Department has completed the review of the non-provisioning applications ne should not ify all of the applicants of the status. If an appr.cation review is complete but the property is outside of the 
Cesar Chavez or Walton Blvd Medical Marijuana ~,lay Districts and the Clerk determines that a license should not be issued the Clerk should notify the applicont that the review is complete but the property 

is located outside of the Medical Overlay District. 



Are there other issues now causing potential conflict for the 
City? 

• It appears Election 
Funds may have been 
used to print and mail a 
post-election Medical 
Marijuana newsletter 
with an incorrect legal 
statement. 

• Exparte 
communications can 
expose the City as an 
applicant may assert in 
court it relied on the 
statement. 

The City has received the following grower and processor applications that are not in e ither the Cesar 
Chavez or Watton Blvd Overlay Districts a.s required by Ordinance 2363. 

Grower Applications 

ESl:ablishme.nt N.lme Estabfoshment Address 

Botanical Greens Inc. 1651 E Highwood 
r:.amily Rootz 1-97 S Glenwood Bldg. C4$342 

Family Rootz l ·97 s Glenwood Space 35 Unit 100 48342 

Phartnaco Inc. 13 S Glenwood 4&342 
Processor Appf,cations 
Family Rootz 1-97 S Glenwood Space 35 Unit 100 4&342 

Phartnaco Inc. 13 S Glenwood 48342 

W hat w ill happen to these applications? 
In J anuary 2020. the City Council submitted a proposed zoning map amendment to the Planning 
Commission to allow grower and processor facilities to locate outside of the Cesar Chavez and Watt on B lvd 
Overlay Districts. The Planning Commiss ion has yet to issue a recommendation to the City Council. The City 
Council must receive a recommendation from the Planning Commission prior to amending Ordinance 2363. 
Until Ordinance 2363 is amended these applications cannot be licensed by the Office of the City Oerk. 



#7 
COMMUNICATION 

FROM THE 
CITY CLERK 



January 8, 2021 

Mic,hael J. Weikert, Esq, 
The Weikert Law Finn, PLLC 
901 Wilshire Dr. Suite 550 
Troy, Ml 48084 

Dear Mr. Weikert: 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERJ( 

MEDICAL MAruHUANA DIVISION 
47450 Woodward Avcnu~ 
Ponrbc, Michigan 48342 
Phone: (248) 758,3200 
fax: (248) 758-3160 

Please clarify if you only represent Rubicon Real Estate Holdings, LLC. and not grower and processm' 
applicants Family Rootz and/or Pharmaco, Inc. 

The purpose for this question is because my role is to issue permits (licenses) to applicants and add1:ess 
any applicant concerns. 

lfyou do not represent one or both of the applicants that are refe1·enced in your letter to the City Council, 
what I can discuss with you is limited. 

Therefore, I will address the issues-in your letter that are of a general nature and not pertaining to a 
specific applicant. 

According to Ordinance 2357(B) "City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana Pac iii ties Ordinance''., l cannot 
issue n permit to an applicant unless all of the following conditions have been met. 

(n) Grower and Processor applicµnts must submit a completed application that sntisfnctorily meetll 
tho requirements of Ordinance 2357(B) 

-(b) Pay the non-refundable $5,000 application fee 
(c) Fire Department and Building Departments have inspected the proposed location for compliance 

with all state nnd local building, electrical, fire, mechanical and plumbing requirements . 
( d) The facll ity has been issued a certificate of occupancy and if necessary, a building permit 
(e) Applicant must have received their pre-approval from the State of Michigan 
(t) Application must be in compliance with Ordinance 2363 (Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance) 

As it relates Ordinance 2363 Section 2.544 - Medical Marlhuann Grower E. Licensing 2 "Medical 
Marihuann Growe1· uses nrc not pet·mitted outside the Cesar Chavez 1111d Walton Blv<l Medical 
Marihmma Overlay Dish'icts" 

Section 2.545 - Mcdic:11 Mnriluuma Processor E. Licensing 2 "Medical Marihuana Processo .. uses 
arc not permitted outside the Cesar Chavez mad Walton Blvd Mediclll Marihuanu Overlay 
Districts" 



In your letter to the Council you reference Ordinance 2361 Section 3.1106. The correct Ordinance is 2363 
not 2361. Section 3 .1106 of Ordinance 2363 .Medical Marihuana Uses Requiring PJanning Commission 
Special Exemption Permit hMedical Marihuana uses outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts are 
subject to Planning Commission approval" 

There are several Medical Marihuana Licenses that are permitted outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay 
Districts. They are provisioning centers, safety compliance and secure transporter. Grower and Processors 
are not allowed outside of the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Overlay Distdcts. 

Section 2.546 Medical Marihuana I>rovisioning Center F. Licensing 4 "No more than five (5) 
Provisioning Centers shall be established in the C-1, C-3 and C-4 zoned properties combined outside the 
Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts" 

Section 2.547 Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility E. Licensing 3 "Medical Marihuana Safety 
Compliance uses are permitted in the Cesar Chavez, Walton Blvd, and C-2 Downtown Medical 
Marihuana Overlay Districts and in the C-1, C-3, C-4, M-1 and M-2 zoning districts outside the Medical 
Marihuana Ovel'lay Distrlcts." . 

Section 2.548 Medical ly1arihuana Secure Transpo1ter G. Lice11sing 2 "Medical Marihuann Secure 
Transporter uses are permitted in the Cesar Chavez,Walton Blvd, and C-2 Dowritown Medical 
Marjhuana and in the C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, M-1 and M-2 zoning districts outside-the Medical Marihuana 
Overlay Districts." 

Yes, the intent of ordinance was that Growers and Processors could not locate outside the two overlay 
distdcts. To further illustrate that is the case, I have included the table from Ordinance 2363 that shows 
where the types of facilities can locate. Please note that there is no * for Special Exemption Permit in 
either the Grower or Processor section of the table. 

Com111orol11I, Office, u11d Survlce U!jo& 

RosldonU<1l lnd1l11lr!HI 
comlnorolol 0111trlota 

Dlslrlott1 P lalrlcli; 

R-1 R·2 FM c-o C-1 C-2 ¢-3 C-4 M-1 ~-...... 

M·uulcul M11rlhuuna Orowor 0 

Modlool Murlhunhn PfOCcssor 0 

\ '• 
I .. 

, Medlcol Morlhunnn'Pro11[$lo11lno 
.. . I "* . ·1< * '.· . t '? 0 0 . ·: . 0 

Centers I 
: 

... ~ .. I" ·- - .......... ·-· ----•-•'•-· 
hitodlefll Mt1rlhu1ma Sofoly ::· ' -A· -~• ,'! · * . * I 

' 0 0 ,,, ~ 

Compll~nce Fnclllly I ., ' . . 
• :,: • ::, ,• • I 

ivJodJonl MnrlhU(!nO Sut:11ro . ~ i * ·ih'. -Ir . • ' '·· 0 . . , I 
0 •• I .. 0 

Tranoporlor., .. 

*speclol l:xcApllo11 Pc rmll Uses 011tslclFl tho Madlcal Morlhuoutt Ovocluy Dl$lTlcts . 

o l'rlnclpul Pcrn11ttcd IJ~os In th" Mcdlcnl Mnrlhuann Overlay Dlstrlcl$ 

M•2 IP-1 

() () 

0 0 

. ~ l ,, 
,•. 

0 ·' i; 
I ,1 

_.;.., ...... ... 

* 0 0 

* 0 0 

Sacllon 

2,544 

section 

2,54S 

Soctlon 

2.5116 

·-
Socllon 

2,547 

Soctlon 

2,540 

2 



Ful'thcm1ore, this is why the City Council referred a text amendment to the Plllnning Commission 
in January 2020 that has yet to be considered. The amendment would allow Grower nnd Processors 
to locate outside of the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Overlay Districts like otllo1· Medical 
Mnl'lhuana uses a1·c pe1·mitted. This amendment would be in alignment with the intent of Pontiac 
voters which was not to limit grower and processors to two areas when they approved Ordinance 
2357 (D) in 2018. 

As it relates to issuing licenses, L have previously stated what is required for applicants to receive a 
license. Since it is not clear whether you represent the applicants. I will t\Ot discuss with you the status of 
their applications. 

Additionally, I have attached a copy of ordinance 2363 so you can familiarize yomselfwith ordinance to 
improve your lack of understanding of it. 

As the City Clerk, I am required to follow ordinances as they are written. 

CC: City Council Members 

3 



City Clerk's Response to the 
Continuation of Mayor Waterman, 

Attorney Anthony Chubb and Attorney 
Matt Gibb Conflicting Opinions and 
Distributing Inaccurate Information 

about the Medical Marihuana Review 
Process 

Presented By: Garland Doyle, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 

January 5, 2021 

http://pontiaccityclerk.com/medical-marihuana 



• What are the requirements to obtaining a Medical Marihuana Permit in the City of 
Pontiac? 

• What is the conflict causing the delay? 

• Has the City Clerk offered solutions to the conflict? 

• What agreement was reached at Council Sub-Committee that will resolve the conflict? 

• Was the City Clerk newsletter an election budget expense? 

• Has the City Attorney given the City Clerk bad legal advice about the Medical 
Marihuana process before? 

• When will the Clerk begin to announce the selection of Medical Marihuana applicants? 

• Are there other issues now causing potential conflict for the city? 



What are the requirements to obtaining a Medical 
Marihuana Permit in the City of Pontiac? 

The Facts 

The process is determined by Ordinance 2357(B) "City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance". 
The ordinance was approved by Pontiac voters in August 2018. 

The ordinance requires the following for Grower, Processor, Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter 
Applicants 

1. Submit a completed application to the City Clerk 

2. Pay the non-refundable $5,000 application fee 

3. Application is reviewed by the City Clerk 

4. If the applicant satisfactorily meets the requirements of Ordinance 2357(B) 

b. Fire Department and Building and Safety Department inspects the proposed location for compliance 
with all state and local building, electrical, fire, mechanical and plumbing requirements 

c. Application must be in compliance with Ordinance 2363 (Medical Marihuana Zoning) 

d. Applicant receives certificate of occupancy and if necessary, a building permit 

5. Clerk can issue a permit to applicant after steps 1-4d if applicant has obtained their pre-approval from the 
State of Michigan 



The Ordinance requires the following for Provisioning 
Center Applicants 

The City will award no more than 20 Provisioning Center pennits. (No more than five (5) in each of the following 
districts): 

• Cesar Chavez 

• Downtown 

• Non Overlay 

• Walton Blvd 

1. Submitted a completed application to the City Clerk between January 6-27, 2020 for one of the designated districts 

2. Paid the non-refundable $5,000 application fee 

3. Application is reviewed by the City Clerk based on a 130 point scale 

4. The applications receiving the five highest scores in each of four districts will be awarded a permit if: 

b. Fire Department and Building and Safety Department inspects the proposed location for compliance with all 
state and local building, electrical, fire, mechanical and plumbing requirements 

c. Application must be in compliance with Ordinance 2363 (Medical Marihuana Zoning) 

d. Applicant receives certificate of occupancy and if necessary, a building permit 

5. Clerk can issue a permit to applicant after steps 1-4d if applicant has obtained their pre-approval from the State of 
Michigan 



What is the conflict causing the delay? 
• Ordinance 2363 (Medical Marihuana Zoning) only pennits Growers or Processors to be licensed if 

they are located in the Cesar Chavez or Walton Overlay Districts. 

• Ordinance 2363 Section 2.544 - Medical Marihuana Grower Facilities 

E. Licensing 

2. Medical Marihuana Grower uses are not permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Medical 
Marihuana Overlay Districts. 

Ordinance 2363 Section 2.545 Medical Marihuana Processor 

E. Licensing 

2. Medical Marihuana Processor uses are not permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Medical 
Marihuana Overlay Districts 

The City has recei.-ed the follo'wing grower and processor applications that are not in either the Cesar 
Cba\·ez or Walton Bh-d O\·eday Districts as required by Ordinance 2363. 

Gron-er Ai,plications 
Establishment ~ ame Establishment Address 

Familv Rootz 1097 S Glenwood Blda. C 48342 
F amih· Rootz 1-9 I S Glenwood Soace 35 Unit 100 48342 
Pharm.aco Inc. 13 S Glerm·ood 48342 
Processor Annlications 
Familv Rootz 1-97 S Glenwood Soace 35 Unit 100 48342 
Pharm.aco Inc. 13 S Glenwood 48342 

'What mil happen to these applications? 
In January 2020, the City Council submitted a proposed znoio~ map amendment to the Planning 
Commission to allow gro't\-er and processor facilities to locate outside of the Cesar ChaYez and Walton 
Bh·d O,,·e:rlay Districts. The Planning Commission bas yet to issue a recommendation to the City Council 
The City Council must recei-1:e a recommendation from the Planning: Commission prior to amending 
Ordinance 2363. t:ntil Ordirumce 2363 is amended these 2.pplicarions C2ru1ot be licensed by the Office of 
the City Clerk.. 



Has the City Clerk offered solutions to the 
conflict? 

Yes, the City Clerk has offered two solutions to the conflict that have 
been supported by his legal advisor Rob Huth, Esq. 

A. The Clerk proposed to the City Council to amend ordinance 2363 section 2.544 E 
Licensing 

2. Medical Marihuana Grower uses are not permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd 
Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts unless the applicant has received a conditional rezoning. 

This amendment was rejected by the City Attorney 

B. The Clerk proposed to the City Council to amend ordinance 2363 section 2.544 E 
Licensing 

2. Medical Marihuana Grower uses are not permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd 
Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts unless the applicant receives a special exemption permit. 

The City Attorneys are stating that this proposed amendment is already in the ordinance. 
There is special exemption language in the ordinance but it does not state that Grower and 
Processors can be licensed outside of Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana 
Overlay Districts if they obtain a special exemption permit. 



Legal Advisor Rob Huth, Esq. supports City 
Clerk's proposed amendments 

Thank you for the note. The issue that your referring to is at the very least subject to interpretation that has sound arguments on both sides. My thought is that it be put to rest with a an amendment in ordlnance ( Sec. 

2.544 E 2). I realize there are credible arguments against that approach. Still, Pontiac Citizens and the applicant are best served with a speedy resolution. Therefore, my opinion is the once the derlc's Department has 
completed the review oi the non-provisioning applications he should notify all of the applicants of the status. If an application review is complete but the property is outside of the Cesar Chave.z or Walton Blvrl Medical 
Marijuana Overlay Districts and the Cl er!< determines that a license should not be issued the d erl< should notify the applicant that the review is complete but the property is located outside of the Medical Overlay District. 

Thank you, 

Rob 

Rob Huth 

19500 Hall Road, Suite 100 
Cli.oton Township,~ 48038 
Phone: 586.-H2.4900 :-c 10:5 
Fa.'t: 586.412.49-19 
Cell: 586.212.1188 
rhuth(ti;KirkHuthlaw.c.om 
n"TI.r.KirkHuthlaw.com 



• What agreement was reached at Council Sub-Commi 
that will resolve the conflict? 

No agreement was reached. 

• Was the City Clerk newsletter an election budget 
expense? 

Yes, since Medical Marihuana was a voter approved ballot initiative in 2018. 
The City Clerk was right to use election budget funds to inform Pontiac 
residents about the status of the Medical Marihuana process. The Clerk did not 
use grant funds which were designated for the 2020 Election. 



Has the City Attorney given the City Clerk bad 
legal advice about the Medical Marihuana process 

before? 

• Yes, the City Attorney told the City Clerk that the Clerk could not 
determine the 21 day application period because the Mayor 
vetoed a council resolution in November 2019. The settling of the 
21 day application was challenged in court. The court ruled that 
the Clerk sets the 21 day application period. 



When will the Clerk begin to announce the 
selection of Medical Marihuana applicants? 

• Grower and Processor applications submitted before September 27, 
2020 and the top 5 scored provisioning center applications for the Cesar 
Chavez Overlay District will be announced in January 2021 . 

• Announced after January 2021, the top 5 scored provisioning center 
applications for: 

• Downtown Overlay District 

• Non Overlay District 

• Walton Blvd Overlay District 

Grower and Processor applications submitted after September 27, 2020. 



• Are there other issues now causing potential 
conflict for the city? 

Yes, a Medical Marihuana applicant has alleged to the City Clerk 
that the City entered into a conditional rezoning agreement with an 
entity that was not the property owner at the time the conditional 
rezoning was approved. The applicant is stating that the rezoning is 
invalid and threatening to sue the City. 

If the City entered into a conditional rezoning agreement with a non 
property owner that would be a contradiction of the Michigan 
Zoning Enabling Act 110 of 2006 125.3405 Sec 405 that stipulates 
"an owner of land may voluntarily offer in writing and the local unit 
of government may approve, certain use and development of the 
land as a condition to rezoning of the land or an amendment to a 
zoning map". 

• The City cannot rezone land for non property owners. 



Facts 

• The City has approved two conditional rezonings 

1. Conditional rezoning for Medical Marihuana for Rubicon Capital 
LLC on January 29, 2020 

2. Conditional rezoning for Medial Marihuana for Ryan Fried 
(Flourish Michigan Grow) on September 1, 2020. 

Both conditional rezonings were recommended by the Planning 
Commission and the rezoning agreement had been approved as to 
form by the City Attorney. 

Questions 

1) Did Rubicon Capital LLC own the land at the time of the 
approval of their rezoning on January 21, 2020? 

2) Did Ryan Fried (Flourish Michigan Grow) own the land at the 
time of the approval of his rezoning on September 1, 2020? 



The Office of the City Clerk 

is committed to a process that follows the 
ordinance as approved by the voters that is 

fair, transparent and has integrity. 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 





Whereas, Michigan Open Meetings Act Section B(h), MCL 15.268(h), allows a public 

body to go into closed session to consider material exempt from discussion or disclosure 

by state or federal statute; and 

Whereas, Michigan Freedom of information Act Section 13(g) exempts from disclosure 

records subject to the attorney-client privilege; 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Pontiac City Council that it recess into closed 

session to discuss an attorney-client privileged memorandum regarding a letter received 

from the Counsel for Rubicon Capital, which is exempt from disclosure pursuant to MCL 

15.243(1)(9 ). 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable City Council President Williams and City Council Members 

FROM: Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
Mike Wilson, Building and Safety 

DATE: January 7, 2021 

RE: Mayor's Recommendation for Resolution to Waive rental inspection 
fee for eligible landlords who have participated in tenants receiving 
rental assistance Cares Act relief funds or eviction moratorium 

To provide a one-time waiver of rental inspection fees by the City of Pontiac for 
landlords who have been impacted by tenants unable to pay rent due to the impacts of 
the COVID 19 Novel Coronavirus, until March 31, 2021. 

This program is for all landlords who have retained tenants who are behind in rent. 
Eligible landlords must meet at least one of the following conditions: 

a) have applied for and received federal CARES Act mortgage assistance through 
Oakland County as a result of tenants not paying rent, 

b) have not evicted renters who are behind in rent as a result of a stay of eviction order 
from Oakland County Circuit Court, 

c) have received federal assistance to cover a portion of rent for their tenants in the 
form of Housing choice vouchers, Section 8 project based rental assistance, LIHTC 
program or 

d) have a federally backed mortgage or multi-family mortgage loan and have not 
evicted tenants for non-payment of rent since April 1, 2020. 

Attachment 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams, and City Council 
Members 

FROM: Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

CC: Linnette Phillips, Economic Development Director 
Michael J. Wilson, Building and Safety 

DATE: January 7, 2021 

RE: Resolution to Approve Extension of the Cares Act Landlord 
Reimbursement for Tenant Non-Payment or Stay of Eviction 

To provide a one-time waiver of rental inspection fees by the City of Pontiac, for 
landlords who have been impacted by tenants unable to pay rent due to the impacts 
of the COVID 19 Novel Coronavirus. As such, the following resolution is 
recommended for your consideration: 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac in the midst of the Pandemic is offering relief 
for Qualifying Pontiac Landlords, and; 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac would waive one time the rental inspection fee for 
Qualifying Landlords, and; 

WHEREAS, the Mayor is proposing along with City Council to pass along this 
relief gesture to qualifying landlords until March 31, 2021, 

NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council in solidarity with the 
Mayor hereby authorizes the waiver of fees for qualifying landlords until March 31, 
2001. 



Waive Recommendation of Rental Inspection Fees for Eligible Landlords Who Have Participated in 
Tenants Receiving Rental Assistance Through the Cares Act Relief Funds or Eviction Moratorium 

Purpose: 
To provide a one-time waiver of rental inspection fees by the City of Pontiac for landlords who have been 
impacted by tenants unable to pay rent due to the impacts of the COVID 19 Novel Coronavirus. 
This program is for all landlords who have retained tenants who are behind in rent. Eligible landlords must 
meet at least one of the following conditions: a) have applied for and received federal CARES Act mortgage 
assistance through Oakland County as a result of tenants not paying rent, b) have not evicted renters who 
are behind in rent as a result of a stay of eviction order from Oakland County Circuit Court, c) have received 
federal assistance to cover a portion of rent for their tenants in the form of Housing choice vouchers, Section 
8 project based rental assistance, LIHTC program or d) have a federally backed mortgage or multifamily 
mortgage loan and have not evicted tenants for non-payment of rent since April 1, 2020. 

Qualifications: 
Landlords who have expiring rental certificates of compliance and are otherwise in good standing, and who 
have already completed the required Cares Act process with Oakland county, and who may be receiving 
payment assistance can request to have rental inspection fees waived through March 31st, Landlords 
applying for the waiver of Pontiac rental inspection fees must have made application for reimbursement of 
non-payment by a tenant to Oakland County and/or have a stay of eviction issued by the Circuit Court. 

Waiver: 
If landlords meet the above criteria, they are eligible for a one-time waiver of any rental inspection or re
inspection fees for Certificates of Compliance that expire between April 1, 2020 and March 31, 2021. 

CARES Act FAQ'S 

What Properties Does the CARES Act Protect? 

• The CARES Act's eviction protections apply to "covered dwellings," which are rental units in 
properties: (1) that participate in federal assistance programs, (2) are subject to a "federally backed 
mortgage loan," or (3) are subject to a "federally backed multifamily mortgage loan." 

• Covered federal assistance programs include most rental assistance and housing grant programs, 
including public housing, Housing Choice Vouchers, Section 8 Project-Based Rental Assistance, 
rural housing programs, and the Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) program. 

• A "federally backed mortgage loan" is a single-family (1-4 units) residential mortgage owned or 
securitized by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac or insured, guaranteed, or otherwise assisted by the 
federal government. The term includes mortgages insured by the Federal Housing Administration 
and the Department of Veterans Affairs, and the Department of Agriculture's direct and guaranteed 
loans. The act defines a "federally backed multifamily mortgage loan" almost identically to 
"federally backed mortgage loan" except that it applies to properties designed for five or more 
families. 

Unless the CDC order is extended, changed, or ended, if a tenant meets certain conditions, the order 
prevents you from being evicted or removed from where you are living through January 31, 2021. 

January 5, 2021 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Council President, and City Council Members 

Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
Abdul H Siddiqui, PE, City Engineer 

DATE: January 12, 2021 

RE: MDOT Orchard Lake Rd Signal Modernization Construction Funding 

Agreement (Contract No. 20-5510) 

The Michigan Department of Transportation (MOOT) has prepared and delivered the 
attached funding agreement for construction of the Orchard Lake Rd Signal Modernization 
CMAQ Project. The construction for this project is mostly funded through MOOT Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds totaling $1,185,000. The total estimated cost of 
the project is $1,220,764.60, with the City's portion of the project being $35,764.60. This 
project is budgeted in fiscal year 2021/22. 

The CMAQ funding from the Michigan Department of Transportation is provided based on 
competitive application and is specifically for providing more efficient roadway corridors. 
These projects go through an MOOT bid letting and are awarded, and funded by MOOT. 
The City will be responsible for our match on the project as stated above. 

It is the recommendation of the Department of Public Works, Engineering Division that the 
City sign the attached MOOT funding agreement for construction of the Orchard Lake Rd 
Signal Modernization CMAQ Project: 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 
BE IT RESOLVED, 

AHS 

attachments 

The City of Pontiac has received the funding agreement from the 
Michigan Department of Transportation, and; 

The Department of Public Works, Engineering Division has 
reviewed the subject agreement, and; 

The project is budgeted in the 2021/22 Major Street budget, 

The Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to sign the MOOT 
funding agreement for construction of the Orchard Lake Rd Signal 
Modernization CMAQ Project. · 



STP DA 
Control Section 
Job Number 
Project 
CFDANo. 

Contract No. 

PART I 

CPMG63000 
208719CON 
21A0113 
20.205 (Highway Research 
Planning & Construction) 
20-5510 

THIS CONTRACT, consisting of PART I and PART II (Standard Agreement 
Provisions), is made by and between the MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT"; and the CITY OF 
PONTIAC, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "REQUESTING 
PARTY"; for the purpose of fixing the rights and obligations of the parties in agreeing to the 
following improvements, in the City of Pontiac, Michigan, hereinafter referred to as the 
"PROJECT" and estimated in detail on EXHIBIT "I", dated December 29, 2020, attached hereto 
and made a part hereof: 

Signal modernization work at five locations along Orchard Lake Road from Home Depot 
Driveway/Berwick Road to Bagley Street, including signal interconnect, signal 
optimization, actuation, cabinet upgrades, sidewalk ramp construction work; and all 
together with necessary related work. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Federal law, monies have been provided for the performance of 
certain improvements on public roads; and 

WHEREAS, the reference "FHWA" in PART I and PART II refers to the United States 
Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration; and 

WHEREAS, the PROJECT, or portions of the PROJECT, at the request of the 
REQUESTING PARTY, are being programmed with the FHWA, for implementation with the 
use of Federal Funds under the following Federal program(s) or funding: 

CONGESTION MITIGATION AND AIR QUALITY FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have reached an understanding with each other regarding 
the performance of the PROJECT work and desire to set forth this understanding in the form of a 
written contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual undertakings of 
the parties and in conformity with applicable law, it is agreed: 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR 12/29/20 1 



1. The parties hereto shall undertake and complete the PROJECT in accordance with 
the terms of this contract. 

2. The term "PROJECT COST", as herein used, is hereby defined as the cost of the 
. physical construction necessary for the completion of the PROJECT, including any other costs 
incurred by the DEPARTMENT as a result of this contract, except construction engineering and 
inspection. 

No charges will be made by the DEPARTMENT to the PROJECT for any inspection 
work or construction engineering. 

The costs incurred by the REQUESTING PARTY for preliminary engineering, 
construction engineering, construction materials testing, inspection, and right-of-way are 
excluded from the PROJECT COST as defined by this contract. 

The Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) has 
informed the DEPARTMENT that it adopted new administrative rules (R 325.10101, et. seq.) 
which prohibit any governmental agency from connecting and/or reconnecting lead and/or 
galvanized service lines to existing and/or new water main. Questions regarding these 
administrative rules should be directed to EGLE. The cost associated with replacement of any 
lead and/or galvanized service lines, including but not limited to contractor claims, will be the 
sole responsibility of the REQUESTING PARTY. 

3. The DEPARTMENT is authorized by the REQUESTING PARTY to administer 
on behalf of the REQUESTING PARTY all phases of the PROJECT, including advertising and 
awarding the construction contract for the PROJECT or portions of the PROJECT. Such 
administration shall be in accordance with PART II, Section II of this contract. 

Any items of the PROJECT COST incurred by the DEPARTMENT may be charged to 
the PROJECT. 

4. The REQUESTING PARTY, at no cost to. the PROJECT or to the 
DEPARTMENT, shall: 

A. Design or cause to be designed the plans for the PROJECT. 

B. Appoint a project engineer who shall be in responsible charge of the 
PROJECT and ensure that the plans and specifications are followed. 

C. Perform or cause to be performed the construction engineering, 
construction materials testing, and inspection services necessary for the 
completion of the PROJECT. 

The REQUESTING PARTY will furnish the DEPARTMENT proposed timing 
sequences for trunkline signals that, if any, are being made part of the improvement. No timing 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR 12/29/20 2 



adjustments shall be made by the REQUESTING PARTY at any trunkline intersection, without 
prior issuances by the DEPARTMENT of Standard Traffic Signal Timing Permits. 

5. The PROJECT COST shall be met in part by contributions by the Federal 
Government. Federal Surface Transportation Funds shall be applied to the eligible items of the 
PROJECT COST up to the lesser of: (1) $1,185,000, or (2) an amount such that 100 percent, the 
normal Federal participation ratio for such funds, is not exceeded at the time of the award of the 
construction contract. The balance of the PROJECT COST, after deduction of Federal Funds, 
shall be charged to and paid by the REQUESTING PARTY in the manner and at the times 
hereinafter set forth. 

Any items of PROJECT COST not reimbursed by Federal Funds will be the sole 
responsibility of the REQUESTING PARTY. 

6. No working capital deposit will be required for this PROJECT. 

In order to fulfill the obligations assumed by the REQUESTING PARTY under the 
provisions of this contract, the REQUESTING PARTY shall make prompt payments of its share 
of the PROJECT COST upon receipt of progress billings from the DEPARTMENT as herein 
provided. All payments will be made within 30 days of receipt of billings from the 
DEPARTMENT. Billings to the REQUESTING PARTY will be based upon the REQUESTING 
PARTY'S share of the actual costs incurred less Federal Funds earned as the PROJECT 
progresses. 

7. Upon completion of construction of the PROJECT, the REQUESTING PARTY 
will promptly cause to be enacted and enforced such ordinances or regulations as may be 
necessary to prohibit parking in the roadway right-of-way throughout the limits of the 
PROJECT. 

8. The performance of the entire PROJECT under this contract, whether Federally 
funded or not, will be subject to the provisions and requirements of PART II that are applicable 
to a Federally funded project. 

In the event of any discrepancies between PART I and PART II of this contract, the 
provisions of PART I shall prevail. 

Buy America Requirements (23 CPR 635.410) shall apply to the PROJECT and will be 
adhered to, as applicable, by the parties hereto. 

9. The REQUESTING PARTY certifies that it is not aware if and has no reason to 
believe that the property on which the work is to be performed under this agreement is a facility, 
as defined by the Michigan Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act [(NREPA), PA 
451, 1994, as amended 2012]; MCL 324.20101(1)(s). The REQUESTING PARTY also 
certifies that it is not a liable party pursuant to either Part 201 or Part 213 of NREPA, MCL 
324.20126 et seq. and MCL 324.21323a et seq. The REQUESTING PARTY is a local unit of 
government that has acquired or will acquire property for the use of either a transportation 
09/06/90 STPLS.FOR 12/29/20 3 



corridor or public right-of-way and was not responsible for any activities causing a release or 
threat of release of any hazardous materials at or on the property. The REQUESTING PARTY 
is not a person who is liable for response activity costs, pursuant to MCL 324.20101 (vv) and 
(ww). 

10. If, subsequent to execution of this contract, previously unknown hazardous 
substances are discovered within the PROJECT limits, which require environmental remediation 
pursuant to either state or federal law, the REQUESTING PARTY, in addition to reporting that 
fact to the Department of Environmental Quality, shall immediately notify the DEPARTMENT, 
both orally and in writing of such discovery. The DEPARTMENT shall consult with the 
REQUESTING PARTY to determine if it is willing to pay for the cost of remediation and, with 
the FHW A, to determine the eligibility, for reimbursement, of the remediation costs. The 
REQUESTING PARTY shall be charged for and shall pay all costs associated with such 
remediation, including all delay costs of the contractor for the PROJECT, in the event that 
remediation and delay costs are not deemed eligible by the FHW A. If the REQUESTING 
PARTY refuses to participate in the cost of remediation, the DEPARTMENT shall terminate the 
PROJECT. The parties agree that any costs or damages that the DEPARTMENT incurs as a 
result of such termination shall be considered a PROJECT COST. 

11. If federal and/or state funds administered by the DEPARTMENT are used to pay 
the cost of remediating any hazardous substances discovered after the execution of this contract 
and if there is a reasonable likelihood of recovery, the REQUESTING PARTY, in cooperation 
with the Department of Environmental Quality and the DEPARTMENT, shall make a diligent 
effort to recover such costs from all other possible entities. If recovery is made, the 
DEPARTMENT shall be reimbursed from such recovery for the proportionate share of the 
amount paid by the FHWA and/or the DEPARTMENT and the DEPARTMENT shall credit 
such sums to the appropriate funding source. 

12. The DEPARTMENT'S sole reason for entering into this contract is to enable the 
REQUESTING PARTY to obtain and use funds provided by the Federal Highway 
Administration pursuant to Title 23 of the United States Code. 

Any and all approvals of, reviews of, and recommendations regarding contracts, 
agreements, permits, plans, specifications, or documents, of any nature, or any inspections of 
work by the DEPARTMENT or its agents pursuant to the terms of this contract are done to assist 
the REQUESTING PARTY in meeting program guidelines in order to qualify for available 
funds. Such approvals, reviews, inspections and recommendations by the DEPARTMENT or its 
agents shall not relieve the REQUESTING PARTY and the local agencies, as applicable, of their 
ultimate control and shall not be construed as a warranty of their propriety or that the 
DEPARTMENT or its agents is assuming any liability, control or jurisdiction. 

The providing of recommendations or advice by the DEPARTMENT or its agents does 
not relieve the REQUESTING PARTY and the local agencies, as applicable of their exclusive 
jurisdiction of the highway and responsibility under MCL 691.1402 et seq., as amended. · 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR 12/29/20 4 



When providing approvals, reviews and recommendations under this contract, the 
DEPARTMENT or its agents is performing a governmental function, as that term is defined in 
MCL 691.1401 et seq., as amended, which is incidental to the completion of the PROJECT. 

Upon completion of the PROJECT, the REQUESTING PARTY shall accept the facilities 
constructed as built to specifications within the contract documents. It is understood that the 
REQUESTING PARTY shall own the facilities and shall operate and maintain the facilities in 
accordance with applicable law. 

13. The DEPARTMENT, by executing this contract, and rendering services pursuant 
to this contract, has not and does not assume jurisdiction of the highway, described as the 
PROJECT for purposes of MCL 691.1402 et seq., as amended. Exclusive jurisdiction of such 
highway for the purposes of MCL 691.1402 et seq., as amended, rests with the REQUESTING 
PARTY and other local agencies having respective jurisdiction. 

14. The REQUESTING PARTY shall approve all of the plans and specifications to 
be used on the PROJECT and shall be deemed to have approved all changes to the plans and 
specifications when put into effect. It is agreed that ultimate responsibility and control over the 
PROJECT rests with the REQUESTING PARTY and local agencies, as applicable. 

15. The REQUESTING PARTY agrees that the costs reported to the DEPARTMENT 
for this contract will represent only those items that are properly chargeable in accordance with 
this contract. The REQUESTING PARTY also certifies that it has read the contract terms and 
has made itself aware of the applicable laws, regulations, and terms of this contract that apply to 
the reporting of costs incurred under the terms of this contract. 

16. Each party to this contract will remain responsible for any and all claims arising 
out of its own acts and/or omissions during the performance of the contract, as provided by this 
contract or by law. In addition, this is not intended to increase or decrease either party's liability 
for or immunity from tort claims. This contract is also not intended to nor will it be interpreted 
as giving either party a right of indemnification, either by contract or by law, for claims arising 
out of the performance of this contract. 

17. The parties shall promptly provide comprehensive assistance and cooperation in 
defending and resolving any claims brought against the DEPARTMENT by the contractor, 
vendors or suppliers as a result of the DEPARTMENT'S award of the construction contract for 
the PROJECT. Costs incurred by the DEPARTMENT in defending or resolving such claims 
shall be considered PROJECT COSTS. 

18. The DEPARTMENT shall require the contractor who is awarded the contract for 
the construction of the PROJECT to provide insurance in the amounts specified and in 
accordance with the DEPARTMENT'S current Standard Specifications for Construction and to: 

A. Maintain bodily injury and property damage insurance for the duration of 
the PROJECT. 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR 12/29/20 5 



B. Provide owner's protective liability insurance naming as insureds the State 
of Michigan, the Michigan State Transportation Commission, the 
DEPARTMENT and its officials, agents and employees, the 
REQUESTING PARTY and any other county, county road commission, 
or municipality in whose jurisdiction the PROJECT is located, and their 
employees, for the duration of the PROJECT and to provide, upon request, 
copies of certificates of insurance to the insureds. It is understood that the 
DEPARTMENT does not assume jurisdiction of the highway described as 
the PROJECT as a result of being named as an insured on the owner's 
protective liability insurance policy. 

C. Comply with the requirements of notice of cancellation and reduction of 
insurance set forth in the current standard specifications for construction 
and to provide, upon request, copies of notices and reports prepared to 
those insured. 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR 12/29/20 6 



19. This contract shall become binding on the parties hereto and of full force and 
effect upon the signing thereof by the duly authorized officials for the parties hereto and upon the 
adoption of the necessary resolutions approving said contract and authorizing the signatures 
thereto of the respective officials of the REQUESTING PARTY, a certified copy of which 
resolution shall be attached to this contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be executed as 
written below. 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

By ___________ _ 

Title: 

By ___________ _ 

Title: 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR 12/29/20 7 

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION 

By ___________ _ 

Department Director MDOT 

REVIEWED 



CONTRACTED WORK 

Estimated Cost 

EXHIBIT I 

CONTROL SECTION 
JOB NUMBER 
PROJECT 

ESTIMATED COST 

FORCE ACCOUNT WORK (REQUESTING PARTY) 

Traffic Signals, Signing, etc. 

CPMG63000 
208719CON 
21A0113 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST (FORCE ACCOUNT, ETC.) 

GRAND TOTAL ESTIMATED COST 

COST PARTICIPATION 

GRAND TOTAL ESTIMATED COST 
Less Federal Funds* 
BALANCE (REQUESTING PARTY'S SHARE) 

December 29, 2020 

$1,185,765.00 

$ 34,999.60 
$ 34,999.60 

$1,220,764.60 

$1,220,764.60 
$1,185,000.00 
$ 35,764.60 

*Federal Funds for the PROJECT are limited to an amount as described in Section 5. 

NO DEPOSIT 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR 12/29/20 8 



DOT 

03-15-93 

PART II 

TYPEB 
BUREAU OF HIGHWAYS 

03-15-93 

STANDARD AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 

SECTION I COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS AND DIRECTNES 

SECTION II PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AND SUPERVISION 

SECTION III ACCOUNTING AND BILLING 

SECTION N MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION 

SECTION V SPECIAL PROGRAM AND PROJECT CONDITIONS 

1 



SECTION I 

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS ANDDIRECTIVES 

A. To qualify for eligible cost, all work shall be documented in accordance with the 
requirements and procedures of the DEPARTMENT. 

B. All work on projects for which reimbursement with Federal funds is requested shall be 
performed in accordance with the requirements and guidelines set fo1th in the following 
Directives of the Federal-Aid Policy Guide (F APG) of the FHW A, as applicable, and as 
referenced in pertinent sections of Title 23 and Title 49 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR), and all supplements and amendments thereto. 

1. Engineering 

a. FAPG (6012.1): Preliminary Engineering 

b. F APG (23 CFR 172): Administration of Engineering and Design Related 
Service Contracts 

c. FAPG (23 CFR 635A): Contract Procedures 

d. FAPG (49 CFR 18.22): Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants 
and Cooperative Agreements to State and -Local Governments-Allowable 
Costs 

2. Construction 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

03-15-93 

FAPG (23 CFR 140E): Administrative Settlement Costs-Contract Claims 

FAPG (23 CFR 140B): Constrnction Engineering Costs 

FAPG (23 CFR 17): Recordkeeping and Retention Requirements for 
Federal-Aid Highway Records of State Highway Agencies 

FAPG (23 CFR 635A): Contract Procedures 

F APG·(23 CFR 635B): Force Account Constrnction 

FAPG (23 CFR 645A): Utility Relocations, Adjustments and 
Reimbursement 

2 



g. F APO (23 CFR 645B): Accommodation of Utilities (PPM 30-4.1) 

h. FAPG (23 CFR 655F): Traffic Control Devices on Federal~Aid and other 
Sh·eets and Highways 

i. FAPG (49 CFR 18.22): Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants 
and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Govemments-Allowable 
Costs 

3. Modification Or Construction Of Railroad Facilities 

a. FAPG (23 CFR 1401): Reimbursement for Railroad Work 

b. FAPG (23. CFR 646B): Railroad Highway Projects 

C. In confo1mance with F APO (23 CFR 630C) Project Agreements, the political 
subdivisions party to this contract, on those Federally funded projects which exceed a 
total cost of $100,000.00 stipulate the following with respect to their specific 
jurisdictions: 

1. That any facility to be utilized in performance under or to benefit from this 
contract is not listed on the Envh'onmental Protection Agency (EPA) List of 
Violating Facilities issued pursuant to the ·requirements of the Federal Clean Air 
Act, as amended, and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended. 

2. That they each agree to comply with all of the requirements of Section 114 of the 
Federal Clean Air Act and Section 308 of the Federal Water Pollution Control 
Act, and all regulations and guidelines issued thereunder. 

3. That as a condition of Federal aid pursuant to this contract they shall notify the 
DEPARTMENT of the receipt of any advice indicating that a facility to be 
utilized in performance under or to benefit from this contract is under 
consideration to be listed on the EPA List of Violating Facilities. 

D. Ensure that the PROJECT is constructed in accordance with and incorporates all 
committed environmental impact mitigation measures listed in approved environmental 
documents unless modified or deleted by approval of the FHW A. 

E. All the requirements> guidelines, conditions and restrictions noted in all other pertinent 
Directives and Instructional Memoranda of the FHW A will apply to this contract and will 
be adhered to, as applicable, by the parties hereto. 

03-15-93 3 



SECTION II 

PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AND SUPERVISION 

A. The DEPARTMENT shall provide such administrative guidance as it determines is 
required by the PROJECT in order to facilitate the obtaining of available federal and/or 
state funds. 

B. The DEPARTMENT will adve1iise and award all contracted portions of the PROJECT 
work. Pricir to advertising of the PROJECT for receipt of bids, the REQUESTING 
PARTY may delete any portion or all of the PROJECT work. After receipt of bids for 
the PROJECT, the REQUESTING PARTY shall have the right to reject the amount bid 
for the PROJECT prior to the award of the contract for the PROJECT only if such 
amount exceeds by ten percent (10%) the final engineer's estimate therefor. If such 
rejection of the bids is not received in writing within two (2) weeks after letting, the 
DEPARTMENT will assume concurrence. The DEPARTMENT may, upon request, 
readvertise the PROJECT. Should the REQUESTING PARTY so request in writing 
within the aforesaid two (2) week period after letting, the PROJECT will be cancelled 
and the DEPARTMENT will refund the unused balance of the deposit less all costs 
incurred by the DEPARTMENT. 

C. The DEPARTMENT will perfonn such inspection services on PROJECT work 
performed by the REQUESTING PARTY with its own forces as is required to ensure 
compliance with the approved plans & specifications. 

D. On those projects fonded with Federal monies, the DEPARTMENT shall as may be 
required secure from the FHW A approval of plans and specifications, and such cost 
estimates for FHW A paiiicipation in the PROJECT COST. 

E. All work in connection with the PROJECT shall be performed in conformance with the 
Michigan Department of Transpo1iation Standard Specifications for Construction, and the 
supplemental specifications, Special Provisiqns and plans pertaining to the PROJECT 
and all materials furnished and used in the constmction of the PROJECT shall conform to 
the aforesaid specifications. No extra work shall be performed nor changes in plans and 
specifications made until said work or changes are approved by the project engineer and 
authorized by the DEPARTMENT. 

03-15-93 4 



F. Should it be necessary or desirable that portions of the work covered by this contract be 
accomplished by a consulting film, a railway company, or governmental agency, firm, 
person, or corporation, under a subcontract with the REQUESTING PARTY at 
PROJECT expense, such subcontracted arrangements will be covered by formal written 
agreement between the REQUESTING PARTY and that patty. 

This fonnal written agreement shall: include a reference to the specific prime contract to 
which it pe1iains; include provisions which clearly set forth the maximum reimbursable 
and the basis of payment; provide for the maintenance of accounting records in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, which clearly document the 
actual cost of the services provided; provide that costs eligible for reimbursement shall be 

. in accordance with clearly defined cost criteria such as 49 CFR Pait 18, 48 CFR Part 31, 
23 CFR Part 140, 0MB Circular A-87, etc. as applicable; provide for access to the 
department or its representatives to inspect and audit all data and records related to the 
agreement for a minimum of three years after the department1s final payment to the local 
unit. 

All such agreements will be submitted for approval by the DEPARTMENT and, if 
applicable, by the FHW A prior to execution thereof, except for agreements for amounts 
less than $100,000 for preliminary engineering and testing services executed under and in 
accordance with the provisions of the "Small Purchase Procedures" FAPG (23 CFR 172), 
which do not require prior approval of the DEP ARTtv.fENT or the FHW A. 

Any such approval by the DEPARTMENT shall in no way be construed as a warranty of 
the subcontractor1s qualifications, financial integrity, or ability to perform the work being 
subcontracted. 

G. The REQUESTING PARTY, at no cost to the PROJECT or the DEPARTMENT, shall 
make such arrangements with railway companies, utilities, etc., as may be necessary for 
the performance of work required for the PROJECT but for which Federal or other 
reimbursement will not be requested, 

H. The REQUESTING PARTY, at no cost to the PROJECT, or the DEPARTMENT, shall 
secure, as necessary, all agreements and approvals of the PROJECT with railway 
companies, the Railroad Safety & Tariffs Division of the DEPARTMENT and other 
concerned governmental agencies other than the FHW A, and will forward same to the 
DEPARTMENT for such reviews and approvals as may be required. 

I. No PROJECT work for which reimbursement will be requested by the REQUESTING 
PARTY is to be subcontracted or performed until the DEPARTMENT gives written 
notification that such work may commence. 

03-15-93 5 



J. The REQUESTING PARTY shall be responsible for the payment of all costs and 
expenses incurred in the performance of the work it agrees to undertake and perform. 

K. The REQUESTING PARTY shall pay directly to the party performing the work all 
billings for the services perfonned on the PROJECT which are authorized by or through 
the REQUESTING PARTY. 

L.. The REQUESTING PARTY shall submit to the DEPARTMENT all paid billings for 
which reimbursement is desired in accordance with DEPARTMENT procedures. 

M. All work by a consulting firm will be performed in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of 1980 PA 299, Subsection 2001, MCL 339.2001; MSA 18.425(2001),.as 
well as in accordance with the provisions of all previously cited Directives of the FHW A. 

N. The project engineer shall be subject to such administrative guidance as may be deemed 
necessary to ensure compliance with program requirement and, in those instances where 
a consultant firm is retained to provide engineering and inspection services, the personnel 
performing those services shall be subject to the same conditions. 

0. The DEPARTMENT, in administering the PROJECT in accordance with applicable 
Feperal and State requirements and regulations, neither assumes nor becomes liable for 
any obligations undertaken or arising between the REQUESTING PARTY and any other 
party with respect to the PROJECT. 

P. In the event it is determined by the DEPARTMENT that there will be either insufficient 
Federal funds or insufficient time to properly administer such funds for the entire 
PROJECT or portions thereof, the DEPARTMENT, prior to advertising or issuing 
authorization for work performance, may cancel the PROJECT, or any portion thereof, 
and upon written notice to the pa1iies this contract shall be void and of no effect with 
respect to that cancelled portion of the PROJECT. Any PROJECT deposits previously 
made by the parties on the cancelled portions of the PROJECT will be promptly 
refunded. 

Q. Those projects funded with Federal monies will be subject to inspection at all times by 
the DEPARTMENT and the FHWA. 

03-15-93 6 



SECTION III 

ACCOUNTING AND BILLING 

A. Procedures for billing for work unde1taken by the REQUESTING PARTY: 

1. The REQUESTING PARTY shall establish and maintain accurate records, in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of all expenses 
incurred for which payment is sought or made under this contract, said records to 
be hereinafter referred to as the 11RECORDS 11

• Separate accounts shall be 
established and maintained for all costs incurred under this contract. 

03-15-93 

The REQUESTING PARTY shall maintain the RECORDS for at least three (3) 
years from the date of final payment of Federal Aid made by the DEPARTMENT 
under this contract, In the event of a dispute with regard to the allowable 
expenses or any other issue under this contract, the REQUESTING PARTY shall 
thereafter continue to maintain the RECORDS at least until that dispute has been 
finally decided arid the time for all available challenges·or appeals of that decision 
has expired. 

The DEPARTMENT, or its •representative, may inspect, copy, or audit the 
RECORDS at any reasonable time after giving reasonable notice. 

If any part of the work is subcontracted, the REQUESTING PARTY shall assure 
compliance with the above.for all subcontracted work. 

In the event that an audit perfo1med by or on behalf of the DEPARTMENT 
indicates an adjustment fo the costs reported under this contract, or questions the 
allowability of an item of expense, the DEPARTMENT shall promptly submit to 
the REQUESTING PARTY, a Notice of Audit Results and a copy of the audit 
report which may supplement or modify any tentative findings verbally 
communicated to the REQUESTING PARTY at the completion of an audit. 

Within sixty (60) days after the date of the Notice of Audit Results, the 
REQUESTING PARTY shall: (a) respond in writing to the responsible Bureau or 
the DEPARTMENT indicating whether or not it concurs with the audit report, (b) 
clearly explain the nature and basis for any disagreement as to a disallowed item 
of expense and, (c) submit to the DEPARTMENT a written explanation as to any 
questioned or no opinion expressed item of expense, hereinafter referred to as the 
"RESPONSE". The RESPONSE shall be clearly stated and provide any 
supporting documentation necessary to resolve any disagreement or questioned or 
no opinion expressed item of expense. Where the documentation is voluminous, 
the REQUESTING PARTY may supply appropriate excerpts and make alternate 

7 



03-15-93 

an-angements to conveniently and reasonably make that documentation available 
for review by the DEPARTMENT. The RESPONSE shall refer to and apply the 
language of the contract. The REQUESTING PARTY agrees that failure to 
submit a RESPONSE within the sixty (60) day period constitutes agreement with 
any disallowance of an item of expense and authorizes the DEPARTMENT to 
finally disallow any items of questioned or no opinion expressed cost. 

The DEPARTMENT shall make its decision with regard to any Notice of Audit 
Results and RESPONSE within one hundred twenty (120) days after the date of 
the Notice of Audit Results. If the DEPARTMENT dete1mines that an 

. overpayment has been made to the REQUESTING PARTY, the REQUESTING 
PARTY shall repay that amount to the DEPARTMENT or reach agreement with 
the DEPARTMENT on a repayment schedule within thirty (30) days after the 
date of an invoice from the DEPARTMENT. If the REQUESTING PARTY fails 
to repay the overpayment or reach agreement with the DEPARTMENT on a 
repayment schedule within the thirty (30) day period, the REQUESTING PARTY 
agrees that the DEPARTMENT shall deduct all or a portion of the overpayment 
from any. funds then or thereafter payable by the DEPARTMENT to the 
REQUESTING PARTY under this contract or any other agreement, or payable to 
the REQUESTING PARTY under the tenns of 1951 PA 51, as applicable. 
Interest will be assessed on any pattial payments or repayment schedules based on 
the unpaid balance at the end of each month until the balance is paid in full. The 
assessment of interest will begin thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice. 
The rate of interest will be based on the Michigan Department of Tre~sury 
common cash funds interest earnings. The rate of interest will be reviewed 
annually by the DEPARTMENT and adjusted as necessary based on the Michigan 
Department of Treasmy common cash funds interest earnings. The 
REQUESTING PARTY expressly consents to this withholding or offsetting of 
funds under those circumstances, reserving the right to file a lawsuit in the Court 
of Clain1s to contest the DEPARTMENT'S decision only as to any item of 
expense the disallowance of which was disputed by the REQUESTING PARTY 
in a timely filed RESPONSE. 

The REQUESTING PARTY shall comply with the Single Audit Act of 1984, as 
amended, including, but not limited to, the Single Audit Amendments of 1996 (31 
USC 7501-7507). 

The REQUESTING PARTY shall adhere to the following requirements 
associated with audits of accounts and records: 

a. Agencies expending a total of $500,000 or more in federal funds, from one or 
more funding sources in its fiscal year, shall comply with the requirements of the 
federal Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-133, as revised or 
amended. 

8 



2. 

3. 

03-15-93 

The agency shall submit two copies of: 

The Reporting Package 
The Data Collection Form 
The management letter to the agency, if one issued by the audit firm 

The 0MB Circular A-133 audit must be submitted to the address below in 
accordance with the'time frame established in the circular, as revised or amended. 

b. Agencies expending less than $500,000 in federal funds must submit a letter to 
the Department advising that a circular audit was not required. The letter shall 
indicate the applicable fiscal year, the amount of federal funds spent, the name(s) 
of the Department federal programs, and the CFDA grant m1mber(s). This 
info1mation must also be submitted to the address below. 

c. Address: Michigan Department of Education 
Accounting Service Center 
Hannah Building 
608 Allegan Street 
Lansing, MI 48909 

d. Agencies must also comply with applicable State laws and regulations relative 
to audit requirements. 

e. Agencies shall not charge audit costs to Department's federal programs which 
are not in accordance with the 0MB Circular A-133 requirements. 

f. All agencies are subject to the federally required monitoring activities, which 
may include limited scope reviews and other on-site monitoring. 

Agreed Unit Prices Work - All billings for work unde1iaken by the 
REQUESTING PARTY on an agreed unit price basis will be submitted in 
accordance with the Michigan Department of Transportation Standard 
Specifications for Construction and pertinent F APG Directives and Guidelines of 
the FHWA. 

Force Account Work and Subcontracted Work - All billings submitted to the 
DEF ARTMENT for Federal reimbursement for items of work performed on a 
force account basis or by any subcontract with a consulting firm, railway 
company, governmental agency or other party, under the terms of this contract, 
shall be prepared in accordanc,e with the provisions of the pertinent FHPM 
Directives and the procedures of the DEPARTMENT. Progress billings may be 
submitted monthly during the time work is being performed provided, however, 
that no bill of a lesser amount than $1,000.00 shall be submitted unless it is a final 

9 



or end of fiscal year billing. All billings shall be labeled either "Progress Bill 
Number ___ ", or "Final Billing". 

4. Final billing under this contract shall be submitted in a timely manner but not later 
than six months after completion of the work. Billings for ,vork submitted later 
than six months after completion of the work will not be paid. 

5. Upon receipt of billings for reimbursement for work undertaken by the 
REQUESTING PARTY on projects funded with Federal monies, the 
DEPARTMENT will act as billing agent for the REQUESTING PARTY, 
consolidating said billings with those for its own force account work and 
presenting these consolidated billings to the FHW A for payment. Upon receipt of 
reimbursement from the FHW A, the DEPARTMENT will promptly forward to 
the REQUESTING PARTY its share of said reimbursement. 

6. Upon receipt of billings for reimbursement for work undertaken by the 
REQUESTING PARTY on projects funded with non-Federal monies, the 
DEPARTMENT will promptly forward to the REQUESTING PARTY 
reimbursement of eligible costs. 

B. Payment of Contracted and DEPARTMENT Costs: 

1. 

03-15-93 

As work on the PROJECT commences, the initial payments for contracted work 
and/or costs incurred by the DEPARTMENT will be made from the working 
capital deposit. Receipt of progress payments of Federal fonds, and where 
applicable, State Critical Bridge funds, . will be used to replenish the working 
capital deposit. The REQUESTING PARTY sh,all make prompt payments of its 
share of the contracted and/or DEPARTMENT incurred portion of the PROJECT 
COST upon receipt of progress billings from the DEPARTMENT. Progress 
billings will be based upon the REQUESTING PARTY'S share of the actual costs 
incurred as work on the PROJECT progresses and will be submitted, as required, 
until it is determined by the DEPARTMENT that there is sufficient available 
working capital to meet the remaining anticipated PROJECT COSTS. All 
progress payments will be made within thhiy (30) days of receipt of billings. No 
monthly billing of a lesser amount than $1,000.00 will be made unless it is a final 
or end of fiscal year billing, Should the DEPARTMENT detennine that the 
available working capital exceeds the remaining anticipated PROJECT COSTS, 
the DEPARTMENT may reimburse the REQUESTING PARTY such excess. 
Upon completion of the PROJECT, payment of all PROJECT COSTS, receipt of 
all applicable monies from the FHW A, and completion of necessary audits, the 
REQUESTING PARTY will be reimbursed the balance of its deposit. 

10 



2. In the event that the bid, plus contingencies, for the conh·acted, and/or the 
DEPARTMENT incurred portion of the PROJECT work exceeds the estimated 
cost therefor as established by this contract, the REQUESTING PARTY may be 
advised and billed for the additional amount of its share. 

C. General Conditions: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

03-15-93 

The DEPARTMENT, in accordance with its procedures in existence and covering 
the time period involved, shall make payment for interest earned on the balance of 
working capital deposits for all projects on account with the DEPARTMENT. 
The REQUESTING PARTY in accordance with DEPARTMENT procedures in 
existence and covering the time period involved, shall make payment for interest 
owed on any deficit balance of working capital deposits for all projects on 
account with the DEPARTMENT. This payment or billing is processed on an 
annual basis corresponding to the State of Michigan fiscal year. Upon receipt of 
billing for interest incuned> the REQUESTING PARTY promises and shall 
promptly pay the DEPARTMENT said amount. 

Pursuant to the authority granted by law, the REQUESTING PARTY hereby 
. irrevocably pledges a sufficient amount of funds received by it from the Michigan 
Transpo1iation Fund to meet its obligations as specified in PART I and PART II. 
If the REQUESTING PARTY shall fail to make any of its required payments 
when due, as specified herein, the DEPARTMENT shall immediately notify the 
REQUESTING PARTY and the State Treasurer of the State of Michigan or such 
other state officer or agency having charge and control over disbursement of the 
Michigan Transportation Fund, pursuant to law> of the fact of such default and the 
amount thereof, and, if such default is not cured by payment within ten (10) days, 
said State Treasurer or other state officer or agency is then authorized and 
directed to withhold from the first of such monies thereafter allocated by law to 
the REQUESTING PARTY from the Michigan Transpo1iation Fund sufficient 
monies to remove the default, and to credit the REQUESTING PARTY with 
payment thereof> and to notify the REQUESTING PARTY in writing of such fact. 

Upon completion of all work under this contract and final audit by the 
DEPARTMENT or the FHWA, the REQUESTING PARTY promises to 
promptly repay the DEPARTMENT for any disallowed 'items of costs previously 
disbursed by the DEPARTMENT. The REQUESTING PARTY pledges its 
future· receipts from the Michigan Transportation Fund for repayment of all 
disallowed items and> upon failure to make repayment for any disallowed items 
within ninety (90) days of demand made by the DEPARTMENT, the 
DEPARTMENT is hereby authorized to withhold an equal amount from the 
REQUESTING PARTY'S share of any future distribution of Michigan 
Transportation Funds in settlement of said claim, 

11 



4. 

5. 

03-15-93 

The DEPARTMENT shall maintain and keep accurate records and accounts 
relative to the cost of the PROJECT and upon completion of the PROJECT, 
payment of all items of PROJECT COST, receipt of all Federal Aid, if any, and 
completion of final audit by the DEPARTMENT and if applicable, by the FHW A, 
shall make final accounting to the REQUESTING PARTY. The final PROJECT 
accounting will not include interest earned or charged on working capital 
deposited for the PROJECT which will be accounted for separately at the close of 
the State of Michigan fiscal year and as set forth in Section C(l ). 

The costs of engineering and other services perfo1med on those projects involving 
specific program funds and one hundred percent (100%) local funds will be 
apportioned to the respective po1tions of that project in the same ratio as the 
actual direct construction costs unless othenvise specified in PART I. 

12 



SECTIONN 

MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION 

A. Upon completion of construction of each part of the PROJECT, at no cost to the 
DEPARTMENT or the PROJECT, each of the parties hereto, within their respective 
jurisdictions, will make the following provisions for the maintenance and operation of the 
completed PROJECT: 

l, All Projects: 

Properly maintain and operate each pait of the project, making ample provisions 
each year for the performance of such maintenance work as may be required, 
except as qualified in paragraph 2b of this section, 

2. Projects Financed in Part with Federal Monies: 

03-15-93 

a. Sign and mark each part of the PROJECT, in accordance with the current 
Michigan Manual of Unifonn Traffic control Devices, and will not install, 
or permit to be installed, any signs, signals or markings not in 
conformance with the standards approved by the FHW A, pursuant to 23 
USC 109(d). 

b. Remove, prior to completion of the PROJECT, all encroachments from the 
roadway right-of-way within the lim_its of each pait of the PROJECT. 

C, 

d. 

With respect to new or existing utility installations within the right-of-way 
of Federal Aid projects and pursuant to FAPG (23 CFR 645B): 
Occupancy of non-limited access right-of-way may be allowed based on 
consideration for traffic safety and necessary preservation of roadside 
space and aesthetic quality. Longitudinal occupancy of non-limited access 
right-of-way by private lines will require a finding of significant economic 
hardship, the unavailability of practicable alternatives or other extenuating 
circumstances. 

Cause to be enacted, maintained and enforced, ordinances and regulations 
for proper traffic operations in accordance with the plans of the 
PROJECT. 

Make no changes to ordinances or regulations enacted, or traffic controls 
installed in conjunction with the PROJECT work without prior review by 
the DEPARTMENT and approval of the FHWA, if required. 

13 



B. On projects for the removal of roadside obstacles, the parties, upon completion of 
construction of each part of the PROJECT, at no cost to the PROJECT or the 
DEPARTMENT, will, within their respective jurisdictions, take such action as is 
necessary to assure that the roadway right-of-way, cleared as the PROJECT, will be 
maintained free of such obstacles. 

C. On projects for the construct'ion of bikeways, the patties will enact no ordinances or 
regulations prohibiting the use of bicycles on the facility hereinbefore described as the 
PROJECT, and will amend any existh1g restrictive ordinances in this regard so as to 
allow use of this facility by bicycles. No motorized vehicles shall be permitted on such 
bikeways or walkways constrncted as the PROJECT except those for maintenance 
purposes. 

D. Failure of the parties hereto to fulfill their respective responsibilities as outlined herein 
may disqualify that paity from future Federal-aid participation in projects on roads or 
streets for which it has maintenance responsibility. Federal Aid may be withheld until 
such time as deficiencies in regulations have been corrected, and the improvements 
constructed as the PROJECT are brought to a satisfactory condition of maintenance. 

03-15-93 14 



SECTIONV 

SPECIAL PROGRAM AND PROJECT CONDITIONS 

A. Those projects for which the REQUESTING PARTY has been reimbursed with Federal 
. monies for the acquisition of right-of-way must be under construction by the close of the 
twentieth (20th) fiscal year following the fiscal year in which the FHW A and the 
DEPARTMENT projects agreement covering that work is executed, or the 
REQUESTING PARTY may be required to repay to the DEPARTMENT, for forwarding 
to the FHW A, all monies distributed as the FHW A'S contribution to that right-of-way. 

B. Those projects for which the REQUESTING PARTY has been reimbursed with Federal 
monies for the performance of preliminary engineering must be under constrnction by the 
close of the tenth ( l 0th) fiscal year following the fiscal year in which the FHW A and the 
DEPARTMENT projects agreement covering that work is executed, or _ the 
REQUESTING PARTY may be required to repay to the DEPARTMENT, for forwarding 
to the FHW A, all monies distributed as the FHW A'S contribution to that preliminary 
engineering. 

C. On those projects funded with Federal monies, the REQUESTING PARTY, at no cost to 
the PROJECT or the DEPARTMENT, will provide such accident infonnation as is 
av\lilable and such other infonnation as may be required under the program in order to 
make the proper assessment of the safety benefits derived from the work performed as the 
PROJECT. The REQUESTING PARTY will cooperate with the DEPARTMENT in the 
development ofreports and such analysis as may be required and will, when requested by 
the DEPARTMENT, forward to the DEPARTMENT, in such form as is necessary, the 
required information. 

D. In connection with the perfonnance of PROJECT work under this contract the pa1ties 
hereto (hereinafter in Appendix "A" referred to as the "contractor") agree to comply with 
the State of Michigan provisions for "Prohibition of Discrimination in State Contracts", 
as set forth in Appendix A, attached hereto and made a part hereof. The parties further 
covenant that they will comply with the Civil Rights Acts of 1964, being P .L. 88-352> 78 
Stat. 241, as amended, being Title 42 U,S.C. Sections 1971, 1975a-1975d, and 2000a-
2000h-6 and the Regulations of the United States Department of Transportation ( 49 
C.F.R. Part 21) issued pursuant to said Act, including Appendix 11B11

, attached hereto and 
made a part hereof, and will require similar covenants on the part of any contractor or 
subcontractor employed in the perfonnance of this contract. 

E. The parties will carry out the applicable requirements of the DEPARTMENT'S 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program and 49 CFR, Pait 26, including> but 
not limited to, those requirements set forth in Appendix C, 

03-15-93 15 



APPENDIX A 
PROHIBITION OF DISCRIMINATION IN STATE CONTRACTS 

In connection with the performance of work under this contract; the contractor agrees as follows: 

1. In accordance with Public Act 453 of 1976 (Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act), the 
contractor shall not discriminate against an employee or applicant for employment with 
respect to hire, tenure, treatment, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment or a 
matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of race, color, religion, 
national origin, age, sex, height, weight, or marital status. A breach of this covenant will 
be regarded as a material breach of this contract. Further, in accordance with Public Act 
220 of 1976 (Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act), as amended by Public Act 478 
of 1980, the contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions,. or privileges of employment 
or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of a disability that is 
unrelated to the individual's ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position. A 
breach of the above covenants will be regarded as a material breach of this conh·act. 

2. The contractor hereby agrees that any and all subcontracts to this contract, whereby a 
portion of the work set forth in this contract is to be performed, shall contain a covenant 
the same as hereinabove set fo1th in Section 1 of this Appendix. 

3. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants for employment and 
employees are treated without regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, age, 
sex, height, weight, marital stah1s, or any disability that is unrelated to the individual's 
ability to perfonn the duties of a particular job or position. Such action shall include, but 
not be limited to, the following: employment; treatment; upgrading; demotion or transfer; 
recruitment; advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other fonns of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship, 

4. The contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive ~onsideration for 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, 
weight, marital status, or disability that is unrelated to the individual's ability to perform 
the duties of a particular job or position. 

5. The contractor or its collective bargaining representative shall send to each labor union or 
representative of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining 
agreement or other contract or understanding a notice advising such labor union or 
workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this Appendix, 

6. The contractor shall comply with all relevant published rnles, regulations, directives, and 
orders of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission that may be in effect prior to the taking 
of bids for any individual state project. 



7. The contractor shall furnish and file compliance repo1ts within such time and upon such 
forms as provided by the Michigan Civil Rights Commission; said forms may also elicit 
information as to the practices, policies, program, and employment statistics of each 
subcontractor, as well as the contractor itself, and said contractor shall pe1mit access to 
the contractor's books, records, and accounts by the Michigan Civil Rights Commission 
and/or its agent for the purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance under this 
contract and relevant rules, regulations, and orders of the Michigan Civil Rights 
Commission. 

8. In the event that the Michigan Civil Rights Commission finds, after a hearing held 
pursuant to its rules, that a contractor has not complied with the contractual obligations 
under this contract, the Michigan Civil Rights Commission may, as a part of its order 
based upon such findings, certify said findings to the State Administrative Board of the 
State of Michigan, which State Administrative Board may order the cancellation of the 
contract found to have been violated and/or declare the contractor ineligible for future 
contracts with the state and its political and civil subdivisions, depmtments, and officers, 
including the governing boards of institutions of higher education, until the contractor 
complies with said order of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission. Notice of said 
declaration of future ineligibility may be given to any or all of the persons with whom the 
contractor is declared ineligible to contract as a contracting party in foture contracts. In 
any case before the Michigan Civil Rights Commission in which cancellation of an 
existing contract is a possibility, the contracting agency shall be notified of such possible 
remedy and shall be given the option by the Michigan Civil Rights Commission to 
participate in such proceedings, 

9. The contractor shall include or incorporate by reference, the provisions of the foregoing 
paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by 
rules, regulations, or orders of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission; all subcontracts 
and purchase orders will also state that said provisions will be binding upon each 
subcontractor or supplier. 

Revised June 2011 



APPENDIXB 
TITLE VI ASSURANCE 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and its successors 
in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor"), agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations: For all federally assisted programs, the contractor shall 
comply with the nondiscrimination regulations set forth in 49 CFR Part 21, as may be 
amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations). Such Regulations 
are incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this contract. 

2. Nondiscrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work perfonned under the 
contract, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the 
selection, retention, and treatment of subcontractors, including procurements of materials 
and leases of equipment. The contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly 
in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including 
employment practices, when the contractor covers a program set forth in Appendix B of 
the Regulations. 

3. Solicitation for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: 
All solicitations made by the contractor, either by competitive bidding or by negotiation 
for subcontract work, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, must 
include a notification to each potential subcontractor or supplier of the contractor's 
obligations under the contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the 

1 
grounds of race, color, or national origin. 

4. Information and Reports: The contractor shall provide all infmmation and reports 
required by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access 
to its books, records, accounts, other sources of infonnation, and facilities as may be 
determined to be pertinent by the Department or the United States Department of 
Transportation (USDOT) in order to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or 
directives. If required information concerning the contractor is in the exclusive 
possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the required information, the 
contractor shall certify to the Depaitment or the USDOT, as appropriate, and shall set 
faith the efforts that it made to obtain the infmmation. 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the 
nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the Department shall impose such contract 
sanctions as it or the USDOT may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited 
to, the following: 

a. Withholding payments to the contractor until the contractor complies; and/or 

b. Canceling, terminating, or suspending the contract, in whole or in part. 



6, . Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections (1) 
through (6) in every subcontrac~, including procurement of material and leases of 
equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto. The 
contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the 
Department or the USDOT may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including 
sanctions for non-compliance, provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes 
involved in or is threatened with litigation from a subcontractor or supplier as a result of 
such direction, the contractor may request the Department to enter into such litigation to 
protect the interests of the state. In addition, the contractor may request the United States 
to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States, 

Revised June 2011 



APPENDIXC 

TO BE INCLUDED IN ALL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
AGREEMENTS WITH LOCAL AGENCIES 

Assurance that Recipients and Contractors Must Make 
(Excerpts from US DOT Regulation 49 CFR 26,13) 

A. Each financial assistance agreement signed with a DOT operating administration 
(or a primary recipient) must include the following assurance: 

The recipient shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any US 
DOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE 
program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. The recipient 
shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR 
Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and 
administration of US DOT-assisted contracts. The recipient's 
DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as 
approved by US DOT, is incorporated by reference in this 
agreement. Implementation of this program is a legal 
obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as 
a violation of this agreement. Upon notification to the 
recipient of its failure to carry out its approved program, the 
department may impose sanctions as provided for under Part 
26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for 
enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud 
Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq,). 

B. Each contract MDOT signs with a contractor (and each subcontract the prime 
contractor signs with a subcontractor) must include the follu,ving assurance: 

The contractor, sub recipient ol' subcontractor shall not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex 
in the performance of this contract, The contractor shall carry 
out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award 
and administration of US DOT-assisted contracts. FailUl'e by 
the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material 
breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of 
this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems 
appropriate. 



#11 
TI 



City of Pontiac, Michigan 
Department of Finance 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
Sekar Bawa, Treasurer 

January 6, 2021 

Mayoral Recommendation to City Council to adopt a Resolution 
to help provide some economic relief to City of Pontiac Residents 
by waiving of penalty for unpaid property taxes for the winter 
2020 property taxes. 

Honorable Council President and City Council: 

As you know, the COVID-19 pandemic has had a negative impact on the physical 
and economic condition of many of our residents. As a result of this pandemic, we 
have seen high levels of unemployment, loss of income and other negative economic 
impacts that have affected many of our residents. This has led to many incurring 
unforeseen hardships that make the challenges of daily living even more difficult. 

While the City continues to work to maintain our fiscal integrity, we always try and 
find opportunities to address the well-being of our residents. In order to provide 
some financial relief, the Administration is recommending that the City takes the 
necessary steps to waive penalties that are scheduled to be levied against unpaid 
winter property taxes. This will provide some additional time for our residents to 
pay their property taxes without incurring the normal penalties. 

For the 2020 Tax Year, winter property taxes became payable on December 1, 2020 
and are due without penalty by February 15, 2021. As per City Ordinance, on 
February 16, 2021 a one-time penalty of 3% is to be added on the winter tax balance 
outstanding as of February 15, 2021. The proposed resolution would allow for taxes 
to be paid without penalty through February 28th which is the maximum time the 
City can allow. 

47450 WOODWARD A VENUE, PONTIAC, MI 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 · FAX: (248) 758-3170 



In the prior tax year of 2019, the City had late fee penalties of $27,439 that were 
levied on unpaid winter property taxes. These penalties were levied against 
approximately 6,700 parcels. The Administration is recommending to the City 
Council to waive this late fee for the current tax year in part to help provide some 
relief to the residents of Pontiac. 

47450 WOODWARD A VENUE, PONTIAC, MI 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 · FAX: (248) 758-3170 



Resolution - Waiver of Tax Penalty for Winter 2020 Property Taxes 

The Administration, here by requests that the City Council adopts the following 
resolution: 

WHEREAS, In accordance with the City Charter and City Ordinance the Pontiac 
City Council shall determine the penalty to be levied on the unpaid winter tax 
balance as of February 14 and the Council determined a 3% late fee penalty to be 
levied on the delinquent winter tax balance; and 

WHEREAS, Many residents of the City of Pontiac City are facing numerous 
economic challenges due to COVID-19 pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, based on the Admiration's recommendation, the Pontiac City Council 
determines that the late fee penalty for unpaid winter property taxes should be 
suspended for the 2020 winter tax season to help provide some relief to the City's 
residents; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council hereby 
approves suspension of the penalty for unpaid property taxes for the 2020 winter 
tax season. 

47450 WOODWARD A VENUE, PONTIAC, MI 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 · FAX: (248) 758-3170 





Agenda - City of Pontiac Telecommunication 
Strategy 

• Review Current Telecommunications System 

• Review New Telecommunication Strategy 

• Review New Estimated Costs 

• Next Steps 

CITY OF 

Pontiac 
MICHI GAN 



Telecommunications> Today 

Dedicated Line through AT&T 

Telephone System 

In City Hall City Ha 11 Court 



Current ShoreTel IP PBX {phone system) 

• The Phone system the City is using as of now is nearly 10 Years old. 

• The system was the state of the art 10 years ago. 

• New technologies have emerged. 

• Communications have improved and become less costly with added features. 



Current Telecom System Components 

• Dated ShoreTel IP PBX and AT&T Voice SIP trunk are used for processing 
phone calls. It's capable of handling 46 concurrent calls. 

• We currently have approximately 106 ShoreTel IP phones. 

• ShoreTel system is at capacity today. 

• 16 Fax lines used for faxes, these fax lines serve Court and the City Hall. 

• 100Mbps AT&T Internet connection at City Hall. 

• SOM bps AT&T connection between City Hall and District Court. 



The Cloud 
• The Cloud is consumption based (usage) for technology resources from 

Companies like Microsoft, Google, Amazon and many others. 

• Hardware is provided and maintained by the Cloud providers instead of 
locally at the customer location. 

• Many organizations are migrating to Cloud Services. 

• UCaaS is a cloud based unified communications as a service solution that 
will save the City money and add many new features. 

• We have contacted several companies, and thoroughly evaluated these new 
emerging technologies. 

This Photo by Unknown Author is 

licensed under CC BY-SA 



New Cloud Communication System 

[I] 
City Hall 

,.,..-
The 

Cloud _j 111 • • 1~20 
Telephone System 

In Cloud 

VPN Connection 

Satellite Office 

Court 



Ring Central - Market Leader in Cloud 
Communications 

Flguro t. Magic Quadrant for Unified Communications as a Service. Wor1dwlde 

l 
5 
hl 
/j 
g 

~ 
in 

G , { ' 

t.' • 

IC •I • ·, 

Cuo 

ru. 

( 'p.) 1 

., ,.._ ______________________ ___, 

[OMPL T[ 1- 5 or l/1~1011 As 11! .lul't' ?0 19 G,11 tnr • Im 

ARYNE 

A Leader in the 2019 Gartner 
Magic Quadrant for 

0 

[(1 ~ s as 
0 w~ 

~ea ~e sh· 

This gruphlc •,•as published by Ga1 t11er, l11 as pa! l o f n larger 1e:,eorch clocume 11 1 and should 
be evt1luc1ted \nth context ol tll c '-~ntil e tlocumt•111. Tne Gurt11e, Uot um~ lll I~ avuilab' up n 
,cquec..t tom Rinc,Ce 111 in1 Ga, 11e1 does not ~nd 1:,E.• iJO\' .... endor, p1oduct or se, Ice depicwd 
1, ,ts rt'search 1>uh llcni10 11~. l1 11 <I clo r-~ 1101 ::id v1~~ tc-ch 11 o lo9y us ,~ to sc l~c t n ly 1hosl' 
ve flclo rs w it l !he high s1 rt1tings o , t11cr designat io n Gi1 r1 ne1 r('sea, r h pul>licatlon onsiM 
nf lllC• opinions of Gn1tne1's r0!.emcll o rg t:rn \zollnn n11cl shoLtld r1C1t be, cons11 uud .JS 
~til erncnts o f fMt. Grn rncr d isclaims ,111 ,•;arrnnll,.,.s, Pxprc-s or imp!ied, w ith rc- 'i.pr.c t 10 th is 
,csea,ch. lnclu chn r_i ;my \•1;u 1.11111cs or mcrdmntL1b flity or fi111css fo r n pa11lcula1 p urp osC'. 

Go1t11c ,. M\lg1 · Oui'ldrnnt fo , Unifi d Comrnunicatl 11s as Se,v,co, V✓o r ld w, o, Danie-I 
O'Con 11cll . Megan Fc rnonde.: , r~nfocl Benitei , Ch 11stophc , Ttt1omlll), Scb~sti,1 n Hernnndc z, 
30 J11 ly 2019. 

~ed 



Evaluation Process 

• Key Criteria 
✓ On-Premise or Cloud based 

✓ Cost Effective 

✓ Telecommunication Costs 

✓ Easily scalable to allow for City demands 

✓ Ease of Management & Administration (lower cost of management) 

✓ Supports mobility and integration with future solution (Microsoft 365) 

✓ Availability and Redundancy 

✓ Security 

✓ Reporting & Audit 



Evaluation Process 

• Market Solutions Evaluated 
• On Premise 

• Cisco UC- Upper left on magic quadrant, market share leader for on-
. 

premise 

• Cloud (UCaaS) 
• 8 x 8 - Gartner Magic Quadrant, upper right quadrant 

• RingCentral - Gartner Magic Quadrant, leader in upper right quadrant 

• Evaluated all 3 solutions based off key criteria 

• RingCentral was the best solution for City 
• RingCentral is a partner with AT&T 



On-premises/managed 
communications services 

· · ...................... PBX hardware & 
......•......•.............. 
............................ software 

·::::::: Upgrades 
..... Web meetings 

.::::::: Audio conferencing 
.......... Fax 

Tel co (PRls, T1 s) 
Local, long distance, 
toll free 
Multi-location (MPLS, 
PSTN) 
PBX parts 

10 I © 2020 RingCentral, Inc. All rights reservecOutside services 

es 

Pure Cloud UCaaS 

•D •~ 
-inclusive user pric·ng, 

un· orm user experi nee 

CiTV OF 

Pontiac 
MICHIGAN 

Innovation 

Agility 

Speed 

Flexibility 

Efficiency 

Rl gCentral 



RingCentral solution 

• Single "pane of glass" for all 
communication streams 

• Intuitive User & Management 
Interface 

• Open & Integrated Platform 
• Industry Leading Reliability -

99.999% uptime SLA 
• World-Class Professional Services & 

Customer Support 

CITV •O:f 

Pontiac · 

RlngCentral® 



1'•,!i. •~• • '"H f · ~'.-I :1, 

.l, "-)11•;1.. ,"" " ~"" ' •.z,:,. ,rc, r.:•.:-;; r ~ M:.. 
l . .., ,,...,, ._ _,.d,--.:,,,.1... l.,c.<\.~I. ,• ,;t :,.., 1< .,•:c-.~•• .. •••~ 
, .,.~., ~r •• r"" c,•n, 

. . ' .. . 

\.)( Pt-.l' p CanoH 
f'd 3802 

Christina Cruz 
Ell 22 

Hannah Contreras 
& 1 , , , 

~ PhiKp John'Ston 
Ext 1234 

~ DebraG111caa 
Ell. 5678 

Gary Webb 
Exl 3333 

lauraDikon 
Ell.I 2 12 

HaMah Contreras 

... 

of> t...O DI 
LH III J I li t MU I 

Fl\ter: A!ICal1 s V 

2,12;1;-,, 

:!. 12/17 \1) 

1!12117 (i) 

® • 
CC>"II.KI ~ Ot t 

~ never sounded 
this good. 
Enterprise-grade cloud PBX 

Mobile and desktop apps 

Toll free, vanity, and local numbers 

Extensions 

Smart routing 

IVR self-service 

QoS Analytics 

Global, secure, reliable 

·Central 



New Telecommunication System Components 

✓ City Hall will have its own Internet connection of l00Mbps 

✓ District Court will have its own internet connection of l00Mbps 

✓ On-Board RingCentral UCaaS Cloud provider for collaboration IP 
phone system will cost approximately $26,000/year for services only. New 
phones and implementation are additional one-time costs. 

✓ No annual maintenance fees. 

✓ System is maintained by RingCentral, administered by City IT team. 

✓ IT has budgeted $125k for FY20/21 for new system. 



New Solution - Estimated Costs 
~ .. - ~ .- . ~ - . 

Description Curir.ent Costs - Annually 
Projected Annual Cost -

UCaaS 

AT& T/ShoreTel Costs $93,000 

AT&T Costs - New $30,000 

Ring Central - New $26,000 

Totals $93,000 $56,000 

Annual Estimated 

Savings 

·"' -. , ...... :.;.I'~,...-~-: -x ~., if.;~ - . . 

ilii me Costs 

New Phones & 
Implementation Costs 

** IT has budgeted $125,000 
for FY20/FV21 for this project 

Estimated Cost 

$33,000 



New Solution Estimated Timeline 

Project Milestones 

Approval Process and Procurement 
Legal Review of RingCentral MSA 

Present Solution to City Council for Approval 

Approval from City Council 

Submit to Procurement 

Procurement issues PO 

Final Approval from City Council 

Execute new AT&T MIS Contract 

Excecute Agreement with RingCentral for Voice Services 

Order Required hardware and services 

Delivery of required products 

Implementation 
Project Kick-Off 
Provision new Domain Controller for District Court 

Provision new Sophos Firewall for District Court 

Schedule AT&T MIS turn-up for District Court 

Schedule Phone Number Porting from AT&T to RingCentral 

Deploy new VoIP Phones 

Train Staff on new phones/features 

Cut Over to new Rin Centrals stem 

City of Pontiac - UCaaS Implementation Estimated Timeline 

Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 

Wkl Wk2 Wk3 Wk4 Wkl Wk2 Wk3 Wk4 Wkl Wk2 Wk3 Wk4 

' 
I 1( ) !\!! 

,trl'., 11!/ ./111, '11(• 

Month 6 

Wkl Wk2 Wk3 Wk4 



Telecommunication Strategy 

✓ Next Steps 
✓Gain Approval from Executive Team 
✓ Gain Approval from City Council 

Thank you for meeti g with us Today! 

C ITV OF 

Pontiac 
MICHI GAN 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable City Council President Williams and City Council Members 

FROM: Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
Information Technology Department 

DATE: January 6, 2021 

RE: Resolution to approve the purchase of Ring Central System 

The purpose of this memorandum is to formally request the approval to purchase Ring 
Central system and associated costs including a one-time professional service fee. 

As you are aware during the special presentation on November 5, 2020, the current phone 
system ShoreTel is at its capacity and is no longer expandable to meet the City of Pontiac 
telecommunication needs. 

For your information, a copy of the proposal from Ring Central and the November 5, 2020, 
presentation is attached for your review and consideration. 

BACKGROUND 

Problem: 

1. Aging ShoreTel phone system has reached capacity and can no longer be expanded 
2. New phone features that have been developed over the last nine years are not 

available with current system 
3. Having the District Courthouse on the existing system requires a costly connection 
4. Remote sites are not able to use the City phone system 

Solution: 

1. Replace on-premises ShoreTel phone system with the cloud-based Ring Central 
system 

2. Replace costly connection with the courthouse with an independent internet 
connection 

3. Install independent firewall at courthouse for site to site communications with city hall 



Costs: 

1. One-time professional services implementation cost $7,350.00 
2. One-time phone hardware cost $15,573.16 
3. Three year (36 Month) monthly cost for 143 Standard Licenses $2,749.48 

($32,993.76/year) 

Advantages of new phone system: 

1. Cloud-based system has no hardware to maintain and update 
2. Ring Central has an industry leading 99.999% uptime 
3. Phone numbers are portable and can be used on mobile devices. 
4. Expensive dedicated connection to the courthouse will no longer be needed 

Savings 

Total AT&T savings will be $27,000.00 /year. 

RESOLUTION 

Whereas, The City of Pontiac currently uses a phone system that is nearly a decade old and 
can no longer be expanded to meet the growing needs of the City; and 

Whereas, The City can utilize a cloud-based Ring Central system that will result in a savings 
to the City; and 

Whereas, the costs will be a one-time professional services cost of $7,350, a one-time 
hardware cost of $15,573.16, and a 3-year operating agreement for 143 licenses at a total 
cost of $32,993.76 per year; and 

Whereas, this represents a savings of approximately $27,000 in services fees from the 
current system as provided by AT&T; 

Now, Therefore, hereby be it resolved that the Pontiac City Council approves the purchase 
of the Ring Central system and associated costs including a one-time professional services 
cost of $7,350, a one-time hardware cost of $15,573.16, and a 3-year operating agreement 
for 143 licenses at a total cost of $32,993.76 per year; and authorizes the Mayor to enter into 
the agreements to complete this transaction. 

Attachments 



,ng entral 

INITIAL ORDER FORM - OFFICE SERVICES 

This Initial Order Form is a binding agreement between RingCentral, Inc. 

("RingCentral") and City of Pontiac, ("Customer" or "You") (together the "Parties"), 

for the purchase of the Services, licenses, and products listed herein. This Initial Order 

Form is subject to the terms and conditions specified in the applicable Agreement 

between the Parties. Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meanings 

as set forth in the applicable Agreement between the Parties. 

Service Provider 

Service Provider RingCentral, Inc. 

Address 20 Davis Drive 

City, State & Zip Code Belmont, CA 94002 

Country USA 

Customer 

Customer City of Pontiac 

Address 47450 Woodward Ave 

City, State & Zip Code Pontiac, MICHIGAN 48342 

Country United States 

Billing Contact Person 

Billing Contact Phone 

Billing Contact E-mail 

Address 

Service Commitment Period 

Start Date December 8th , 2020 

Initial Term 36 Months 

Renewal Term 36 Months 

1/4 



Payment Schedule Monthly Payment Schedule 

RingCentral Office Services 

Summary of All Services 

• I• One-time 

Subtotal 

Additional Toll-Free Number Monthly 1 $0.99 $0.99 $0.00 

Digitalline Unlimited Standard Monthly 143 $13.49 $1,929.07 $0.00 

e911 Service Fee Monthly 147 $1.00 $147.00 $0.00 

Compliance and Administrative Cost Recovery 
Monthly 147 $3.50 $514.50 $0.00 

Fee 

Digitalline Basic Monthly 4 $9.99 $39.96 $0.00 

RingCentral Video Monthly 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Polycom Trio 8500 Conference Phone 
One -

$899.00 $0.00 4 $3,596.00 
Time 

Polycom VVX-250 Business IP Phone 
One -

Time 
121 $63.96 $0.00 $7,739.16 

Polycom VVX-450 Business IP Phone with 1 One-
$409.00 $0.00 $3,272.00 

Expansion Module Time 
8 

One -
Polycom OBi302 ATA 

Time 
14 $69.00 $0.00 $966.00 

One-
RingCentral for Desktop 

Time 
14 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

New Service Amount * $2,631.52 $15,573.16 

Total Initial Amount* $18,204.68 

* Amounts are exclusive of applicable Taxes and Fees. 

2/4 



fng entral 
Special Terms and Notes: 

1) Customer's subscription entitles it to all features that are ascribed to the Office [Standard] 

Edition as they are described in the RingCentral website, as well as the features that follow: 

a) Single Sign-On 

b) Custom Roles & Permissions 

c) Multi-Site Support 

2) As a one-time incentive, RingCentral shall provide Customer with up to 121 Polycom 

VVX250 devices at a discounted price of $63.96 each. Thereafter, Customer may purchase 

additional Polycom VVX250 devices at the discounted price of $109.00 each, excluding 

taxes and fees. This incentive offer is subject to the Order Form and the terms of the 

Agreement. 

3/4 



Cost Center Billing: 

For customers with cost center billing, it is the customer's responsibility to provide 

cost center allocation information to Ring Central at least 10 days prior to the issuance 

of the invoice. After the information is received, it will be reflected on future invoices, 

but will not be adjusted retroactively on past invoices. If purchasing additional 

services through the administrative portal, it is the customer's responsibility to assign 

cost centers at the time of purchase; otherwise, those services will not be allocated by 

cost center on the next invoice. Please note that cost center allocation is not 

available for certain items, such as minute bundles and credit memos. For additional 

questions, please contact the RingCentral invoice billing team at 

billingsu_ppori@rlDgcentral.com. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Initial Order Form above 

through their duly authorized representatives. 

Customer RingCentral 

City of Pontiac RingCentral, Inc. 

By: By: 

Name: Name: Carson Hostetter 

Title: Title: SVP, Field Sales 

Date: Date: 

4/4 



RingCentral Professional Services 

Statement of Work for Implementation Services 

This RingCentral Professional Services Statement of Work for Professional Services {this "SOW") is 
executed by RingCentral, Inc. ("RingCentral"), and City of Pontiac (the "Customer") pursuant to, and is 
subject to, the RingCentral PS Agreement executed by Customer and RingCentral on or about 
____ _, __ (the "PS Agreement"). Capitalized terms used in this SOW but not otherwise defined 
shall have the respective meanings given to them in the PS Agreement. 

Customer: City of Pontiac 

Quote/SOW Number: U2020-01809396 

Labor Cost: $7,350.00 USD 

Project Phases: 

• Multiphase Project. - Per Site 

Scope of the Phase Value Completion Criteria 

Phase Each Site listed in the Rate of $7,350 Completion of all Professional 
Appendix B of this SOW allocated by Site per Services described in this SOW 
constitute an independent Appendix B (Excluding for each Site. 
Project Phase Taxes and Expenses if 

applicable (Actuals). 

The following activities shall be performed in accordance with this Statement of Work and the PS 
Agreement at the location(s) and for the number of Users and Sites indicated in the attached Appendices: 

1. General 
1.1. Assignment of a designated Project Manager ("PM") - The RingCentral PM will act as Single 

Point of Contact for delivery services, following the Project Management Institute (PMI) standard 
methodology. The RingCentral Project Manager will be responsible for the following activities in 
connection with this Statement of Work {SOW): 

i. Internal and external kickoff session hosted by RingCentral; 
ii. Creation and management of project governance, to include: 

a. Project plan and Schedule; 
b. Communication plan, resource plan, escalation plan, change plan, test plan; 
c. Action and risk register; 

iii. Completing resource assignment and scheduling in alignment with project schedule; 
iv. Set up of project documentation and timelines in collaboration with designated Customer 

Single Point of Contact; 

RC Agreement Implementation Services SOW 



v. Identifying, communicating and mitigating project risks and issues; 
vi. Alignment of scope of services with customer expectations during kickoff; 
vii. Developing, reviewing, authorizing, implementing, and managing change requests and 

interventions (Perform Change Management) to achieve project outputs; 
viii. Facilitating and leading regular status update meetings, organize planning sessions and 

Customer steering committees, as applicable; 
ix. Completing scoped migration and go live support; and 
x. Performing closure procedures at the conclusion of project activities. 

2. RingCentral Office Planning and Design 

2.1. RingCentral Planning and Design ("P&D") and Business Requirements Document ("BRD") 
RingCentral will initiate the Planning and Design process and introduce the Business Requirements 
Document to the Customer at the beginning of the project and will consist of structured planning 
activities for a period of up to two (2) weeks. This process will define and capture the project-wide 
deployment holistically including all sites and users listed in Appendix A. 

i. RingCentral has included up to two (2) design documentation collection session(s) with this project 
delivery 

ii. All groups will provide data during their assigned data collection process over a one (1) week 
period for a total of two (2) supported weeks and contribute to a universal design documentation 
across all lines of business/ business units 

iii. Additional data collections are available to the customer for further breakout via change request 
at an additional expense if data collection needs to take place by country or user group 

iv. Details within the data collection include: 
a. Customer Site Information; 
b. User Upload; 
c. Data collection for End-User and Administrator Training; 
d. Porting data; 
e. Call flow(s); 
f. Roles and Permissions; 
g. Delivery Overview; 
h. Go-Live Readiness Report Card; 

ii. The fully reviewed BRD is signed off by Customer's Project Manager and RingCentral's Project 
Manager prior to moving to deployment. 

a. Material changes to the BRD made after mutual execution are available to the 
customer via change request 

iii. Delay in completing and returning Customer documentation may result in an adjustment of 
project timeline and additional fees. 

2.2 Network Readiness Assessment - RingCentral will provide the Customer with one (1) assessment 
of the customer's primary Internet Service Provider (ISP) connection to and from RingCentral. This 
connection will be at the customer's firewall (edge). 

i. RingCentral's Network Engineer will provide the following: 
a. RingCentral Network Requirements Documentation; 
b. Satellite installation guide; 
c. Assistance with satellite installation; 
d. Document and share results of network assessment for customer reference; 

ii. Site assessments not completed prior to Go-Live will result in the forfeiture of the 
assessment for this project. 

RC Agreement Implementation Services SOW 



iii. Additional network assessments or consultations are available to the customer via an 
executed Change Order and will result in additional fees. This may include additional ISP 
links or sites. 

3. RingCentral Office Build 
3.1. RingCentral Basic User Interface ("UI") Single Phased Build Out 

i. RingCentral will remotely configure the following interfaces in the system ("UI Build Out") 
based on the specifications agreed to between the parties in the BRD. 

a. Up to three (3) locations 
b. Up to nine (9) Unique Call Flows 
c. Up to fourteen (14) Call Queue and Ring Groups 
d. Up to two (2) Custom Roles 

• Service plan must support Custom Roles 
e. Up to two (2) Templates 

ii. Customization is available to the customer at an additional cost via executed Change Order 
iii. Substitute Caller ID (Spoofing) configuration is not included. It is available at an additional 

cost via executed Change Order. 

4. RingCentral Delivery Services 
4.1. Remote Delivery and Go Live Services 

i. RingCentral will provide remote go live services to complete the following: 
a. Delivery resource during remote Go Live as defined in Appendix B; 
b. Document open issues in action log; 
c. Transition into support services; 
d. Perform closure procedures at the conclusion of project activities 

ii. Customer responsibilities: 
a. Customer is responsible for handset placement at locations listed in Appendix B 

• RingCentral to provide instructions and best practices for handset 
placement, test, and endpoint registration 

b. Customer is responsible for decommission and disposal of any legacy equipment 

5. RingCentral Training Services 
5.1. Admin Training - RingCentral Professional Services will provide resources to complete the 

following: 
i. Up to two (2) hours of remote admin training to be provided by a RingCentral University 

Training Specialist 
ii. Sessions cover the following: 

a. Building, activating, disabling and deleting users; 
b. Managing user settings with role, templates, and User groups (if applicable); 
c. Managing system setup and maintenance via the Admin Portal including phone 

company info, caller ID, and directory assistance; 
d. Managing phones and numbers including assisted provisioning; 
e. Call flow management; 
f. Reports and call logs; and 
g. Familiarization with Support/Training/Help resources 

iii. Session recordings are included at no additional cost 
iv. Online, self-service admin training at RingCentral University included at no additional cost 

h. Webinars & Videos, Getting Started Tutorials, and User Guides 

RC Agreement Implementation Services SOW 



v. Custom admin training, documentation, and videos available at an additional cost via 
executed Change Order 

vi. Additional ad min sessions are available to the customer via Change Request at an additional 
charge 

vii. Helpdesk training sessions are available to the customer at an additional cost via executed 
Change Order 

viii. Customer and RingCentral agree that Professional Services Project Completion Form shall 
not be withheld by Customer for delays in the delivery of the RingCentral training services 

5.2. End User Training - RingCentral Professional Services will provide resources to complete the 
following: 

i. Any combination of the following one (1) hour remote end user training sessions for a total 
of up to two (2) sessions to be provided by RingCentral University Training Specialist: 

a. Standard End User 
b. Train the Trainer (Standard End User) 
c. Exec Assistant/Front Desk 
d. Remote User 

ii. Session recordings included at no additional cost 
iii. Online, self-service end user training at RingCentral University included at no additional cost 

a. Webinars & Videos, Getting Started Tutorials, and User Guides 
iv. Custom end user training, documentation, and videos available at an additional cost via 

change request 
v. Additional end user sessions are available to the customer via Change Request at an 

additional charge 
vi. Customer and RingCentral agree that Professional Services Project Completion Form shall 

not be withheld by Customer for delays in the delivery of the RingCentral training services 

6. Handoff Testing 
6.1. System Integration Testing (SIT) 

i. RingCentral will complete System Integration Testing (SIT) following final configuration of 
RingCentral prior to handoff to the Customer to start User Acceptance Testing (UAT); 

6.2. UAT Assumptions 
i. During UAT, the Customer will designate users to complete application testing in mock real

world scenarios to validate the RingCentral build matches the agreed design documentation; 
ii. Customer will define the UAT scenarios or stories by phase and the mutually agreed criteria 

is recorded as an Appendix in the design documentation prior to mutual execution as the 
document of record; 

a. If UAT scenarios are not specified by the Customer, then work is deemed accepted 
and ready for go live upon notice from RingCentral that the work is complete and 
ready for testing; 

iii. Customer resources participating in UAT must complete all pre-recorded online training 
sessions for agent, supervisor, and/or admin related to their job role prior to starting UAT; 

a. RingCentral Implementation Engineer may provide up to one (1) hour of additional 
guided training to UAT participants, as requested by the Customer, specific to the 
test criteria; 

iv. The outcome of all UAT scenarios are documented by the Customer in a written format and 
provided to RingCentral at completion of testing; 

RC Agreement Implementation Services SOW 



a. Any variation in expected results (errors, flaws, failures, adjustments) are provided 
in writing to the RingCentral Project Manager for review and resolution; 

b. RingCentral will provide an expected variation resolution date and submit back to 
the Customer for additional testing; 

v. Upon completion of all UAT scenarios, the Customer will submit final written completion of 
testing to RingCentral prior to scheduling go live; 

a. RingCentral will append the design document output to include completed UAT 
criteria in the final published output document; 

6.3. UAT Constraints 
i. The Customer and RingCentral will enact a mutual software/ code freeze prior to start of SIT 

and UAT; 
ii. Customer shall perform UAT within seven (7) calendar days of application handoff from 

RingCentral for any Deliverables, unless otherwise mutually agreed by the parties 
considering the nature or scope of the Deliverable in writing prior to start of testing; 

iii. Any Customer changes in software or code following written UAT completion resulting in 
new application behaviors may result in additional charges to the Customer via Change 
Request for troubleshooting and issue resolution; 

iv. Additional days of UAT support are available to the Customer via Change Request at an 
additional charge 

6.4. Project and Phase Acceptance 
i. Final phase and project acceptance subject to terms and conditions in RingCentral MSA 

7. Hours of Operation 
7.1. Standard Service Hours 

i. Unless otherwise specified, pricing assumes that Services will be performed between 8:00 
AM to 5:00 PM local site time, Monday-Friday, excluding holidays ("Standard Service Hours") 

ii. Work requested and performed outside Standard Services Hours will be subject to overtime 
charges via executed Change Order 

8. Customer Responsibilities - The Customer is responsible for aspects not specifically included in this 
Statement of Work. Out of scope items include: 

i. The customers LAN/WAN infrastructure; 
ii. Network minimum requirements for RingCentral as a Service model; 

a. Quality of Service (QoS) configuration; 
b. Firewall or Access Control List (ACL) configuration; 
c. Power over Ethernet (POE) port activation/ configuration; 

iii. Configuration and software installation on customer PCs; 
iv. Decommission and disposal of any legacy equipment; 
v. Customizations on individual User endpoints, or phone settings (as defined in section 3.1.v); 
vi. Provide work space for RingCentral on-site personnel (as scoped); 
vii. Overhead paging; 
viii. Postage Machines; 

ix. Credit Card or Point of Sale (POS) Machines; 
x. Door buzzer or Automatic Door Controller; 
xi. Third party SIP phones; 
xii. Headsets; 

RC Agreement Implementation Services SOW 



xiii. Analog Devices 
xiv. Third party Applications 
xv. Input Registered E911 Address and location information to Service Web 

a. This is critical information which is used by first responders in case of an emergency 
hence customer must ensure that the information they are adding to the Service 
Web is accurate 

b. For more information, please refer to Appendix D 

9. Customer's Telephone Number Porting -The Customer is responsible for authorizing the telephone 
number porting by RingCentral. RingCentral shall provide guidance on porting data collection and shall 
assist with submission of porting request(s). This effort pertains to those locations identified in 
Appendix B. Customer and RingCentral agree that RingCentral is not responsible for the portability of 
any individual number or group of numbers and the sign-off the Professional Services Project 
Completion Signoff Document shall not be withheld by Customer for delays in the porting of the 
numbers. 

i. Notwithstanding the above, the RingCentral Project Manager, upon Customer request, shall 
assist .the Customer with this responsibility by performing the following tasks for each Site: 

ii. The RingCentral Project Manager shall assist the Customer with the initial submission of port 
requests and shall assist in up to three (3) rejections/resubmissions per location or 90 days 
from submission, whichever occurs first; 

a. Any additional port rejections will be the responsibility of the Customer; 
b. Customer shall provide RingCentral all appropriate Letters of Authorization 

("LOA'"s), billing information, and authorized signer for each location; 
c. Porting submissions will include numbers mapped to correct route as "company" 

numbers or Direct Dial phone numbers; 

10. Delays and Changes -Changes to this SOW shall be made only in a mutually executed written change 
order between RingCentral and Customer (a "Change Order,") a sample of which is attached as 
Appendix C to this SOW), outlining the requested change and the effect of such change on the 
Services, including without limitation the fees and the timeline as determined by mutual agreement 
of both parties. Any delays in the performance of consulting services or delivery of deliverables 
caused by Customer, including without limitation delays in completing and returning Customer 
documentation required during the P&D or completing the BRO, may result in an adjustment of 
project timeline and additional fees. Any changes or additions to the services described in this SOW 
shall be requested by a Change Order and may result in additional fees. 

11. Project Phasing - The Professional Services may be delivered in one or more phases as set forth in 
this SOW. This SOW describes the milestones, objectives, Deliverables, Sites, fees and other 
components that are included in the scope of each phase ("Project Phases"). Customer agrees that 
the delivery, installation, testing, acceptance and payment for the Professional Services rendered 
under any one Project Phase is not dependent on the delivery, installation, testing, acceptance and 
payment for the Professional Services under any other Project Phase. Each Project Phase will be billed 
upon Acceptance, and Payment for each Project Phase is due in full within the applicable payment 
period agreed between the parties and is non-refundable. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this RingCentral Professional Services Statement of Work 
for Implementation Services below through their duly authorized representatives. 

RC Agreement Implementation Services SOW 



Customer RingCentral 

City of Pontiac RingCentral, Inc. 

By: By: 

Name: Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

RC Agreement Implementation Services SOW 



RingCentral Professional Services 
Statement of Work for Professional Services 

Appendix A 
Planning and Design Location 

Planning and Design Location Address(s): Up to # of Users 
Remote 

Site 

City Hall 

District Court 

Total 

147 

RingCentral Professional Services 
Statement of Work for Professional Services 

Appendix B 

Address Number Deployment 
of Users Type 

47450 Woodward Ave. Pontiac Ml 48342 92 Remote 
70 N. Saginaw St. Pontiac Ml 48342 55 Remote 

147 

RC Agreement Implementation Services SOW 

Rate per 
Site 

$4,600.00 

$2,750.00 

$7,350.00 



RingCentral Professional Services 
Statement of Work for Professional Services 

Appendix C 
Change Order Form for Implementation Services 

This Change Order to the Statement of Work is subject to the Professional Services Agreement (the "PS 
Agreement") by and between Customer and RingCentral with the Effective Date listed below, 
establishes a change to the project scope or budget. By executing this Change Order, the parties agree 
to be bound by the terms and conditions set out in the PS Agreement with respect to the Services to be 
performed under the PS Agreement and Statement of Work ("SOW") indicated below as modified by 
this Change Request. 

Effective Date of PS Effective Date of SOW: 

Agreement: 

Project Name: Request Date: PO Number: Quote Number: 

Customer Name: Requested By: Requestor Requestor email: 
Phone: 

Customer Address: 

Specific Details Explaining the Change: 

Change 1 

Quantity: Description: Professional Services Cost: 

Change Order Total: I 

Impact on Project Timeline and Scheduled Delivery Date: 

Impact on SOW Pricing: 

BY SIGNING BELOW, the Parties have each caused this Change Order to be signed and delivered by its 
duly authorized representative as of the date Customer signs below (the "Effective Date"). 
Customer RingCentral 

By: By: 
Signed: _SAMPLE ONLY ____ _ Signed: _SAMPLE ONLY ____ _ 

Title: Title: ------------Date: ___________ _ Date:------------

RC Agreement Implementation Services SOW 



RingCentral Professional Services 
Statement of Work for Professional Services 

Appendix D 
Registration of Address and Notification Information - Emergency Dialing. 

Bulk uploading of user data, building extensions, etc. may require input of registered addresses and 
emergency notification information. By engaging RingCentral for implementation of the Services, 
Customer agrees to the following: 

I. 

II. 

Registered Address. It is Customer's obligation to maintain accurate emergency location 
information for each Digital Line on its Account. RingCentral will, on Customer's behalf, upload 
Customer's Users' registered addresses using a list of addresses provided by Customer. 

Emergency Notifications. For Digital Lines located in the United States, Customer must input 
and maintain in Service Web a central location for the receipt of emergency notifications 
generated by its Users placing emergency calls (for further information about this obligation, 
click here). RingCentral will, as a part of the upload described in (A) above, also input 
Customer's emergency notification location, as directed by Customer. 

Ill. Customer's Representation and Warranty. Customer represents and warrants that the 
registered addresses and emergency notifications location are accurate and acknowledges that 
any subsequent change to the registered addresses must be carried out by Customer. Customer 
acknowledges that it may have its own independent legal obligation to ensure the accuracy of 
the above information and that RingCentral takes no responsibility for the accuracy of the 
information provided by Customer. 

RC Agreement Implementation Services SOW 



Clffi OF 

Presented to: City of Pontiac 
Ronllliao 

MICHIGAN 

Service Price - 36 Month Term (MRC) •· Monthly Pay 

Description Qty, 

RingCentral Office - Standard licenses•• 143 
Softphone, Mobile App, Team Messaging, RC Video, Audio Conferencing, SMS, Fax 143 

Basic License - limited Voice Extension {Conference, Common Area) 4 
Usage - Local & Long Distance for US & Canada, 1,000 Toll-Free Minutes UNLIMITED 
Additional Toll-Free Numbers 3 
Com liance and Administrative Cost Recove Fee 147 
E-911 147 
Federal Universal Service Fund Fee 1 

RingCentral Office Grand Total* 

*Federal Universal Service Fund Fee (FUSF) charge calculated at time of invoke. 

Tax exemption of State & Local taxes pending RingCentral approval of tax exempt certificate 

**Includes Premium tier features: Multisite, SSO, Custom Roles and Permissions, Nomadic 911 

Phone Hardware (one-time purchase) 

Description 

Phone Hardware - Pol com VV>< 250 (General) 
Phone Hardware - Polycom VV>< 450 + Expansion Module (Receptionist) 
Phone Hardware - Polycom Trio 8500 (Conference) 
Phone Hardware - Polycom OBi302 ATA (Fax) 

Total for Phone Hardware Purchase 

Professional Services (one-time fee/purchase) 

Description 

Professional Services• Remote Project Management, Implementation, & Training 

Total for Professional Service Implementation 

•final scope of work (SOW) and associated pricing will be developed upon the completion of services 

discovery conversations 

ASubject to change based on final SOW 

PRICING VALID FOR 60 DAYS 

Polycom Rebate Program 

Description 

Phone Hardware - Polycom VV><250 
Phone Hardware - Polycom VV><450 
Phone Hardware - Polycom Trio 8500 

Limit 200 phones 

Rebate funds provided directly from Polycom 

Total Rebate 

Qty. 

121 
8 

4 
14 

Qty. 

147 

Qty. 

121 
8 
4 

Tony Pacini, Sr. Account Executive• Public Sector 
Connect with me: 313-335-3240 I tony.pacini@ringcentral.com 

List Unit Price 

~ 
Included 
$14,99 

Included 
$4,99 

$3.50 
$1.00 

List Unit Price 

List Unit Price 

Polycom 
Rebate 
($15.00) 

{$40,00) 

($50,00) 

Discounted 
Unit Price 

$13.49 
Included 

$9.99 
Included 

$0.99 

Discounted 
Unit Price 

$63.96 
$409.00 
$899.00 
$69.00 

Discounted 
Unit Price 

$50.00 

Total for Units 

(Sl,815.00) 
($32000) 

($200.00) 

($2,335.00) 

RingCentral 
Monthly Amount 

$1,929.07 
Included 
$39.96 

Included 
$2.97 

$514.50 
$147.00 
$115.98 

$2,749.48 

Total for Units 

Total for Units 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Master Services Agreement is effective as of the date of last signature ("Effective Date") and made between: 

RingCentral, Inc. {"RingCentral") 

Address: 
20 Davis Drive 
Belmont, CA 94002 

Signature: . ,, ................................ , ........................ . 
for and on behalf of RingCentral. 

Name: ......................................................... , ........ . 

Job Title: ............................................................. .. 

Date: ................................................................... . 

City of Pontiac {"Customer") 

Address: 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Signature: ......... , .... , ............................... , ............ . 
for and on behalf of Customer. 

Name: ................................................................ .. 

Job Title: ............................................................ .. 

Date: ................................................................... . 

RingCentral and Customer are together referred to as the "Parties" and each individually as a "Party." 

1. The Master Services Agreement {"Agreement") consists of the terms and conditions contained herein, and any Service Attachments applicable 
to Customer's Services, and any other Attachments agreed by the Parties, are incorporated into and form a part of this Agreement. 
0 Exhibit A - Definitions 
0 Service Attachment A - RingCentral Office Services 
0 Attachment B - Professional Services Agreement 
0 Attachment C - Service Level Agreement for Office Services 
0 Attachment D - Business Associate Agreement 

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

2. Ordering and Term 
A. Ordering Services, Customer may order the Services set forth 

in the relevant Attachments, attached hereto, by executing an Order 
Form in the format provided by RingCentral. Customer must submit the 
Order Form to RingCentra I either in writing or electronically via the 
Administrative Portal. The Order Form will identify the Services 
requested by Customer together with: {i) the price for each Service; {ii) 
scheduled Start Date; {iii) and products rented, licensed or sold to 
Customer, if any. An Order Form will become binding when it is 
executed by the Customer and accepted by RingCentral. RingCentral 
may accept an Order Form by commencing performance of the 
requested Services. The Services and invoicing for those Services will 
begin on the Start Date, as identified in the applicable Order Form or 
on the day Services are ordered via the Administrative Portal. 
Customer may purchase additional Services, software, and equipment 
via the Administrative Portal or by executing additional Order Forms. 

B. Equipment. Customer may purchase or rent equipment from 
RingCentral for use with the Services. The terms and conditions that 
govern any such transaction can be found at: 

{i) Purchase: b.!.illJ/www.ringcentral.com/legal/ringcentral
hardware-terms-conditions.html; and 
{ii) Rental: http://www.ringcentral.com/legal/lease-rental.html 
c. Term of this Agreement. The Term of this Agreement will 

commence on the Effective Date and continue until the last Order Form 
is terminated or expires, unless terminated earlier in accordance with 
its terms. 

D. Services Term. The Services Term will begin on the Start Date 
of the initial Order Form and continue for the initial term set forth in 
the initial Order Form {"Initial Term"). Upon expiration of the Initial 
Term, unless otherwise set forth in the Order Form, recurring Services 

MSA USA 20200914 

will automatically renew for successive periods as set forth in the initial 
Order Form {each a "Renewal Term") unless either Party gives notice 
of non-renewal at least thirty {30) days before the expiration of the 
Initial Term or the then-current Renewal Term. The term of any 
recurring Services added to your Account after the initial Order Form 
is executed will start on the Start Date in the applicable Order Form, 
will run coterminously with the then-current Term of any preexisting 
Services unless otherwise extended in the applicable Order Form, and 
will be invoiced on the same billing cycles as the preexisting Services, 

3. Invoicing and Payment 
A. Prices and Charges, All prices are identified in US dollars on the 

Administrative Portal or in the applicable Order Form unless otherwise 
agreed by the Parties. Additional charges may result if Customer 
activates additional features, exceeds usage thresholds, or purchases 
additional Services or equipment. Customer will be liable for all charges 
resulting from use of the Services on its Account. Unless otherwise 
agreed between the Parties, recurring charges for the Services begin 
on the Start Date identified in the Administrative Portal or in the 
applicable Order Form and will continue for the Term, Recurring 
charges {such as charges for Digital Lines, product licenses, minute 
bundles, and equipment rental fees) will, unless otherwise agreed 
between the Parties, once incurred, remain in effect for the then
current Term. RingCentral will provide notice of any proposed increase 
in such charges no later than sixty {60) days before the end of the Initial 
Term or then-current Renewal Term, and any such increase will be 
effective on the first day of the next Renewal Term. Administrative 
Fees that RingCentral is entitled to pass on to its customers as a 
surcharge pursuant to applicable Law may be increased on thirty {30) 
days' written notice. Outbound calling rates will be applied based on 

Page 1 of 17 



the rate in effect at the time of use. Customer may locate the currently 
effective rates in the Administrative Portal. 

B. Invoicing and Payment. Invoices will be issued in accordance 
with the payment terms set forth in the Order Form. If Customer 
chooses to pay by credit or debit card, by providing a valid credit or 
debit card, Customer is expressly authorizing all Services and 
equipment charges and fees to be charged to such payment card, 
including recurring payments billed on a monthly or annual basis. In 
addition, Customer's provided credit card shall be used for any in
month purchases of additional services and products, or where 
Customer has exceeded usage or threshold limits, any overage 
charges. Unless otherwise stated in the applicable Order Form, 
recurring charges are billed in advance in the frequency set forth in the 
Order Form, and usage-based and onetime charges are billed monthly 
in arrears. Customer shall make payment in full, without deduction or 
set-off, within thirty {30) days of the invoice date. Any payment not 
made when due may be subject to a late payment fee equivalent to the 
lesser of (i) one and a half percent (1.5%) per month or (ii) if applicable, 
the highest rate allowed by Law. In no event may payment be subject 
to delays due to Customer internal purchase order process. 

C. Taxes. All rates, fees, and charges are exclusive of applicable 
Taxes, for which Customer is solely responsible. Taxes may vary based 
on jurisdiction and the Services provided. If any withholding tax is 
levied on the payments, then Customer must increase the sums paid 
to RingCentral so that the amount received by RingCentral after the 
withholding tax is deducted is the full amount RingCentral would have 
received if no withholding or deduction had been made. If Customer is 
a tax-exempt entity, tax exemption will take effect upon provision to 
and validation by RingCentral of certificate of tax exemption. 

D. Billing Disputes. If a Customer reasonably and in good faith 
disputes any portion of RingCentral's invoice, it must provide written 
notice to RingCentral within thirty (30) days of the invoice date, 
identifying the reason for the dispute and the amount being disputed. 
Customer's dispute as to any portion of the invoice will not excuse 
Customer's obligation to timely pay the undisputed portion of the 
invoice. Upon resolution, Customer must pay any validly invoiced 
unpaid amounts within thirty (30) days. Any amounts that are found 
to be in error resulting in an overpayment by the Customer will be 
applied as a billing credit against future invoices. Customer will be 
reimbursed any outstanding billing credits at the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement. 

4. Provision of the Service 
A. General Terms. RingCentral will provide the Services as 

described in the relevant Service Attachment. RingCentral may 
enhance, replace, and/or change the features of the Services, but it will 
not materially reduce the core features, functions, or security of the 
Services during the Term without Customer's consent. 

B. Customer Care 
i. Customer must provide Helpdesk Support to Customer's End 
Users. RingCentral may require Customer's Helpdesk Support 
personnel to complete a designated series of training courses 
on RingCentral's Services. Such training will be provided to 
Customer online in English at no cost. 
ii. RingCentral will make remote support available to 
Customer's Helpdesk Support personnel and/or Account 
Administrators via the Customer Care call center, which will be 
available 24/7, to attempt to resolve technical issues with, and 
answer questions regarding the use of the Services. Unless 
otherwise agreed by the parties, Customer Care support will be 
provided in English, and onsite and implementation services 
are not included in the Customer Care support. 
iii. Customer may open a case with Customer Care following the 

MSA USA 20200914 

process in place at the time. Any individual contacting 
Customer Care on behalf of Customer must be authorized to do 
so on behalf of the Account and will be required to follow 
applicable authentication protocols. 

C. Professional Services. RingCentral offers a broad portfolio of 
professional services that includes onsite and remote implementation 
services; extended enterprise services including dedicated proactive 
network monitoring and premium technical support; and consulting. 
Any such services are governed by this Agreement, the Professional 
Services terms, and any applicable Statement of Work (SOW), which 
may be attached hereto. 

D. Subcontracting. RingCentral may provide any of the Services 
hereunder through any of its Affiliates or subcontractors, provided that 
RingCentral will bear the same degree of responsibility for acts and 
omissions for those subcontractors acting on RingCentral's behalf in 
the performance of its obligations under this Agreement as it would 
bear if such acts and omissions were performed by RingCentral 
directly. 

S. Use of the Service 
A. Service Requirements. The Services are dependent upon 

Customer's maintenance of sufficient Internet access, networks and 
power as set forth in RingCentral's Technical Sufficiency Criteria, 
available at https://www.ringcentral.com/legal/pol icies/technical
sufficiency-criteria. htm I. RingCentral will not be responsible for any 
deficiencies in the provision of the Services if Customer's network does 
not meet RingCentral's Technical Sufficiency Criteria. 

B. Use Policies. Customer and its End Users may use the Services 
only in compliance with this Agreement, applicable Law, and the Use 
Policies referenced below, which are incorporated into and form part 
of this Agreement. Customer must ensure that its End Users comply 
with the Use Policies. Any breach of this Section (Use Policies) will be 
deemed a material breach of this Agreement. RingCentral may update 
the Use Policies from time to time and will provide notice of material 
updates to Customer at the email address on file with the Account. All 
updates will become effective thirty (30) days after such notice to 
Customer or upon posting for non-material changes. Customer may 
object to a modification that negatively impacts its use of the Service 
by sending written notice ("Objection Notice") to RingCentral within 
thirty (30) days from the date of the notice of modification. If the 
Parties cannot reach agreement, then either Party may terminate the 
affected Services without penalty with a thirty {30) days written notice 
to the other Party. 

i. Acceptable Use Policy. The Services must be used in 
accordance with RingCentral's Acceptable Use Policy, 
available at https://www.ringcentral.com/legal/acceptable
use-policy.html. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
this Agreement, RingCentral may act immediately and 
without notice to suspend or limit the Services if RingCentral 
reasonably suspects fraudulent or illegal activity in the 
Customer's Account, material breach of the Acceptable Use 
Policy, or use of the Services that could interfere with the 
functioning of the RingCentral Network provided such 
suspension or limitation may only be to the extent 
reasonably necessary to protect against the applicable 
condition, activity, or use. RingCentral will promptly remove 
the suspension or limitation as soon as the condition, activity 
or use is resolved and mitigated in full. If Customer 
anticipates legitimate but unusual activity on its Account, 
Customer should contact Customer Care in advance to avoid 
any Service disruption. 

ii. Emergency Services. RingCentral's policy governing the 
provision of emergency services accessed via the Services is 

Page 2 of 17 



available at https://www.ringcentral.com/legal/emergency
services. html. 

iii. Numbering Policies. The provision, use, and publication of 
numbers used in conjunction with the Services are governed 
by RingCentral's Numbering Policies, available at 
https://www.ringcentral.com/legal/policies/numbering
policy.html. 

6. Termination 
A. Termination for Cause. Either Party may terminate this 

Agreement and any Services purchased hereunder in whole or part by 
giving written notice to the other Party: i) if the other Party breaches 
any material term of this Agreement and fails to cure such breach 
within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice; ii) at the written 
recommendation of a government or regulatory agency following a 
change in either applicable Law or the Services; or iii) upon the 
commencement by or against the other Party of insolvency, 
receivership or bankruptcy proceedings or any other proceedings or an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors. 

B. Effect of Termination. If Customer terminates the Services, a 
portion of the Services, or this Agreement in its entirety due to 
RingCentral's material breach under Section 6(A) (Termination for 
Cause), Customer will not be liable for any fees or charges for 
terminated Services for any period subsequent to the effective date of 
such termination (except those arising from continued usage before 
the Services are disconnected), and RingCentral will provide Customer 
a pro-rata refund of any prepaid and unused fees or charges paid by 
Customer for terminated Services. If this Agreement or any Services 
are terminated for any reason other than as a result of a material 
breach by RingCentral or as otherwise permitted pursuant to Section 
G(A) or as set forth in Section 14(J) (Regulatory and Legal Changes) the 
Customer must, to the extent permitted by applicable Law and without 
limiting any other right or remedy of RingCentral, pay within thirty (30) 
days of such termination all amounts that have accrued prior to such 
termination, as well as all sums remaining unpaid for the Services for 
the remainder of the then-current Term plus related Taxes and fees. 

7. Intellectual Property 
A. Limited License 

i. Subject to, and conditional upon Customer's compliance 
with, the terms of this Agreement, RingCentral grants to 
Customer and its End User, a limited, personal, revocable, 
non-exclusive, non-transferable (other than as permitted 
under this Agreement), non-sublicensable license to use any 
software provided or made available by RingCentral to the 
Customer as part of the Services ("Software") to the extent 
reasonably required to use the Services as permitted by this 
Agreement, only for the duration that Customer is entitled 
to use the Services and subject to the Customer being 
current on its payment obligations. 

ii. Customer will not, and will not allow its End Users, to: (a) 
sublicense, resell, distribute or assign its right under the 
license granted under this Agreement to any other person or 
entity; (b) modify, adapt or create derivative works of the 
Software or any associated documentation; (c) reverse 
engineer, decompile, decrypt, disassemble or otherwise 
attempt to derive the source code for the Software; (d) use 
the Software for infringement analysis, benchmarking, or for 
any purpose other than as necessary to use the Services 
Customer is authorized to use; (e) create any competing 
Software or Services; or (f) remove any copyright or other 
proprietary or confidential notices on any Software or 
Services. 

MSA USA 20200914 

B. IP Rights 
i. · RingCentral's Rights. Except as expressly provided in this 

Agreement, the limited license granted to Customer under 
Section 7(A) (Limited License) does not convey any 
ownership or other rights or licenses, express or implied, in 
the Services (including the Software), any related materials, 
or in any Intellectual Property and no IP Rights or other rights 
or licenses are granted, transferred, or assigned to Customer, 
any End User, or any other party by implication, estoppel, or 
otherwise. All rights not expressly granted herein are 
reserved and retained by RingCentral and its licensors. The 
Software and Services may comprise or incorporate services, 
software, technology or products developed or provided by 
third parties, including open source software or code. 
Customer acknowledges that misuse of RingCentral Services 
may violate third-party IP rights. 

ii. Customer Rights. As between RingCentral and Customer, 
Customer retains title to all IP Rights that are owned by the 
Customer or its suppliers. To the extent reasonably required 
or desirable for the provision of the Services, Customer 
grants to RingCentral a limited, personal, non-exclusive, 
royalty-free, license to use Customer's IP Rights in the same. 
Customer must provide (and is solely responsible for 
providing) all required notices and obtaining all licenses, 
consents, authorizations or other approvals related to the 
use, reproduction, transmission, or receipt of any Customer 
Content that includes personal or Confidential Information 
or incorporates any third-party IP rights. 

C. Use of Marks. Neither Party may use or display the other 
Party's trademarks, service mark or logos in any manner without such 
Party's prior written consent. 

8. Confidentiality 
A. Restrictions on Use or Disclosures by Either Party. During the 

Term of this Agreement and for at least one (1) year thereafter, the 
Receiving Party shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential 
Information in confidence, shall use such Confidential Information only 
for the purpose of fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement, and 
shall use at least as great a standard of care in protecting the 
Confidential Information as it uses to protect its own Confidential 
Information. 
Each Party may disclose Confidential Information only to those of its 
employees, agents or subcontractors who have a need to it in order to 
perform or exercise such Party's rights or obligations under this 
Agreement and who are required to protect it against unauthorized 
disclosure in a manner no less protective than required under this 
Agreement. Each Party may disclose the other Party's Confidential 
Information in any legal proceeding or to a governmental entity as 
required by Law. 
These restrictions on the use or disclosure of Confidential Information 
do not apply to any information which is independently developed by 
the Receiving Party or lawfully received free of restriction from another 
source having the right to so furnish such information; after it has 
become generally available to the public without breach of this 
Agreement by the Receiving Party; which at the time of disclosure was 
already known to the Receiving Party, without restriction as evidenced 
by documentation in such Party's possession; or which the Disclosing 
Party confirms in writing is free of such restrictions. 
Upon termination of this Agreement, the Receiving Party will promptly 
delete, destroy or, at the Disclosing Party's request, return to the 
Disclosing Party, all Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in its 
possession, including deleting or rendering unusable all electronic files 
and data that contain Confidential Information, and upon request will 

Page 3 of 17 



provide the Disclosing Party with certification of compliance with this 

subsection. 

9. Data Protection 
A. Data Privacy. RingCentral respects Customer's privacy and will 

only use the information provided by Customer to RingCentral or 
collected in the provision of the Services in accordance with: (a) the 

Privacy Notice, available at http://www.ringcentral.com/legal/privacy
notice.html, and (b) RingCentral's Data Processing Addendum, 

available at https://www.ringcentral.com/legal/dpa.html, each of 
which are hereby incorporated by reference. RingCentral may update 
the Privacy Notice and Data Processing Addendum from time to time 

and will provide notice of any material updates to the Customer as 
required by applicable Laws at the email address on file with the 
Account. Such updates will be effective thirty (30) days after such 
notice to Customer. 

B. Data Security. RingCentral will take commercially reasonable 

precautions, including, without limitation, technical (e.g., firewalls and 

data encryption), administrative and physical measures, to help 
safeguard Customer's Account, Account Data, and Customer Content 
against unauthorized use, disclosure, or modification. Customer must 

protect all End Points using commercially reasonable security 
measures. Customer is solely responsible to keep all user 

identifications and passwords secure. Customer must monitor use of 

the Services for possible unlawful or fraudulent use. Customer must 
notify RingCentral immediately if Customer becomes aware or has 
reason to believe that the Services are being used fraudulently or 

without authorization by any End User or third party. Failure to notify 
RingCentral may result in the suspension or termination of the Services 

and additional charges to Customer resulting from such use. 
RingCentral will not be liable for any charges resulting from 

unauthorized use of Customer's Account. 
C. Software Changes. RingCentral may from time to time push 

software updates and patches directly to Customer's device(s) for 

installation and Customer will not prevent RingCentral from doing so. 

Customer must implement promptly all fixes, updates, upgrades and 
replacements of software and third-party software that may be 
provided by RingCentral. RingCentral will not be liable for inoperability 

of the Services or any other Services failures due to failure of Customer 

to timely implement the required changes. 

10. Limitations of Liability 
A. Excluded Damages. IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY OR ITS 

AFFILIATES OR ITS OR THEIR SUPPLIERS BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT, 

INCIDENTAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES INCLUDING BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO: (1) LOSS OF USE OR LOSS OF DATA; (2) LOSS OF BUSINESS 
OPPORTUNITIES, REVENUES OR PROFITS; OR (3) COSTS OF 

PROCURING REPLACEMENT PRODUCTS OR SERVICES, IN ALL CASES 
WHETHER ARISING UNDER CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT (INCLUDING 

NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY), OR ANY OTHER THEORY OF 
LIABILITY, AND EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN INFORMED IN 
ADVANCE OF SUCH DAMAGES OR SUCH DAMAGES COULD HAVE BEEN 

REASONABLY FORESEEN. 
B. Liability Caps. EXCEPT AS SET FORTH HEREIN, THE TOTAL 

CUMULATIVE LIABILITY OF THE PARTIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 

WILL NOT EXCEED THE AMOUNTS PAID OR PAYABLE UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT DURING THE PREVIOUS SIX (6) MONTHS. LIMITATIONS 
UNDER THIS SECTION 10(8) (DIRECT DAMAGES) WILL NOT APPLY TO: 

I) FEES OWED BY CUSTOMER; 11) EITHER PARTY'S LIABILITY FOR 
INFRINGEMENT OF THE OTHER PARTY'S IP RIGHTS; Ill) EITHER PARTY'S 

LIABILITY RESULTING FROM GROSS NEGLIGENCE, FRAUD, OR WILLFUL 
OR CRIMINAL MISCONDUCT; IV) CUSTOMER'S LIABILITY RESULTING 
FROM USE OF THE SERVICES IN BREACH OF THE ACCEPTABLE USE 

MSA USA 20200914 

POLICY OR EMERGENCY SERVICES POLICY; OR VI) EITHER PARTY'S 
LIABILITY ARISING FROM DEATH OR PERSONAL INJURY CAUSED BY 

NEGLIGENCE, OR FOR ANY OTHER LIABILITY WHICH MAY NOT BE 
RESTRICTED, LIMITED OR EXCLUDED PURSUANT TO APPLICABLE LAW. 
11.lndemnification 

A. Indemnification by RingCentral 
i. RingCentral shall indemnify and hold harmless the Customer 

and its Affiliates for lndemnifiable Amounts, and shall defend 
any third-party claims or causes of action (a "Third Party 
Claim") to the extent such Third Party Claim arises out of or 
alleges that the Services, as provided by RingCentral, infringe 

or misappropriate the patent, copyright, trademark, or trade 
secret rights of a third party. 

ii. RingCentral will have no obligations under subsection (i) 

above to the extent the Third Party Claim arises from: (a) use 
of the Services in combination with data, software, 

hardware, equipment, or technology not provided or 

authorized by RingCentral in writing unless any of the 
foregoing are necessary for the proper operation of the 
Services; (b) modifications to the Services not made by 

RingCentral; (c) Customer Content; (d) failure to promptly 
install any updates of any software or firmware or accept or 
use any modified or replacement items provided free of 

charge by or on behalf of RingCentral; (e) breach of the 

Agreement; or (fl a Third Party Claim brought by Customer's 
Affiliate, successor, or assignee. 

iii. If such a Third-Party Claim is made or appears possible, 

Customer agrees to permit RingCentral, at RingCentral's sole 
discretion and expense, to (a) modify or replace the Services, 

or component or part thereof, to make it non-infringing or 
(bl obtain the right for Customer to continue to use the 
Services. If RingCentral determines that neither alternative is 

commercially reasonable, RingCentral may terminate this 
Agreement in its entirety or with respect to the affected 
Service, component or part (a "Discontinued Component"), 

effective immediately on written notice to Customer, in 
which case Customer will not owe any fees or charges 
relating to the Discontinued Component for any period 

subsequent to the date of such termination, and will be 
entitled to receive a refund of any prepaid but unused fees 

relating to the Discontinued Component. In the event the 
removal of the Discontinued Component does not 
substantially affect Customer's use of the Services, the 

refund or fee abatement pursuant to the foregoing shall be 

a reasonable portion of the total fees owed by Customer for 
the Services as a whole based on the significance of the 
Discontinued Component to the total value of the Services as 

a whole. RingCentral's obligations under this Sub-Section 
will be RingCentral's sole and exclusive liability and 
Customer's sole and exclusive remedies with respect to any 

actual or alleged intellectual property violations. 
B. Indemnification by Customer. Customer shall indemnify, and 

hold harmless RingCentral and its Affiliates for lndemnifiable Amounts, 
and shall defend any Third Party Claims arising out of or in connection 
with: (i) material violation of applicable Law by the Customer, its 

Affiliates, or their respective End Users in connection with their use of 
the Services; (ii) use of the Services in breach of the Use Policies; (iii) 
failure to promptly install any updates of any software or firmware or 
accept or use modified or replacement items provided free of charge 

by or on behalf of RingCentral; or (iv) Customer Content. 
C. Defense and Indemnification Procedures. Any Party seeking 

indemnification under this Section 11 (the "Indemnified Party") shall 

provide the Party from which it seeks such indemnification (the 

Page 4 of 17 



"Indemnifying Party") with the following: (a) prompt written notice of 
the Third-Party Claim, (b) sole control over the defense and settlement 
of the Third-Party Claim, and (c) reasonable information, cooperation, 
and assistance (at the Indemnifying Party's sole expense except for the 
value of the time of the Indemnified Party's personnel) 
in connection with the defense and settlement of the Third-Party 
Claim. The Indemnified Party's failure to comply with the foregoing 
obligations will not relieve the Indemnifying Party of its defense or 
indemnification obligations under this Section 11 (Indemnification) 
except to the extent that the Indemnifying Party is materially 
prejudiced by such failure. The Indemnified Party will have the right to 
participate (but not control), at its own expense, in the defense of such 
Third-Party Claim, including any related settlement negotiations. No 
such claim may be settled by the Indemnifying Party without the 
Indemnified Party's express written consent (not to be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned, or delayed) unless such settlement includes a 
full and complete release of all claims and actions against the 
Indemnified Party by each party bringing such Third-Party Claim, 
requires no admission of fault, liability, or guilt by the Indemnified 
Party, and requires no act by the Indemnified Party other than the 
payment of a sum of money fully indemnified by the Indemnifying 
Party. 

12.Warranties 
A. RingCentral Warranty. RingCentral will provide the Services 

using a commercially reasonable level of skill and care, in material 
compliance with all applicable Laws and otherwise subject to the terms 
of this Agreement. To the extent permitted by Law, RingCentral shall 
pass through to Customer any and all warranties RingCentral receives 
in connection with equipment provided to Customer by or on behalf of 
RingCentral. 

B. Customer Warranty. Customer's and its End Users' use of the 
Services must always comply with all applicable Laws and this 
Agreement. 

C. Disclaimer of Warranties. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH 
IN THIS AGREEMENT AND TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY 
LAW, THE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED "AS IS" AND "AS AVAILABLE," 
AND RINGCENTRAL MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT, QUIET 
ENJOYMENT, AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND ANY 
WARRANTIES ARISING FROM A COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE IN 
TRADE, TOGETHER WITH SIMILAR WARRANTIES, WHETHER ARISING 
UNDER ANY LAW OR OTHERWISE. TO THE EXTENT THAT 
RINGCENTRAL CANNOT DISCLAIM ANY SUCH WARRANTY AS A 
MATTER OF APPLICABLE LAW, THE SCOPE AND DURATION OF SUCH 
WILL BE LIMITED TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW. 

13.Dispute Resolution 
A. Governing Law. This Agreement, and any dispute, claim or 

cause of action (whether in contract, tort or statute) ("Dispute") arising 
out of or in connection with this Agreement shall be governed by, and 
construed in accordance with the Laws of the State of Michigan, 
excluding conflict of law principles. The United Nations Convention on 
Contracts for the International Sale of Goods does not apply to this 
Agreement or Customer's use of the products or Services. 

B. Good Faith Attempt to Settle Disputes. In the event of a 
Dispute, each Party shall appoint a duly authorized representative who 
shall use all reasonable endeavors to resolve in good faith any Dispute 
within reasonable timescales. 

C. Arbitration. If the Parties do not reach settlement or otherwise 
resolve a Dispute within a period of sixty (60) days, then, upon notice 
by any Party to the other(s), the Dispute shall be settled exclusively by 

MSA USA 20200914 

arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association 
("AAA") under the AAA Rules of Arbitration (the "Rules"). The number 
of arbitrators shall be one (1), to be mutually agreed by the Parties or, 
if no agreement is reached within fifteen (15) days after 
commencement of the arbitration, selected by the AAA in accordance 
with the Rules. The place of arbitration shall be Pontiac, Michigan. The 
language of the arbitration shall be English, and all written materials in 
connection with such arbitration, including but not limited to all 
pleadings and evidence, shall be available in the English language. The 
law to be used by the arbitrator shall be the Laws of the State of 
California without regard to conflict of law principles. The arbitrator's 
decision shall be final and binding, and judgment on any award 
rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having 
jurisdiction thereof. The arbitrator may award the prevailing party its 
reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in connection with the 
arbitration. Except to the extent required by Law, neither Party nor 
the arbitrator (if any) may disclose the existence, content, or results of, 
or any communications in connection with, any arbitration or Dispute 
hereunder without the prior written consent of both Parties. A Party 
may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for a temporary 
restraining order, preliminary injunction, or other interim, injunctive, 
or conservatory relief without breach of this arbitration agreement and 
without any abridgment of the powers of the arbitrators in the event 
of acts or breaches of this Agreement that such Party believes may 
cause irreparable harm or with respect to which such Party believes 
monetary damages would not provide adequate compensation. 

D. Exclusions from Arbitration. Notwithstanding the provisions of 
Section 13.C, RingCentral shall have the right to: (i) apply to any court 
of competent jurisdiction to secure a lien or take other similar action 
in connection with a Dispute related to amounts payable by Customer 
to RingCentral pursuant to Section 3 (Invoicing and Payment) of the 
Agreement; or (ii) initiate an action in small claims court for Disputes 
relating to Customer's payment obligations to RingCentral pursuant to 
Section 3 (Invoicing and Payment) of the Agreement, provided, 
however, if such a claim is transferred, removed or appealed to a 
different court, RingCentral reserves the right to require binding 
arbitration of the Dispute pursuant to the terms of Section 13.C of the 
Agreement. 

E. Equitable Relief. Any breach of either Party's IP Rights may 
cause that Party irreparable harm for which monetary damages will be 
inadequate and such Party may, in addition to other remedies available 
at Law or in equity, obtain injunctive relief without the necessity of 
posting a bond or other security, proof of damages, or similar 
requirement, in additional to any other relief to which such Party may 
be entitled under applicable Law. 

14. Miscellaneous 
A. Relationship of the Parties. RingCentral and Customer are 

independent contractors and this Agreement will not establish any 
relationship of partnership, joint venture, employment, franchise or 
agency between RingCentral and Customer. 

B. Assignment. Neither Party may assign the Agreement or any 
portion thereof without the other Party's prior written consent (which 
such consent may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), however 
either Party may assign the Agreement and all of that Party's rights and 
obligations thereunder without consent (a) to an Affiliate; (b) to the 
Party's successor or surviving entity in connection with a merger, 
acquisition, consolidation, sale of all or substantially all of its assets 
used in connection with the provision of Services under this 
Agreement; or (c) as part of the transfer or disposition of more than 
fifty percent (50%) of a Party's voting control or assets. This Agreement 
will bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their permitted 
assigns and successors. 

Page 5 of 17 



C. Notices. Except where otherwise expressly stated in the 
Agreement, all notices or other communications must be in English and 
are deemed to have been fully given when made in writing and 
delivered in person, upon delivered email, confirmed facsimile, or five 
days after deposit with an reputable overnight courier service, and 
addressed as follows: To RingCentral at RingCentral, Inc., Legal Dept., 
20 Davis Drive, Belmont, CA 94002 USA, with a copy to 
legal@ringcentral.com, and to Customer at either the physical address 
or email address associated with the Customer Account. 
Customer acknowledges and agrees that all electronic notices have the 
full force and effect of paper notices. The addresses to which notices 
may be given by either Party may be changed (a} by RingCentral upon 
written notice given to Customer pursuant to this Section or (b} by 
Customer in the Administrative Portal. 

D. Force Majeure. Excluding either Party's payment obligations 
under the Agreement, neither Party will be responsible or liable for any 
failure to perform or delay in performing to the extent resulting from 
any event or circumstance that is beyond that Party's reasonable 
control, including without limitation any act of God; national 
emergency; third-party telecommunications networks; riot; war; 
terrorism; governmental act or direction; change in Laws; fiber, cable, 
or wire cut; power outage or reduction; rebellion; revolution; 
insurrection; earthquake; storm; hurricane; flood, fire, or other natural 
disaster; strike or labor disturbance; or other cause, whether similar or 
dissimilar to the foregoing, not resulting from the actions or inactions 
of such Party. 

E. Third-Party Beneficiaries. RingCentral and Customer agree that 
there will be no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement by virtue of 
the Contracts (Rights ofThird Parties} Act 1999 or otherwise. 

F. Headings, Interpretation. The headings, section titles, and 
captions used in the Agreement are for convenience of reference only 
and will have no legal effect. All defined terms include related 
grammatical forms, and, whenever the context may require, the 
singular form of nouns and pronouns include the plural, and vice versa. 
The Parties agree that this Agreement will be deemed to have been 
jointly and equally drafted by them, and that the provisions of this 
Agreement therefore should not be construed against a Party or 
Parties on the grounds that the Party or Parties drafted or was more 
responsible for drafting the provision(s}. 

G. Anti-Bribery. Each Party represents that in the execution of this 
Agreement and in the performance of its obligations under this 
Agreement it has complied and will comply with all applicable anti
bribery Laws and regulations, including, without limitation, the U.S. 
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the UK Bribery Act and similar applicable 
Laws. 

H. Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), Customer 
Content when in-transit on the RingCentral Network and when at-rest 
within RingCentral Data Centers may contain communications and/or 
educational records pertaining to students in connection with the 
performance of the Services pursuant to the Agreement. RingCentral 
shall only use or disclose such Customer Content as is reasonably 
necessary to provide the Services or for RingCentral to otherwise 
perform its obligations under the Agreement 

I. Export Control. Any services, products, software, and technical 
information (including, but not limited to, services and training} 
provided pursuant to the Agreement may be subject to U.S. export 
Laws and regulations. Customer will not use distribute, transfer, or 
transmit the services, products, software, or technical information 
(even if incorporated into other products} except in compliance with 
U.S. and other applicable export regulations. 

J, Regulatory and Legal Changes. In the event of any change in 
Law, regulation or industry change that would prohibit or otherwise 

MSA USA 20200914 

materially interfere with RingCentral's ability to provide Services under 
this Agreement, RingCentral may terminate the affected Services or 
this Agreement or otherwise modify the terms thereof. 

K. Entire Agreement. The Agreement, together with any exhibits, 
Order Forms, Use Policies and Privacy Notice, and Attachments, each 
of which is expressly incorporated into this Agreement with this 
reference, constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and 
supersedes and replaces any and all prior or contemporaneous 
understandings, proposals, representations, marketing materials, 
statements, or agreements, whether oral, written, or otherwise, 
regarding such subject. 

L. Order of Precedence. In the event of any conflict between the 
documents comprising this Agreement, precedence will be given to the 
documents in the following descending order: (i} the applicable Order 
Form; (ii} the applicable Service Attachment; (iii} the main body of this 
Agreement; (iv} Use Policies and Privacy Notice incorporated by 
reference in this Agreement; and (v} and any other document expressly 
referred to in this Agreement which governs the Services. 

M. Amendments. Except as otherwise provided, this Agreement 
may only be modified by a written amendment executed by authorized 
representatives of both Parties. In no event will handwritten changes 
to any terms or conditions, including in the applicable Order Form, be 
effective. 

N. Severability and Waiver. In the event any provision of this 
Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 
void or unenforceable, such provision(s} will be stricken and the 
remainder of this Agreement will remain legal, valid and binding. The 
failure by either Party to exercise or enforce any right conferred by this 
Agreement will not be deemed to be a waiver of any such right or to 
operate so as to bar the exercise or enforcement of any such or other 
right on any later occasion. Except as otherwise expressly stated in this 
Agreement, all rights and remedies stated in the Agreement are 
cumulative and in addition to any other rights and remedies available 
under the Agreement, at Law, or in equity. 

0. Publicity. Subject to Customer's prior written approval, which 
may not be unreasonably withheld or denied, in each instance, and 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, 
RingCentral may identify Customer as a customer (including use of any 
Customer logo or trademark} and may refer to this Agreement during 
its earnings calls and in connection with its business deals, press 
releases, and marketing and/or promotional materials. 

P. Execution. Each Party represents and warrants that: (a} it 
possesses the legal right and capacity to enter into the Agreement and 
to perform all of its obligations thereunder; (b} the individual signing 
the Agreement and (each executable part thereof} on that Party's 
behalf has full power and authority to execute and deliver the same; 
and (c} the Agreement will be a binding obligation of that Party. Each 
Party agrees that an Electronic Signature, whether digital or encrypted, 
is intended to authenticate this Agreement and to have the same force 
and effect as manual signatures. 

Q. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed electronically 
and in separate counterparts each of which when taken together will 
constitute one in the same original. 

R. Survival. The rights and obligations of either Party that by their 
nature would continue beyond the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement or an Order Form will survive expiration or termination of 
this Agreement or the Order Form, including without limitation 
payment obligations, warranty disclaimers, indemnities, limitations of 
liability, definitions and miscellaneous. 

Page 6 of 17 



EXHIBIT A 

DEFINITIONS 

Definitions. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement but otherwise not defined have the following meaning: 

i. "Account" means the numbered account established with 
RingCentral and associated with Customer and the Services provided 
to Customer under this Agreement. For billing and convenience 
purposes, multiple services, Digital Lines, or End Users may be 
included in a single billing account, and/or a single Customer may 
have multiple billing accounts encompassing different geographic 
locations, business units, or other designations as requested by 
Customer and accepted by RingCentral. 

ii. "Account Administrator" means the person(s) who have 
been granted authority by Customer to set up, amend, or otherwise 
control settings and/or make additional purchases for the Account via 
the Administrative Portal. Account Administrators may have varying 
levels of Account rights, skills, or permissions. 

111. "Account Data" means: any business contact information 
provided with the Account; RingCentral-generated logs of calling or 
other metadata developed or collected in the provision of the 
Services; configuration data; and records of Digital Lines and any 
Services purchased under this Agreement. 

iv. "Administrative Fees" means any administrative recovery 
fees, 911 cost recovery fees and the like separately charged by 
RingCentral to Customer. 

v. "Administrative Portal" means the online administrative 
portal through which Account Administrators control settings and/or 
make additional purchases for the Account. 

vi. "Affiliate(s)" means a person or entity that is controlled by 
a Party hereto, controls a Party hereto, or is under common control 
with a Party hereto, and "control" means beneficial ownership of 
greater than fifty percent (50%) of an entity's then-outstanding voting 
securities or ownership interests. 

vii. "Attachment (s)" means documents appended to the 
contract containing additional terms for products and Services. 
Attachments and the terms and conditions contained therein are part 
of this Agreement. 

viii. "Confidential Information" means any information 
disclosed by or on behalf of the Disclosing Party) to the Receiving 
Party that should reasonably be considered as confidentia I given the 
nature of the information and the circumstances surrounding its 
disclosure. 

ix. "Customer Care" means Customer support operations 
delivered by RingCentral and/or its subcontractors. 

x. "Customer Content" means the content of calls, facsimiles, 
SMS messages, voice mails, voice recordings, shared files, conferences 
or other communications transmitted or stored through the Services. 

xi. "Digital Line" means a phone number assigned to an End 
User or a specifically designated location (e.g., conference room) and 
the associated voice service for inbound and outbound calling that 
permits an End User generally to make and receive calls to and from 
the public switched telephone network as well as to and from other 
extensions within the same Account. 

xii. "Disclosing Party" means the Party disclosing Confidential 
Information or on whose behalf Confidential Information is disclosed 
by such Party's agents, including but not limited to, its Affiliates, 
officers, directors, employees and attorneys. 

x111. "Dispute" has the meaning set forth in Section 13(A) (Good 
Faith Attempt to Settle Disputes). 

MSA USA 20200914 

xiv. "Electronic Signatures" means an electronic sound, symbol, 
or process, including clicking a digital button to accept, attached to or 
logically associated with a contract or other record and executed or 
adopted by a person with the intent to sign the record. 

xv. "End Point" means an application or device through which 
any End-User might access and/or use any of the Services, including 
without limitation IP Desk Phones, Desktop Clients, Web Clients, 
Mobile Applications, and Software Integrations. 

xvi. "End User" means an individual user to whom Customer 
makes the Services available, and may be a natural person, and may 
include but is not limited to Customer's employees, consultants, 
clients, external users, invitees, contractors and agents. 

xvii. "Helpdesk Support" shall mean the performance of the 
following tasks: 

• Standard feature/functionality ("how to") support for 
End Users (i.e. call forwarding, voice mail set-up, etc.); 

• Standard management of the Adm in Interface within the 
product; and 

• Support all moves, adds, changes and deletes of 
employees. 

xv111. "lndemnifiable Amounts" means all (X) damages and other 
amounts awarded against the Indemnified Party by a court of 
competent jurisdiction pursuant to a final judgment or a final award 
of an arbitral body in connection with such Third-Party Claim; (Y) any 
amounts payable by the Indemnified Party or its Affiliates pursuant 
to a binding, written agreement settling the Third Party Claim, 
provided such agreement is approved in advance in writing by the 
Indemnifying Party; and (Z) all reasonable costs and expenses paid to 
third parties by the Indemnified Party or its Affiliates in connection 
with the Indemnified Party's or its Affiliates' attorneys' fees and 
related expenses. 

xix. "Indemnifying Party" and "Indemnified Party" have the 
meanings set forth in Section ll(C) (Defense and Indemnification 
Procedures). 

xx. "Initial Term" has the meaning set forth in Section 2(D) 
(Services Term). 

xxi. "Intellectual Property Rights" or "IP Rights" means all 
common law and statutory rights (whether registered or 
unregistered, or recorded or unrecorded, regardless of method) 
arising out of or associated with: (a) patents and patent applications, 
inventions, industrial designs, discoveries, business methods, and 
processes; (b) copyrights and copyright registrations, and "moral" 
rights; (c) the protection of trade and industrial secrets and 
Confidential Information; (d) other proprietary rights relating to 
intangible property; (e) trademarks, trade names and service marks; 
(f) a person's name, likeness, voice, photograph or signature, 
including without limitation rights of personality, privacy, and 
publicity; (g) analogous rights to those set forth above; and (h) 
divisions, continuations, continuations-in-part, renewals, reissuances 
and extensions of the foregoing (as applicable). 

xxii. "Law" means any law, statute, regulation, rule, ordinance, 
administrative guidance, treaty or convention, or court or 
administrative order or ruling of any governing Federal, State, local or 
non-U.S. governmental body with jurisdiction over the Services. 

Page 7 of 17 



xxIII. "Order Form{s)" means a request for Service describing the 
type and quantity of Services required by Customer and submitted 
and accepted by the Parties in accordance with Section 2(A) (Ordering 

Services). The Order Form may be presented and executed via the 
Administrative Portal. 

xxiv. "Receiving Party" means the Party or its agents, including, 

but not limited to its Affiliates, officers, directors, employees and 
attorneys receiving Confidential Information. 

xxv. "Renewal Term" has the meaning set forth in Section 2(E) 
(Services Term). 

xxvi. "RingCentral Network" means the network and supporting 

facilities between and among the RingCentral points of presence 
("PoP(s)"), up to and including the interconnection point between the 
RingCentral's network and facilities, and the public Internet, private 

IP networks, and the Public Switched Telephone Network (PSTN). The 
RingCentral Network does not include the public Internet, a 
Customer's own private network, or the PSTN. 

xxvii. "Service(s)" means all services provided under this 
Agreement and set forth in one or more Order Form(s). 

xxviii. "Start Date" means the date so identified in the relevant 
Order Form or the date on which Customer orders Services via the 
Administrative Portal. 

xxix. "Taxes" means any and all federal, state, local, municipal, 

foreign and other taxes and fees charged or collected from 
Customers, including but not limited to any Universal Service Fund, 

TRS and 911 taxes and fees. 

xxx. "Term" means the Initial Term plus any Renewal Terms. 
xxxi. "Third Party Claim" has the meaning set forth in Section 

ll(A) (Indemnification by RingCentral). 

MSA USA 20200914 

xxxii. "Use Policy" refers to any of the policies identified in 
Section 5(8) (Use Policies). 

Page 8 of 17 



SERVICE ATTACHMENT A 

SERVICE ATTACHMENT- RINGCENTRAL OFFICE SERVICES 

This Service Attachment is a part of the Master Services Agreement (the "Agreement") that includes the terms and conditions agreed by the Parties 
under which RingCentral will provide to the Customer the RingCentral Office Services as described under the applicable Order Form. 

1. Service Overview. RingCentral Office is a cloud-based 
unified communications service that includes enterprise-class voice, 
fax, text, call handling, mobile apps, and BYOD capability that 
integrates with a growing list of applications. RingCentral Office 
includes: 

• Voice Services, including extension-to-extension calling and the 
ability to make and receive calls to and from the public switched 
telephone network (PSTN) 

• Video and audio-conferencing service, including screen sharing 
• Collaboration Tools, including One-to-One and Team Chat, File 

Sharing, task management, SMS/Texting (where available) and 
other innovative tools 

RingCentral Office Services may be accessed from a variety of user 
End Points, including IP Desk Phones, Desktop Clients, Web Clients, 
Mobile Applications, and Software Integrations. 

2. Office Purchase Plans. 
A. Tiers of Service. RingCentral Office is made available in 

several pricing tiers, which are described more fully at 
https://www.ringcentral.com/office/plansandpricing.html. While 
RingCentral offers unlimited monthly plans for some of its products 
and services, RingCentral Services are intended for regular business 
use. "Unlimited" use does not permit any use otherwise prohibited by 
the Acceptable Use Policy, available at 
https: //www. ri ngcentra I. com/lega I/ acce pta bl e-use-po I icy. htm I, 
including trunking, access stimulation, reselling of the Services, etc. 

B. Minute and Calling Credit Bundles. Minute Bundles, e.g., 
Toll Free Minute Bundles, can be purchased in incremental buckets of 
minute in addition to any number of minutes included with the 
purchased tier. Inbound Toll-Free minutes are deducted from 
included minutes, purchased Minute Bundles, or charged as overage 
at the rates currently in effect. 

International Calling Credit Bundles can be purchased in addition to 
any base amount included with the purchased tier. International 
External Calls are charged against Calling Credits on the Account per 
destination rates, or as overage once Calling Credits are exceeded. 
Currently effective rates are available at 
https://www. ri ngce ntra I. com/ s u pport/i nte rn ationa 1-r ates. htm I. 

Extension-to-Extension Calls within the Customer account never incur 
any usage fee and are unlimited, except to the extent that such calls 
are forwarded to another number that is not on the Customer 
account. Additional Calling Credits may be purchased through 
the Auto-Purchase feature, which can be selected for automatic 
purchase in various increments on the Administrative Portal. Auto
Purchase is triggered when the combined usage of all End Users on 
an Account exceeds the total Calling Credits or when End Users make 
calls with additional fees (e.g., 411). Minute Bundles and Calling 
Credit Bundles expire at the end of month and cannot roll over to the 
following month. Auto-Purchased Calling Credits expire twelve (12) 
months from date of purchase. Bundles may not be sold, transferred, 
assigned, or applied to any other customer. 

MSA USA 20200914 

3. Operator Assisted Calling, 311, S11 and other Nll Calling. 
RingCentral does not support O+ or operator assisted calling 
(including, without limitation, collect calls, third party billing calls, 
900, or calling card calls). The Services may not support 211,311,411, 
511 and/or Nll calling in one or more service areas. Additional 
charges may apply for these calls. 

4. Directory Listing Service. RingCentral offers directory 
listing (the "Directory Listing Service"). If Customer subscribes to the 
Directory Listing Service, RingCentral will share certain Customer 
Contact Data with third parties as reasonably necessary to include in 
the phone directory ("Listing Information"). This information may 
include, but is not limited to, Customer's company name, address, 
and phone numbers. Customer authorizes RingCentral to use and 
disclose the Listing Information for the purpose of publishing in, and 
making publicly available through, third-party directory listing 
services, to be selected by RingCentral or third-party service providers 
in their sole discretion. Customer acknowledges and agrees that by 
subscribing to the Directory Listing Service, Customer's Listing 
Information may enter the public domain and that RingCentral cannot 
control third parties' use of such information obtained through the 
Directory Listing Service. 

i. Opt Out. Customer may opt out of the Directory Listing Service at any 
time; however, RingCentral is not obligated to have Customer's 
Listing Information removed from third-party directory assistance 
listing services that have already received Customer's information. 

ii. No Liability. RingCentral will have no responsibility or liability for any 
cost, damages, liabilities, or inconvenience caused by calls made to 
Customer's telephone number; materials sent to Customer, 
inaccuracies, errors or omissions with Listing Information; or any 
other use of such information. RingCentral will not be liable to 
Customer for any use by third parties of Customer's Listing 
Information obtained through the Directory Listing Service, including 
without limitation the use of such information after Customer has 
opted out of the Directory Listing Service. 

5. RingCentral Global Office. RingCentral Global 
Office provides a single communications system to companies that 
have offices around the world, offering localized service in countries 
for which Global Office is available. Additional information related to 
Global Office Services is available at 
http://www. ri ngcentra I. com/legal/po licies/glo ba 1-office-
cou ntries. htm I. Th is section sets forth additional terms and conditions 
concerning RingCentral's Global Office for customers that subscribe 
to it. 

A. Emergency Service Limitations for Global Office. 
RingCentral provides access to Emergency Calling Services in many, 
but not all, countries in which RingCentral Global Office is available, 
allowing End Users in most countries to access Emergency Services 
(911 in the United States and Canada, 999/112 in the United Kingdom 
and throughout the European Union, and any other applicable 
Emergency Services number). Emergency Services may only be 
accessed within the country in which the Digital Line is assigned, e.g., 
an End User with a Digital Line assigned in Ireland may dial Emergency 
Services only within Ireland. Access to Emergency Calling Services in 

Page 9 of 17 



RingCentral Global Office countries, where available, is subject to the 
Emergency Services Policy, available at 
https ://www. ri ngce ntra I. com/I ega I/ em ergency-se rvi ces. htrn I. 
Customer must make available and will maintain at all times 
traditional landline and/or mobile network telephone services that 
will enable End Users to call the applicable Emergency Services 
number. Customer may not use the RingCentral Services in 
environments requiring fail-safe performance or in which the failure 
of the RingCentral Services could lead directly to death, personal 
injury, or severe physical or environmental damage. 

B. Global Office Provided Only in Connection with Home 
Country Service. RingCentral provides Global Office Service only in 
connection with Services purchased in the Home Country. 
RingCentral may immediately suspend or terminate Customer's 
Global Office Services if Customer terminates its Digital Lines in the 
Home Country. All invoicing for the Global Office Services will be 
done in the Home Country on the Customer's Account, together with 
other Services purchased under this Agreement, using the Home 
Country's currency. Customer must at all times provide a billing 
address located in the Home Country. RingCentral will provide all 
documentation, licenses, and services in connection with the Global 
Office Service in English; additional language support may be 
provided at RingCentral's sole discretion. 

C. Relationships with Local Providers. In connection with the 
provision of RingCentral Global Office Services, RingCentral relies on 
local providers to supply certain regulated communication services; 
for example (i) for the provision of local telephone numbers within 
local jurisdictions; (ii) to enable you to place local calls within local 
jurisdictions; and (iii) to enable You to receive calls from non
RingCentral numbers on Customer's Global Office telephone 
number(s), by connecting with the local public switched telephone 

MSA USA 20200914 

network. RingCentral's locally licensed affiliates provide all 
telecommunications services offered to Customer within the 
countries in which such affiliates are licensed; in some cases, 
RingCentral may obtain services from locally licensed providers on 
Customer's behalf. RingCentral, Inc., is responsible for all contracting, 
billing, and customer care related to those services. 

6. Definitions. Terms used herein but not otherwise defined 
have the meanings ascribed to them in the Agreement. For purposes 
of this Service Attachment, the following terms have the meanings set 
forth below: 

A. "Digital Line" means a phone number assigned to an End 
User or a specifically designated location (e.g., conference room) and 
the associated voice service for inbound and outbound calling that 
permits the End User generally to make and receive calls to and from 
the public switched telephone network as well as to and from other 
extensions within the same Account. 

B. "End Point" means an application or device through which 
any End-User might access and/or use any of the Services, including 
without limitation IP Desk Phones, Desktop Clients, Web Clients, 
Mobile Applications, and Software Integrations. 

C. "Extension-to-Extension Calls" means calls made and 
received between End Points on the Customer Account with 
RingCentral, regardless of whether the calls are domestic or 
internationa I. 

D. "External Calls" means calls made to or received from 
external numbers on the PSTN that are not on the Customer Account 
with RingCentral. 

E. "Home Country" means the United States or the country 
that is otherwise designated as Customer's primary or home country 
in the Order Form. 

Page 10 of 17 



SERVICE ATTACHMENT B 

SERVICE ATTACHMENT- RINGCENTRAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Service Attachment is a part of the Master Services Agreement (the "Agreement") that includes the terms and conditions agreed by the 
Parties under which RingCentral will provide the RingCentral Professional Services to Customer. 

In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the Agreement and the provisions of this Professional Services Agreement (the "PS 
Agreement"), such provisions of this PS Agreement will prevail. 

1. Service Overview. RingCentral shall provide the implementation, 
installation, consulting, configuration services and other professional 
services ("Professional Services") as described and agreed upon in 
writing between the Parties pursuant to a statement of work 
("Statement of Work" or "SOW"). 

2. Project Phases. The Professional Services may be delivered in one 
or more phases. The SOW will specify the milestone, objectives, Sites, 
fees and other components that are included in the scope of each 
phase ("Project Phase"). The Professional Services may also be 
provided on a time and material basis ("T&M Services") paid by the 
hour based on the then current T&M Services hourly rate offered by 
RingCentral, as specified in the relevant SOW. Customer agrees that 
the delivery, installation, testing, acceptance and payment for the 
Professional Services rendered under any one Project Phase is not 
dependent on the delivery, installation, testing, acceptance and 
payment for the Professional Services under any other Project Phase. 
Each Project Phase will be billed upon Acceptance, and payment for 
each Project Phase is due in full within the applicable payment period 
agreed between the parties and is non-refundable. 

3. Customer Sites and Site Visits. In the event the Parties agree that 
the Professional Services must be performed at one or more 
Customer facility(ies) ("Site(s)"), the Site(s) will be separately 
identified in the applicable SOW. Each visit to a separate Customer 
Site will be considered a separate "Site Visit". When so stipulated in 
the SOW, each Site may constitute a Project Phase. Customer has the 
following obligations with respect to all Site Visits: 
a. Customer will maintain and ensure safe working conditions at 

each Site and shall promptly inform the RingCentral project 
manager of any known hazardous conditions at any Site prior to 
any visit by RingCentral Personnel. 

b. Customer shall ensure that all Site hardware and network 
environment meets or exceed the requirements set forth in the 
Statement of Work and in "RingCentral VoIP Network 
Requirements and Recommendations" which can found at: 
https: // support. ri ngce ntra I. com/ s/ a rticle/9 23 3 ?I a nguage=e n U 

~ 
c. Customer shall provide RingCentral with all reasonable 

information, cooperation, and assistance that RingCentral 
requests in connection with performing the Services, including 
without limitation providing RingCentral with access to 
Customer's systems and networks and related system and 
network administrators. Any failure on the part of Customer to 
provide the cooperation requested by RingCentral, or to provide 
the information or hardware and software environment 
required, may result in the need for a Change Order to 
contemplate additional fees and extended timelines to 
accommodate Customer's failure to do so. 

d. Customer shall ensure that at least ten (10) business days prior 
to a Site Visit or as otherwise agreed in the applicable SOW, the 
Customer Project Manager shall provide to the RingCentral 
Project Manager the following information for the Site to be 
visited: 

MSA USA 20200914 

i. the first and last name, extension number, and email 
address for delivery of message notification emails of each 
End User for which the Services are to be implemented at 
the Site and any other information that RingCentral 
requests to configure the digital lines that are part of such 
Services to be implemented (this information needs to be 
in the form of a Microsoft Excel file suitable for use with the 
Plan Service's bulk configuration utility); 

ii. written or illustrated diagrams of Customer's current and 
proposed dial plans and data and call flows; and 

iii. information related to configurations, equipment, and 
deployment requirements for the Site, as requested by 
RingCentral. 

4. Late Site Visit Change. The Parties acknowledge and agree that 
Customer's cancellation or change of the dates of a Site Visit at any 
time during the ten (10) business days immediately prior to the date 
that the Site Visit is scheduled to take place (a "Late Site Visit 
Change") will cause RingCentral to incur expenses and losses 
(including without limitation RingCentral's costs in rescheduling the 
Site Visit and/or loss of opportunity for other business during the 
period during which such Site Visit was to take place). Accordingly, 
Customer agrees that for each Late Site Visit Change, Customer shall 
incur (at the time of cancellation or change) and be liable for, as 
liquidated damages, an amount equal to eight (8) hours of 
RingCentral T&M Services at RingCentral's then-currentT&M Services 
hourly rate, as well as any Service Expenses that have already been 
expended by RingCentral. The Parties acknowledge and agree that 
this amount is a fair, reasonable, and appropriate pre-estimate of the 
losses that RingCentral will incur as a result of any single Late Site Visit 
Change. 

5. Professional Services Acceptance. Each SOW will identify the 
specific criteria required for the completion of each Project Phase 
("Completion Criteria"). Unless otherwise agreed between the 
parties in the SOW, upon RingCentral's completion of the Professional 
Services for each Project Phase, RingCentral will review the 
Completion Criteria with Customer and will present to the Customer 
the Professional Services Project Completion Signoff Form ("PCF") for 
that Project Phase. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
PS Agreement or any SOW, RingCentral's obligations under any 
Project Phase are deemed accepted and the Professional Services 
under such Project Phase shall be considered completed in full and 
billable upon any of the following ("Acceptance"): 
a. Customer executes the PCF. 
b. If RingCentral presents Customer with the PCF and the Customer 

fails to execute the PCF within three (3) days, unless the 
Customer provides to RingCentral, within those three (3) days, 
with a detailed description of the items that are outstanding or 
that are materially non- conforming with the Completion Criteria 
applicable to the specific Project Phase. If RingCentral timely 
receives a rejection notice, then RingCentral will complete or re
perform any portion of the non-conforming Professional 
Services and re-submit the PCF for the Project Phase to the 

Page 11 of 17 



Customer for Acceptance as described above. If RingCentral 
timely receives from the Customer a second rejection notice, 
and RingCentral, in its reasonable discretion determines that the 
Professional Services for the Project Phase were properly 
completed in accordance with the Completion Criteria, 
acceptance of the Project Phase will be deemed to have been 
occurred. 

c. Production Use: Unless otherwise agreed in writing between the 
parties, production use will constitute Acceptance for all 
purposes of this PS Agreement. 

d. T&M Services. Acceptance for T&M Services, if applicable and 
used in a SOW, is deemed to have occurred upon performance. 

6. Payment 
a. The SOW will set forth the fees that the Customer will pay to 

RingCentral for each Project Phase, and the rates for T&M 
Services. Customer will compensate RingCentral fees and 
expenses for the Services as set forth in the applicable SOW. 
Customer acknowledges and agrees that all fees and charges 
shall be due and payable without any deduction, withholding, or 
offset of any kind, including without limitation for any levy or tax. 

b. Invoicing and Payment of Professional Services fees. Except to 
the extent otherwise provided in a SOW or this Section, all 
amounts due under this PS Agreement for Professional Services 
other than T&M Services, shall be invoiced upon Acceptance of 
each Project Phase. T&M Services will be invoiced Monthly in 
arrears. The payment term for each invoice is set forth in the 
Agreement. 

c. Service E><penses. In addition to the fees and expenses set forth 
in the applicable SOW, Customer agrees to reimburse 
RingCentral for its fixed travel, meal, and lodging expenses 
incurred in connection with any Site Visit ("Service Expenses"). 
Travel, meal, and lodging expenses shall be invoiced upon 
Acceptance of each Project phase, alongside all other amounts 
due under this PS Agreement, on a per-trip/per resource basis. 
RingCentral shall, after Customer request, provide information 
verifying the deployment of on-site resources and expenditure 
of Service Expenses. 

d. Additional Fees. Customer agrees to incur and be liable for any 
additional fees or other amounts not provided for in this PS 
Agreement or the applicable SOW. These Additional fees may 
include, but are not limited to the following: 

i. For any additional Site Visit(s) not included in the SOW, the 
Customer agrees to pay on a T&M Services basis, with a 
minimum fee equal to eight (8) hours of RingCentral per day 
at the then-current T&M Services hourly rate. 

7. Changes to sows 
Changes to any applicable SOW shall be made only in a mutually 
executed written change order between RingCentral and Customer (a 

MSA USA 20200914 

"Change Order"), outlining the requested change and the effect of 
such change on the Services, including without limitation the fees and 
the timeline as determined by RingCentral in its reasonable 
discretion. RingCentral shall have no obligation to commence work in 
connection with any Change Order until the Change Order is agreed 
upon by both Parties in writing. RingCentral has no obligation to 
provide any Professional Services outside the scope of an SOW. 

8. Enterprise Support 
As part of the Professional Services provided, Customer may purchase 
Enterprise Support services from RingCentral for use with the 
Services. The terms and conditions that govern the Enterprise 
Support can be found at: 
https://www. ring centra I. com/lega I/ ente rpri se-se rvi ce-
attach m ent. htm I. 

9. Term and Termination 
a. Term. This PS Agreement shall remain in effect for as long as the 

Agreement is in effect, unless terminated in accordance with this 
Section. 

b. Termination. Either Party may terminate this PS Agreement, in 
whole or in part, with thirty (30) days' advance written notice to 
the other Party. Unless otherwise specified in the termination 
notice, the termination of one SOW or Project Phase shall not 
necessarily result in the termination of, or otherwise affect, any 
other SOW or Project Phase. 

c. Effect of Termination. In the event that this PS Agreement, a 
SOW, or a Project Phase is terminated, in whole or in part, for 
any reason other than for RingCentral's material breach of this 
PS Agreement, Customer shall be obligated to pay RingCentral 
for: 

i. any Professional Services and T&M Services that have been 
rendered up until the effective date of the termination; 

ii. all applicable Service Expenses incurred; and 
iii. (SO%) of the fees for any other Professional Services not yet 

performed, due under the Project Phase(s) being cancelled, 
if termination of the PS Agreement, SOW, or a Project Phase 
occurs within one hundred and eighty (180) days of 
execution of the applicable SOW. If termination occurs after 
one hundred and eighty (180) days of execution of the 
applicable SOW, Customer shall owe all outstanding fees for 
any Professional Services not yet performed pursuant to 
the SOW, due under the Project Phase being cancelled. 

d. Post-Termination Notice Wrap-Up. Upon receiving or providing 
notice of termination of this PS Agreement, RingCentral shall be 
relieved of and excused from any obligation to continue to 
perform Services or to perform under any then-current sows or 
Project Phase. 

Page12of17 



ATTACHMENT C 

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR RINGCENTRAL OFFICE SERVICES 

This Service Level Agreement for Office Services (the "Office SLA") is a part of the Master Services Agreement (the "Agreement") that includes the 
Service Availability levels RingCentral commits to deliver on the RingCentral Network for RingCentral Office Services. 

1. Overview 

RingCentral will maintain the following performance levels: 

Voice Services Availability 
(Monthly Calculation) 

Quality of Voice Service 
(Monthly Calculation) 

2. Minimum Eligibility 

99.999% 

3.8 MOS Score 

Customer is entitled to the benefits of this Office SLA only to the 
extent that Customer maintains a minimum of fifty (50) Digital Lines 
under the Office Service Attachment with a minimum twelve (12) 
month Term. This Office SLA shall not apply to any period of time 
where Customer does not meet the foregoing requirements. 

3. Service Delivery Commitments 

a. Calculation of Service Availability for Voice Services 

Service Availability = [ 1 - ((number of minutes of Down Time x 
number of Impacted Users) / (total number users x total number of 
minutes in a calendar month))] x 100 

Availability shall be rounded to nearest thousandth of a percent in 
determining the applicable credit. Service Credits for Down Time will 
not exceed 30% MRC. 

b. Calculation of Service Credits 

Customer is entitled to the Accelerated Service Credits calculated 
based on the table below: 

b.1 Accelerated Service Credit Table 

:?: 99.999 % 0¾MRC 

:?: 99,500 and< 99.999% 5%MRC 

:?: 99,000 and< 99.500% 10% MRC 

:?: 95.000 and< 99.000% 20% MRC 

< 95.000% 30% MRC 

c. No Cumulative Credits 

MSA USA 20200914 

Where a single incident of Down Time affects Office Services and any 
other Services provided by RingCentral and covered under a separate 
service level agreement executed between the parties, resulting in 
Service Credits under both agreements, Customer is entitled to claim 
Service Credits under one of the agreements, but not for both. 

Service Credits to be paid under this Office SLA will be calculated 
based Customer's RingCentral Office MRC only and will not include 
any other fees paid by RingCentral for any other Services, (e.g., 
Contact Center Services). Service Credits may not exceed the total 
MRC paid for the relevant Services. 

d. Qualifying for Service Credits. 
Service Credits for Down Time will accrue only to the extent: 

i. Down Time exceeds 1 minute; 
ii. Customer reports the occurrence of Down Time to 

RingCentral by opening a Support Case within twenty
four (24) hours of the conclusion of the applicable Down 
Time period; 

iii. RingCentral confirms that the Down Time was the result 
of an outage or fault on the RingCentral Network; and 

iv. Customer is not in material breach of the Agreement, 
including its payment obligations. 

v. Customer must submit a written request for Service 
Credits to Customer Care within thirty (30) days of the 
date the Support Case was opened by Customer, 
including a short explanation of the credit claimed and 
the number of the corresponding Support Case; 

4. Quality of Service Commitments 

a. Quality of Service Targets, RingCentral will maintain an 
average MOS score of 3.8 over each calendar month for 
Customer Sites in the Territory, except to the extent that 
Customer endpoints connect via public WiFi, a low 
bandwidth mobile data connection (3G or lower), or 
Customer uses of narrowband codecs such as G.729. 

b. Quality of Service Report: Customer may request a Quality 
of Service Report for the preceding calendar month by 
submitting a Support Case. RingCentral will endeavor to 
provide the Quality of Service Report within five (5) 
business days. 

c, Diagnostic Investigation: If the Quality of Service Report 
shows a failure to meet the target 3.8 average MOS as 
calculated under this Section, RingCentral will use industry
standard diagnostic techniques to investigate the cause of 
the failure. Customer shall cooperate with RingCentral in 
this investigation fully and in good faith. 

d. Diagnostic Remediation. Based on its investigation, 
RingCentral will provide a reasonable determination of the 
root cause(s) of any failure for the quality of service to meet 
the target MOS of 3.8. RingCentral will resolve any root 
cause(s) on the RingCentral Network; Customer shall timely 
implement settings or other resolution advised by 
RingCentral to improve the quality of service. 

Page13of17 



S. Chronic Service Failures 
a. Service Availability: Customer may terminate the 

Agreement without penalty, and will receive a pro-rata 
refund of all prepaid, unused fees in the following 
circumstances if RingCentral fails to meet a Service 
Availability of at least 99.9% on the RingCentral Network for 
Voice Services during any three (3) calendar Months in any 
continuous 6-Month period, and customer has timely 
reported Down Time as set forth herein. 

b. Quality of Service: Customer may terminate the affected 
Customers Sites under its Agreement without penalty, and 
will receive a pro-rata refund of all prepaid, unused fees in 
the following circumstances if RingCentral fails to meet a 
minimum 3.5 MOS, as measured in duly requested Quality 
of Service Reports, for the affected Customer Sites within 
four (4) months of the date of Customer's initial Support 
Case requesting a Quality of Service Report, except that 
such right inures only to the extent that Customer has 
complied fully and in good faith with the cooperation 
requirements and timely implemented all suggestions from 
RingCentral, in RingCentral's sole reasonable judgment. 

c. To exercise its termination right under this Office SLA, 
Customer must deliver written notice of termination to 
RingCentral no later than ten (10) business days after its 
right to terminate under this Section accrues. 

6. Sole Remedy 
The remedies available pursuant to this Office SLA (i.e. the issuance 
of credits and termination for chronic service failure) shall be 
Customer's sole remedy for any failure to meet committed services 
levels under this Office SLA. 

7. Definitions 
Terms used herein but not otherwise defined have the meanings 
ascribed to them in the Agreement. For purposes of this Service Level 
Agreement, the following terms have the meanings set forth below: 

a) "Down Time" is an unscheduled period during which the 
Voice Services for RingCentral Office on the RingCentral 
Network are interrupted and not usable, except that Down 
Time does not include unavailability or interruptions due to 
(1) acts or omissions of Customer; (2) an event of a Force 
Majeure; or (3) Customer's breach of the Agreement. Down 
Time begins to accrue after one (1) minute of unavailability, 
per incident. 

b) "Impacted User'' means a user with a Digital Line affected 
by Down Time. In the event that due to the nature of the 
incident it is not possible for RingCentral to identify the 
exact number of users with a Digital Line affected by Down 
Time, RingCentral will calculate the Impacted Users on a 
User-Equivalency basis as defined below. 

c) "MOS" means the Mean Opinion Score, determined 
according to the ITU-T E-model, as approved in June 2015, 
rounding to the nearest tenth of a percent. MOS provides 
a prediction of the expected voice quality, as perceived by 
a typical telephone user, for an end-to-end (i.e. mouth-to-

MSA USA 20200914 

ear) telephone connection under conversational 
conditions. MOS is measured by RingCentral using network 
parameters between the Customer endpoint, e.g., the IP 
Phone or Softphone, and the RingCentral Network, and will 
accurately reflect quality of the call to the caller using the 
Voice Services. 

d) "MRC" means the monthly recurring subscription charges 
(excluding taxes, administrative or government mandated 
fees, metered billings, etc.) owed by Customer to 
RingCentral for Office Services for the relevant month. If 
customer is billed other than on a monthly basis, MRC 
refers to the pro-rata portion of the recurring subscription 
charges for the relevant calendar month. MRC does not 
include one-time charges such as phone equipment costs, 
set-up fees, and similar amounts, nor does it include any 
charges or fees for services other than Office Services. 

e) "Quality of Service Report" means a technical report 
provided by RingCentral, detailing MOS and related 
technical information. 

f) "RingCentral Network" means the network and supporting 
facilities between and among the RingCentral points of 
presence ("PoP(s)"), up to and including the 
interconnection point between the RingCentral's network 
and facilities, and the public Internet, and the PSTN. The 
RingCentral Network does not include the public Internet, 
or the Public Switched Telephone Network (PSTN). 

g) "Service Availability" is the time for which Voice Services 
for RingCentral Office are available on the RingCentral 
Network, expressed as a percentage of the total time in the 
relevant calendar month, and calculated as set forth above. 

h) "Service Credits" means the amount that RingCentral will 
credit a Customer's account pursuant to this Office SLA. 

i) "Site" means a physical location in the Territory at which 
Customer deploys and regularly uses at least five (5) 
RingCentral Digital Lines. A Digital Line used outside such 
physical location for a majority of days in the relevant 
calendar month, such as home offices, virtual offices, or 
other remote use, will not be included in the line count for 
this purpose. 

j) "Support Case" means an inquiry or incident reported by 
the Customer, through its Helpdesk Support, to Customer 
Care via the designated Customer Care portal. 

k) "Territory" means those countries in which Customers 
subscribes to RingCentral Office or Global Office Services. 

I) "User-Eguivalency" means the calculation made by 
RingCentral to estimate the percentage of the Voice 
Services impacted by the Down Time. RingCentral may use 
number of calls, network, device information, vendor and 
customer reports, and its own technical expertise to make 
these calculations. 

m) "Voice Services" means the audio portion of the Services, 
across endpoints, including the Softphone, and IP desk 
phone. 

Page 14 of 17 



ATTACHMENT D 

RINGCENTRAL BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

RingCentral, Inc. and Customer (each a "Party" and collectively the "Parties") hereby agree to the following terms and conditions of 

this Business Associate Agreement (this 11BAA11
) 1 which is attached to the RingCentral Master Service Agreement (the "Agreement") and is 

effective as of the execution date of this BAA (the "BAA Effective Date"). 

RECITALS 

Whereas, Customer has, pursuant to the Agreement, purchased one or more services covered by this BAA listed in Annex A (the 
"Services"); 

Whereas, Customer desires to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (11HIPAA11
) 1 as amended, 

along with applicable provisions of the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (the "Privacy Rule") and 

applicable provisions of the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health Information ("Security Rule") (collectively 
the "HIPAA Rules") and, in compliance with the HIPAA Rules, Customer desires to safeguard Customer's PHI created, transmitted, received, 

or maintained by Customer using the Customer's Account ("Account"); 

Whereas, as a business associate (as that term is defined in the HIPAA Rules) RingCentral wishes to accommodate Customer's desire 
to safeguard PHI that Customer creates, receives, transmits, or maintains using the RingCentral Services, by entering into this BAA, which 
meets the requirements of 45 C.F.R. §§ 164.314(a) and 164.504(e); 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and representations, and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Obligations of RingCentral. RingCentral agrees: 

a) subject to the provisions of Section 2, to use and disclose 

Customer's PHI only in connection with the provision of 
the Services purchased by Customer as part of or related 

to Customer's Account(s), as required by law, or for any 

other purpose permitted by the Agreement, or this BAA, 
provided that RingCentral may not use or disclose 

Customer's PHI in a manner that would violate the 
requirements of subpart E of 45 C.F.R. Part 164 if done by 

Customer; 

b) not to use or further disclose Customer's PHI other than as 
permitted or required by this BAA, or as required by law; 

c) where required by the HIPAA Rules, to make reasonable 
efforts to use, disclose, and request only the minimum 

necessary amount of PHI; 

d) to use appropriate safeguards and comply, where 

applicable, with subpart C of 45 C.F.R. Part 164 with 
respect to the protection of Electronic PHI, to prevent use 

or disclosure of Customer's PHI other than as provided for 

by this BAA; 

e) to report to Customer any use or disclosure of Customer's 
PHI not provided for by this BAA of which RingCentral 

becomes aware, including any breach of unsecured PHI as 
required by 45 C.F.R. § 164.410, and any security incident 
involving Customer's PHI of which RingCentral becomes 

aware; provided, however, that notwithstanding the 

MSA USA 20200914 

foregoing, the Parties agree that this BAA serves as 

notification, and that no further notification is required, of 
the ongoing existence of Unsuccessful Security Incidents. 
For purposes of this BAA, an "Unsuccessful Security 
Incident" includes, without limitation, activity such as 

pings and other broadcast attacks on RingCentral's 
firewall, port scans, unsuccessful log-on attempts, denials 
of service, and any combination of the above, so long as 

such activity does not result in unauthorized access, use, 
acquisition, or disclosure of Customer's PHI; 

f) to ensure that any subcontractor that creates, receives, 
maintains or transmits Customer's PHI on behalf of 
RingCentral agrees to substantially the same restrictions 

and conditions that apply to RingCentral with respect to 
such PHI, as required by the HIPAA Rules; 

g) to the extent that RingCentral has been delegated under 
the Agreement and is to carry out an obligation of 

Customer under Subpart E of 45 C.F.R. Part 164, 

RingCentral will comply with the requirement(s) of Subpart 
E of 45 C.F.R. Part 164 that apply to Customer in the 
performance of such delegated obligation; 

h) to the extent that: (i) Customer provides advanced written 
notice to RingCentral that RingCentral will maintain PHI in 

a "Designated Record Set" as defined in the HIPAA Rules 
(and with the understanding that the Parties do not intend 
for RingCentral to maintain PHI in a Designated Record 

Set); and (ii) the Designated Record Set (if any) maintained 

Page 15 of 17 



by RingCentral is not duplicative of records maintained by 
Customer; RingCentral agrees to: 

a. upon receipt of a written request from 
Customer, make available to Customer to 
inspect and/or obtain a copy of Customer's PHI 

maintained by RingCentral in a Designated 

Record Set, as required under 45 C.F.R. § 

164.524, for so long as RingCentral maintains 

such PHI in a Designated Record Set; and 

b. upon receipt of a written request from 
Customer, provide such information to Customer 

for amendment and incorporate amendments to 
PHI maintained by RingCentral in a Designated 

Record Set as agreed to by Customer under 45 
C.F.R. § 164.526, for so long as RingCentral 
maintains such PHI in a Designated Record Set. 

i) to the extent no disclosure exceptions apply under 45 
C.F.R. § 164.528, to maintain and to make available to 

Customer the information required for Customer to 

provide an accounting of disclosures in accordance with 45 
C.F.R. § 164.528; 

j) in the event any individual delivers directly to RingCentral 
a request for an amendment to PHI, access to PHI, or an 

accounting of disclosures of PHI, to promptly forward such 

individual request to Customer; 

k) to make its intern a I practices, books, and records relating 
to the Use and Disclosure of Customer's PHI available to 
the Secretary (as defined in the HIPAA Rules) for purposes 

of determining Customer's compliance with 45 C.F.R Part 

164, Subpart E; and 

I) upon termination of this BAA for any reason, if feasible, to 
return or destroy all PHI received from Customer, or 
created or received by RingCentral on behalf of Customer, 

in connection with this BAA, to the extent it has not been 

already erased, returned or destroyed, and retain no 
copies thereof, or, if in RingCentral's opinion such return 

or destruction is not feasible, to extend the protections of 

this BAA to the PHI and limit further uses and disclosures 
to those purposes that make the return or destruction of 

the PHI infeasible. 

2. Permitted Uses and Disclosures of PHI. Notwithstanding the 

other provisions of this BAA, RingCentral is permitted to use or 
disclose Customer's PHI for its proper management and 

administration of RingCentral services or to carry out its legal 

responsibilities, provided that RingCentral may only disclose 
PHI for such purposes if: (i) the disclosure is required by law 
or (ii) RingCentral obtains reasonable assurances from the 

person to whom the PHI is disclosed that the information will 
remain confidential and will be used or further disclosed only 

as required by law or for the purpose for which it was 
disclosed to the person, and the person notifies RingCentral 

when the confidentiality of the PHI has been breached. 

3. Obligations of Customer. Customer will: 

a) as between the Parties, assume sole responsibility for 
obtaining any consent, authorization, or permission that 

may be required by the HIPAA Rules, or any other 

applicable laws or regulations prior to using the Services to 
create, receive, maintain, or transmit PHI, or otherwise 
provide PHI to RingCentral. Without limiting the foregoing, 

MSA USA 20200914 

in the event Customer transmits PHI via text message, or 
any other method of electronic transmission of PHI 

(including email or any attachment to email) as part of the 
Services, Customer agrees to notify the patient whose PHI 
is to be transmitted that such transmission is not secure 

and to obtain such individual's consent or authorization, 

consistent with applicable law, before transmitting any 
such PHI; 

b) use, disclose, request, and otherwise provide to 
RingCentral and RingCentral employees only the minimum 

amount of PHI necessary for RingCentral to provide 
Services; 

c) notify RingCentral, in writing, of any limitation(s) in 
Customer's notice of privacy practices that may affect 
RingCentral's Use or Disclosure of Customer's PHI; 

d) notify RingCentral, in writing, of any changes in, or 

revocation of, permission by an individual to use or 
disclose any of his or her PHI, to the extent that such 

changes may affect RingCentral's Use or Disclosure of 
Customer's PHI; 

e) notify RingCentral, in writing, of any restriction on the use 
or disclosure of PHI that Customer has agreed to in 

accordance with 45 C.F.R. §164.522, to the extent that 
such restriction may affect RingCentral's use or disclosure 
of Customer's PHI; and 

f) not request that RingCentral use or disclose Customer's 

PHI in a manner that would not be permissible under the 
HIPAA Rules if done by Customer. 

4. Effect of Limitations and Restrictions. The Parties agree that in 
the event RingCentral believes that any limitation(s) or 

restriction(s) on the use or disclosure of PHI disclosed by 
Customer pursuant to Section 3 may materially impair 

RingCentral's ability to provide Services or materially affect 
RingCentral's costs of providing Services, the Parties will 

promptly negotiate in good faith an amendment to Agreement 
that is necessary to adjust RingCentral's obligations and/or 

reflect RingCentral's increased costs. In the event such 
negotiations are unsuccessful, RingCentral may terminate this 

BAA and the Agreement without penalty or further obligation 
to RingCentral. 

5. Customer Integrations. 

a) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any 

agreement between the Parties, this BAA applies only to 
Services offered by RingCentral as described in Annex A. 

b) Pursuant to the limitations contained in the Agreement 

between the Parties and applicable RingCentral policies, 
Customer may choose to, at its own risk, use third party or 
Customer's own applications, services, devices, AP ls, or 
any other technology (whether utilized by Customer or a 
third party on behalf of Customer and whether 

implemented by RingCentral or not) which integrate with 
the Services or that transfer data to or from the Services 
("Customer Integrations"). 

c) Customer understands and agrees that Customer 
Integrations are outside the scope of the Parties' primary 

agreement and of this Business Associate Agreement. 

d) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any 

Page 16 of 17 



agreement between the Parties, RingCentral has no 
responsibility or liability for, and disclaims any warranties 
or representations relating to, any Customer Integrations. 

e) For the avoidance of doubt, RingCentral will have no 
obligations or liability for the privacy, security, 
confidentiality, availability, or integrity of any Customer 
Integrations, or any PHI or other data processed, handled, 
sent, stored, created, received, maintained, or transmitted 
in connection with any Customer Integrations or through 
any applications, services, devices, APls, or any other 
technology not provided within RingCentral Services. 

6. Term. The term of this BAA (the "BAA Term") commences on 
the BAA Effective Date and runs conterminously with the 
term of the Agreement, unless sooner terminated by either 
Party in accordance with Section 7. 

7, Termination. 

a) Automatic BAA Termination, Termination or expiration of 
the Agreement for any reason will result in the 
termination of this BAA. 

b) Direct BAA Termination. In the event that either Party 
violates a material term of this BAA, the other Party may 
terminate the BAA, provided that the non-breaching Party 
provides written notice to the breaching Party of such 
breach and provides the breaching Party with an 
opportunity to cure the breach or end the violation. If 
such violation is not cured within thirty (30) days, the non
breaching Party may terminate this BAA, In the event that 
the BAA is terminated pursuant to this section, either 
Party may terminate the Agreement. 

8. Miscellaneous. 

a) Definitions. All capitalized terms used herein but not 
otherwise defined have the meanings ascribed to them 
in the Agreement. Subject to the immediately foregoing 
sentence, any other terms that are not defined in this 
BAA or the Agreement but that are defined under the 
HIPAA Rules have the same meaning as defined under 
the HIPAA Rules. For purposes of this BAA, "PHI" means 
"protected health information" as that term is defined in 
the HIPAA Rules, limited to such information created, 
received, maintained, or transmitted by RingCentral for 
or on behalf of Customer. 

b) No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this BAA, express 
or implied, is intended to confer or will confer upon any 
person or entity other than the Parties any right, benefit, 
or remedy as a third party beneficiary or by any other 
nature whatsoever under or by reason of this BAA. 

c) Notices. All notices or other communications to be given 
under this BAA are deemed given when emailed. 

To Customer: The postal and email address on file at the 
time of notice for an Account 

To RingCentral: RingCentral, Inc. 

Attn.: Legal Department 
20 Davis Drive 
Belmont, California 94002 
HIPAA@ringcentral.com 

MSA USA 20200914 

d) Modification. No modification or amendment of this BAA 
will be effective unless set forth in a document 
specifically referencing this BAA that is executed by both 
Parties. 

e) Counterparts. This BAA may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, 
but all of which together will constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

f) Entire Agreement. RingCentral will be bound by the terms 
of this BAA only to the extent that: (i) Customer is a 
"Covered Entity" or "Business Associate" (as these terms 
are defined in the HIPAA Rules) pursuant to HIPAA; and (ii) 
RingCentral is acting as Customer's "Business Associate" 
(as that term is defined in the HIPAA Rules) pursuant to 
HIPAA. This BAA, together with the Agreement, states the 
entire understanding and agreement between the Parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes 
and replaces all prior and contemporaneous 
understandings or agreements, written or oral, regarding 
such subject matter. 

ANNEX A 

LIST OF RINGCENTRAL SERVICES COVERED BY THIS BAA 

If purchased, the following Services are covered by this BAA: 

• RingCentral Office 
• RingCentral Contact Center 
• RingCentral Video (RCV) 

Page 17 of 17 



co 
F 





#14 
IC TIO 

THE 



EXECUTIVE ORDER 
No. 2020-01 

TEMPORARY COVID-19 OUTDOOR DINING 
STANDARDS 

WHEREAS the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease easily spread from person to 
person presenting a public health concern that requires extraordinary protective measures and 
vigilance; 

WHEREAS the spread of COVID-19 has resulted in the State of Michigan declaring a State of 
Emergency under Section 1 of Article 5 of the Michigan Constitution of 1963, the Emergency 
Management Act, 197 6 PA 390, as amended, and the Emergency Powers of the Governor Act, 1945 
PA 302, as amended, as evidenced in Executive Order 2020-4 and Executive Order 2020-100; 

WHEREAS the City of Pontiac is committed to encouraging economic activity and assisting local 
businesses impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic to ease back into operation while containing the 
spread of COVID-19; pursuant to Executive Order 2020-97; and Executive Order 2020-110; 

WHEREAS the City of Pontiac seeks to assist and ensure that establishments permitted to open to 
the public have the ability to accommodate social distancing guidelines currently in force within the 
State of Michigan; and Executive Order 2020-110 allows restaurants and bars to reopen on June 8, 
2020, but Michigan Gov. Gretchen Whitmer has also signed Executive Order 2020-143, closing 
indoor service at bars whose revenues from alcohol sales exceed 70% throughout most of lower 
Michigan indefinitely; 

WHEREAS to stimulate the recovery of the restaurant business in the City and to support local 
restaurants, the enforcement of certain provisions of the City's ordinances regulating the serving of 
food and drink outdoors on private property and public sidewalks should be temporarily suspended, 
as set forth further herein. 

Therefore, pursuant to the authority granted to me by City Charter Section 4.101, The Mayor, which 
designates me as the Chief Executive Officer of the City of Pontiac, and City Ordinance 2.539, 
Outdoor Sidewalk and Patio Dining, which authorizes the City to administratively issue revocable 
permits for outdoor sidewalk and patio dining, I hereby declare and order that all food and drink 
establishments lawfully in existence as of the date of this order will be permitted to operate 
temporary outdoor dining areas in accordance with the following standards: 

1. Establishments may add new or expanded outdoor dining areas to compensate for lost 
interior seating as a result of COVID-19 related restrictions, accommodate social 
distancing and/or to allow for phased reopening; 

2. The addition of new or expanded outdoor dining areas shall not result in an increase to 
the total number of seats or maximum occupancy of the food and drink establishment 
as previously approved by the City; 



3. The food and drink establishment shall be properly licensed by state and local 
agencies to perform any activities, sales, and services; 

4. Any sales and/or consumption of food and/or alcoholic beverages shall be in 
compliance with the provisions of any federal, state, and/or local laws and regulations 
governing same; 

5. The food and drink establishment shall comply with all applicable laws relating to 
litter, noise, and other livability matters. In addition to the foregoing, no amplified 
music shall be permitted in outdoor dining areas. The City may impose additional 
conditions or limitations relating to noise on the establishment when such additional 
conditions or limitations are necessary or appropriate based on the location of the 
outdoor dining area and the proximity of such area to residential areas; 

6. Existing off-street parking areas may be used for outdoor dining, but there must be a 
physical barrier or separation to protect customers from vehicle traffic, such as bollards 
or planter boxes; 

7. Food and drink establishments located in multi-tenant buildings or on sites with 
multiple uses may establish outdoor dining areas, only with written permission of the 
property owner; however, such outdoor dining areas shall generally be located adjacent 
to or directly in front of the establishment, with limited extension beyond the frontage 
of the establishment being site specific and dependent on owner permission; 

8. An outdoor dining area may be located on a public sidewalk immediately adjacent to 
the establishment; however, a minimum of 6 feet of unobstructed, pedestrian access 
along the sidewalk shall be maintained. The City shall not be held liable or responsible 
for any type of damage, theft, or personal injury which may occur as a result of 
operating on a public sidewalk; 

9. Outdoor dining areas shall not encroach into or interfere with required handicapped 
parking spaces; 

10. Outdoor dining areas shall not interfere with safe pedestrian and vehicular access 
or access required to be maintained under the Americans with Disabilities Act; 

11. Outdoor dining areas shall not encroach within or interfere with fire and other 
emergency access; 

12. If a tent or canopy is to be used it must be fire rated and the fire rating for the tent 
must be approved prior to erection of same; 

13. The City may impose other conditions or limitations on a food and drink 
establishment to protect against adverse impacts from noise, traffic, parking, or fire, 
and to protect persons with disabilities; 



14. All establishments seeking new or expanded outdoor dining areas in accordance with 
this Resolution must submit an application for administrative approval by the City. 
Applications for administrative approval shall include the following information: 

a) A plan view drawing of the proposed outdoor dining area showing all fixtures and 
furnishings with all distances clearly marked for pedestrian paths and between 
seating, and including the following; 

1. Reconfigure the layout of the entire outdoor dining area, to the maximum extent 
practical, to provide a minimum 6 foot wide clear pedestrian walking path 
adjacent to the dining area; 

2. Reconfigure tables and chairs to allow seating for patrons only in accordance 
with social distancing guidelines in effect; 

3. Remove all previously approved chairs and other seating that does not meet 
social distancing guidelines; 

4. Install temporary signage to encourage compliance with social distancing 
guidelines; 

5. Provide a temporary hand sanitizing station adjacent to the outdoor dining area; . 
and, 

6. Provide a temporary service station outdoors that includes a trash receptacle 
and disinfecting wipes or other supplies for the cleaning of tables and chairs 
between patrons and of high touch points in the outdoor dining area. 

b) Written permission from the property owner, if the food and drink establishment is 
not the property owner; and, 

c) Proof of insurance to include coverage of the new or expanded outdoor dining area. 

Food and drink establishment owners/operators are responsible for ensuring that the 
standards set forth in this Order and any conditions required as part of the administrative 
approval are followed. The City Planner may deny or revoke any approval granted 
pursuant to this Order when, in the judgement of the City Planner, the outdoor dining 
area is non-compliant. Such determinations may be appealed in writing to the Mayor. 

15. Plans must comply with the 2015 International Fire Code. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the City of Pontiac will waive all application fees for 
new or expanded outdoor dining areas permitted in accordance with this Order. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, except as herein specifically provided, all ordinances of the 
City of Pontiac in effect at the time of the issuance of this Resolution, and as they may be 
subsequently amended, shall remain in force. Failure to comply with all the ordinances of the City 



may result in enforcement action. 

IT FURTHER ORDERED that this Order is subject to suspension, modification, or amendment at 
any time with or without notice based on a determination that additional conditions or limitations 
shall be required to protect against adverse impacts associated with new or expanded outdoor 
dining areas. All approvals governed by this Order shall automatically expire on October 31, 2020 
at 11 :59:59 p.m., unless such approval is otherwise suspended, modified, amended, or extended in 
accordance with this Order or any subsequent Executive Orders in conflict with or rescinded by 
the Governor of the State of Michigan. 

Deirdre Waterman, Mayor 
Date: 


	20210115144649813
	20210115144705763
	20210115145215220_0001
	20210115145215220_0002
	20210115145215220_0003
	20210115145215220_0004
	20210115145215220_0005
	20210115145330360
	20210115145401738_0001
	20210115145401738_0002
	20210115145455392

